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We have achieved …

23% 
increase in EBITDA

12% 
increase in net sales revenue as 
compared to 2014

19% 
growth in added value per employee as 
compared to the previous year
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In 2015, Impol celebrated its 190th anniversary of continuous operations – of which 70 years under the 
name of Impol. Since this was the year of its anniversary, Impol commemorated it appropriately. With its 
successful operations, Impol remains one of the companies in Slovenia with the longest continuous opera-
tions. For the very first time, the revenues exceeded half a billion.

As at 1 January 2015, the Impol Group changed the form of governance in its holding company Impol 2000 
d.d. from two-tier governance which was in place at the time to one-tier governance. Thus, during the whole 
year the one-tier system of governance was in place and the Management Board assesses that this mode of 
the company governance allowed them to quickly adopt adequate business measures, which to some extent 
contributed to the fact that in 2015 Impol achieved the best business results in its long history. With its 
permanent presence, the Management Board ensured constant control of operations and adopted measures 
in line with the needs, and defined the guidelines for further operations in the form of amendments to plans 
and strategies. In 2015, the Management Board adopted 106 resolutions at nine meetings and numerous 
correspondence meetings.

In the organisation of its business processes, the Impol Group ensures transparency by consistently adher-
ing to the Impol Code of Business Conduct revised in 2015 and adopted by the Management Board. The 
activities of the Management Board also ensure consistent provision of the Code provisions.

In areas which have a significant negative impact on the results of Impol’s operations, there were fewer fluc-
tuations in individual periods of 2015 than in the previous years. Throughout the year, a tendency of falling 
prices of aluminium raw materials was present, both of the base stock price as well as of purchase premiums. 
However, as sales premiums remained stable throughout the year, the increasing difference between the sales 
premium and purchase premium translated in a better operating result.

Even the financial environment saw significant changes throughout the year. The access to additional lever-
age continued to be available on a limited scale, the procedures for obtaining additional funds for the financ-
ing of the business process continued to be lengthy, requiring additional collaterals; however, the costs of 
additional external financial resources became increasingly lower and towards the end of the year probably 
already reached the very bottom. Due to limitations, Impol decided to issue bonds and towards the end of 
the year successfully conducted the sale of EUR 50 million and thus created the basis for increasing the 
maturity of funding with the credit leverage, and acquired long-term resources to finance the next cycle of 
investments which will support long-term growth and development.

On the sales market, the tendency of customers to only select those suppliers that possess the ability to 
deliver ordered goods in shorter delivery periods is still present. Impol was thus able to obtain orders 
only by being able to guarantee their delivery within increasingly shorter delivery periods. The segment of 
technically more demanding customers, and thus the share of products with higher added value, is steadily 
increasing. More demanding customers expect that the Impol Group manages the entire production process 
of an individual product and they stipulate this as a condition for further cooperation. 

In terms of purchases, negative information from the political environment affects the trust of suppliers, 
resulting in suppliers being present as a source of financing only to a limited extent. We only cooperate with 
those suppliers who consider the operation of the Impol Group successful, as evidenced by most compre-
hensive and completely credible disclosures.

Concurrently with the provision of the best possible conditions for operations, Impol intensively focused on new 
strategies in all areas of its activities throughout the year, especially in the field of rolled product programme.

Diligent risk monitoring and constant attempts to optimise sources of finance improved the structure of 
sources of finance in such a way that, in addition to all investments in fixed assets, the Company also fi-
nances 50% of its current assets with non-current sources of finance, which is a significant improvement 
in comparison with the previous years. Thus the safety of operations has significantly improved and the 
reaction time which in some cases plays a decisive role when entering sales and also purchase markets has 

Distinguished 
Shareholders 
and all other 

Stakeholders!

Joint report of the Management Board and Executive 
Directors on the operations of Impol 2000 d.d. and the 
Impol Group in 2015
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shortened. Most importantly, Impol finances more than 35% of its investments with equity. 

In the provision of raw materials and energy, Impol continues to make great efforts in the provision of long-
term arrangements. New supply sources are being included. Considerable efforts were made throughout 
the year to ensure new sources of input raw materials to meet the needs of the rolled product programme. 
On the basis of a continuously updated programme, Impol prudently invests in the information system 
upgrades to fully control the entire field of operations, all in order to guarantee continuous control over the 
entire business process at the lowest acceptable costs.

Impol undertook training in all programmes that enabled it to react to demands made by customers with 
regard to delivery periods as an important element in the selection of a supplier, thus facilitating the delivery 
of ordered goods in shorter delivery periods. Shorter delivery periods also constituted one of the conditions 
for continuous ordering. Therefore, the volume of orders as part of inventories remains relatively unchanged. 
It is, however, more likely to gain new orders in a timely fashion. Such an orientation is also regarded as 
acceptable for our future operations. Impol also made progress in terms of quality by providing its custom-
ers with more technological routes and thus improving the safety of production and guaranteeing delivery 
periods.

In general, Impol finds that moderate optimism prevails in most markets and to some extent this atmo-
sphere also continues in 2016. 

The share of operations on the domestic market remains at a low level, resulting from the fact that the do-
mestic market is extremely small compared to Impol’s capacities, whereas Impol needs to continuously grow. 
Taking into account small domestic market, production and sales growth can therefore only be generated 
in exports that are playing an increasingly important role. In 2015, Impol generated 94% of revenues in 
external markets, and even 95% regarding the aluminium programmes.

Impol’s production portfolio continues to be diversified, with several product programmes, and this is con-
tinuously proven as a market niche advantage that can guarantee a more comprehensive range of products to 
a certain group of customers, and also reduces our susceptibility to fluctuations in the market, as it happens 
very rarely for a crisis to take place in all programmes at the same time.

In 2015, market conditions regarding the extruded, forged and stamped product programmes were normal, 
in the rolled product programme; however, they considerably improved compared to the previous years. 
Impol kept providing higherquality products on the basis of improved quality control and new machines, 
adjusted to new conditions with concrete organisational steps, and it was able to complete orders in signifi-
cantly shortened delivery periods. It also monitored the developments in all programmes and acted accord-
ingly, eliminating bottlenecks in production processes through minor dedicated investments, and updating 
the methods of organisation and management. 

As input materials, most of our products are intended for the means of transport industry, pharmaceutical 
industry, food industry, electrical industry, construction business and retail. The building industry market is 
still experiencing recession, whereas the market of customers engaged in the means of transport industry 
is strongly increasing. Impol is more focused on the technically demanding programme. Problems in the 
market segments in recession are neutralised successfully by shifting to areas with greater potential. 
Forecasts for a longer period of time are fairly optimistic as increased annual GDP growth is expected for 
Impol's major markets, meaning that greater demand than that seen in 2015 can be expected. These fore-
casts exclude the domestic market for which no significant growth potential can be identified. Impol is thus 
slowly turning into an almost entirely export-oriented company.

In 2015, the European Union, where more than 83% of all our products are sold, continued to constitute 
Impol’s main market. The Eastern European market grows slowly. As most of Impol’s products are sold to 
other manufacturers where they are subject to processing or installation in their own products, it is very 
important that their distance from Impol enables the provision of high quality sales and after-sales services. 
Therefore, only sell an extremely low volume of Impol’s production programme can be sold globally. Impol 
has thus decided to act globally only with a selected part of the production programme and to continue with 
its present organisational forms. 

Impol continues to intensively implement changes in sales channels by increasing the volume of sales that 
requires both direct connections and integration of Impol’s development and production processes in the 
processes of our customers. This type of sales already reaches 55% of total sales.
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Table 1: Trends in EBITDA and EBITDA

Year / Indicator 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

EBITDA * 27,425 53,859 36,841 27,297 30,343 41,883 39,579 36,721 39,429 48,382

Change in EBITDA 1.04 1.96 0.68 0.74 1.11 1.38 0.94 0.93 1.07 1.24

Net debt** 181,453 220,494 208,197 187,493 204,338 190,417 184,684 151,611 156,704 117,962

Net debt / EBITDA 6.65 4.09 5.65 6.87 6.73 4.55 4.67 4.13 4.00 2.44

*EBITDA = operating profit + 
depreciation

  **Net debt = non-current 
financial liabilities + current 

financial liabilities – cash and 
cash equivalents – short-term 

financial assets 

According to the forecasts for 2016:
• the volume of sales of our products with a higher added value (pre-painted strips and sheets, diffi-

cult-to-work alloy foils and rods) will continue to increase,
• the volume of the sales of strips, sheet and foils will continue to increase by including the additional 

programme of Impol-TLM, a company established at the end of last year,
• the capacities of our extruded product programme will further enhance,
• the European market will be retained,
• the volume of products that play a significant role in our niche programmes will increase,
• volume of sales in the USA will increase by reorganising the sales,
• we will continue to conquer the Eastern European markets despite the crisis, and
• the good reputation of the Impol brand will be additionally strengthened as a reliable and renowned 

provider of a broad range of aluminium products.

If we examine the contribution to the achieved business results for 2015 from the viewpoint of achieved 
net cash flows by individual programmes of operations, we can establish that the rolled product programme 
created 44% of total net cash flow of the Impol Group, whereas the extruded product programme contrib-
uted 49%; other activities also made a significant contribution by providing 7% of total net cash flow of 
the Group and we will, therefore, continue to promote programme diversification. Operating conditions 
on sales and financial markets as well as on the domestic market have mainly stabilised. The Company will 
continue to establish appropriate provisions for periods of negative cyclical fluctuations and develop those 
activities that will provide the Group with advantages in selected niches.

The movement in aluminium purchase prices which fell over the year in both parts, the one formed on the 
stock exchange as well as purchase premiums which are formed depending on market trends. Both had a 
significant impact on business results in 2015. In both areas, prices decreased, while the decline in stock 
prices directly reflected in the sales prices. The purchase premiums affected the selling prices of Impol's 
products a bit later.

In 2015, the aluminium market continued to experience practically no significant organisational and owner-
ship changes. China, however, continues to establish itself as the leading manufacturer in this field, produc-
ing almost half of all extracted aluminium in the world. Given that in 2015 as well aluminium production 
exceeded aluminium consumption, Impol estimates that there is no risk of experiencing a lack of aluminium 
globally, although there are still interruptions in its supply on the European market. As a result of an abso-
lute lack of primary aluminium production, Europe continued to experience a rise in demand for secondary 
aluminium that is causing a continuous rise also in the purchase price thereof.
 
Attempting to pursue its development goals and to control the growth of the volume of operations and the 
rise in aluminium prices in 2015, Impol invested about EUR 14 million in fixed assets intended to complete 
projects that were already started in previous years, and most of all to eliminate minor bottlenecks. This 
year, the implementation of a number of important development projects was prepared in parallel, which 
will be fully implemented in 2016 and 2017 in the amount exceeding EUR 50 million and for which the 
funds have been provided with the successfully conducted issue of bonds of a total value of EUR 50 million 
before the end of 2015. Due to the fall in aluminium raw material prices, Impol did not have to invest in 
fixed assets. 
Given the results achieved, investments in Impol are profitable and safe since the results achieved enabled 
a timely and full settlement of all liabilities, and facilitated the organisation of uninterrupted operations. In 
2015, Impol maintained its dependency on bank loans at the level of the previous year, and Impol addition-
ally obtained the sources to finance long-term development investments with the issue of bonds.
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*Cash flow = net profit/loss after tax 
+ depreciation + difference between 
the balance of provisions and ac-
crued expenses and deferred income 
at the end of 2015 compared to 2014

Impol decided to adjust the debt level to the needs for investment in development projects and projects 
intended to increase the volume of operations on the one hand, and to the requirement that liabilities aris-
ing from debt should be settled in accordance with the expectations of creditors on the other hand. This is 
one of the main concerns of Impol, which is demonstrated by the long-term movement of ratio between 
net debt and the achieved EBITDA. 

In 2015, Impol pursued the following basic goals:
• generation of EUR 16.2 million in profit and 
• generation of net cash flow in the amount of EUR 33 million,
• sales of 184 thousand tonnes of aluminium products. 

In the end:
• the volume of quantitative sales was realised in the amount of 189 thousand tonnes, 
• the Group nominally generated a net cash flow* in the amount of EUR 38.3 million and 
• net profit after tax in the nominal amount of EUR 22.5 million.

Although almost all sales are realised outside Slovenia and consequently the exposure to risks and costs is 
greater, all objectives were met as expected and the result matches the anticipations and total result is as 
expected. Impol managed to succeed by restructuring its programmes to focus more on the products with a 
higher value added and by actually increasing the sales by more than 3 percent.

Comparisons with the preceding year and with our plans show:
• that Impol increased total revenue compared to the revenue achieved in the preceding year by 12%,
• that 2015 saw some more favourable effects on the Group's operations, evidenced by 
• reduction in prices of input raw materials, which did not have to be fully reflected in the sales prices,
• growth of markets in technologically advanced fields,
• more stable cross-currency relations and thus less negative exchange rate differences,
• possibility of quality collaterals,
• the profit generated was higher than planned and the one generated in the preceding year, which en-

ables Impol to plan more ambitious development projects,
• that the achieved net cash flow, EBIT and EBITDA are higher than those achieved in the previous 

year, and higher than planned. 

The shares of Impol 2000 d.d. are not quoted on a regulated market and Impol 2000 d.d. enables its share-
holders to determine the value of their investment by objectively showing the value of the company in 
its financial statements. The book value of capital per share in the holding company of the Group, Impol 
2000 d.d. rose by almost 4.1% in the past year as well and amounted to almost EUR 51.66/share at the 
end of the year. The consolidated book value of capital, excluding minority owners, per share in the Impol 
Group rose by 20% and amounts to as much as EUR 108.57/share. Based on the business results achieved, 
orientations in the strategy until 2020 and forecasts in our plans for 2016, the Impol Group will establish 
dividends for its shareholders in the amount of EUR 1.41 per share with the changed policy on dividends. It 
must be emphasised, however, that in order to provide comprehensive information to the shareholders and 
other stakeholders on the basis of a decision adopted by the Management Board of Impol 2000 d.d. data 
is provided in accordance with the Impol Code of Business Conduct and the Rules on communications in 
the Impol Group.

The fundamental orientations of the Impol Strategy 2014-2020 shall also be followed in 2016. However, 
fast changes in the environment require certain adjustments to the changed circumstances. The guidelines 
for 2016 are therefore as follows:
• The development activities in 2016 will prioritise the resolution of problems regarding the two hot 

rolling mills by integrating the programme of the former TLM Šibenik, and the renewal of a hot roll-
ing mill in Impol Seval and the beginning of launching a new programme of cast rods. Preference will 
be given to the investments in the market and design of production processes which will enable Impol 
to utilise the available capacities in subsequent periods. In search of profitable investment opportu-
nities we will especially carefully monitor developments in the market of products for the industry of 
means of transport.

• With the planned scope of operations in 2016, the Impol Group should, by generating EUR 606 mil-
lion in total revenue, achieve EUR 48 million in EBITDA, EUR 31 million in EBIT and almost EUR 
46,606 in annual added value per employee.

• In terms of aluminium product sales, the majority of sales is still focused on the markets within the 
European Union. Special attention will continue to be paid to the expansion of the pre-painted strip 



12

report - positive trends

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

market and the acquisition of additional markets for the Impol-TLM programmes. The volume of sales 
is due to increase by 30,000 tonnes to 218,815 tonnes per year.

• We will continue to pay special attention to insurance against risks caused by changes in raw material 
prices, exchangerate fluctuations and the conditions on financial markets, and we will upgrade our 
knowledge which we will promptly apply to manage risks. Due to decreased risks of foreign exchange 
differences, the already established hedging against exchange rate fluctuations and other fluctuations 
will be preserved and new methods will also be included. Regarding the risks occurring due to changes 
in raw material prices, new knowledge will be acquired and immediately used in risk management. 
We will continue to monitor the risks promptly in terms of all aspects of their occurrence and causes, 
and will simultaneously adopt measures and perform tasks to eliminate them fully or at least minimise 
them.

• Changes in the organisation of activities will serve to integrate new programmes causing least possible 
disturbance.

• A systematic process of training and education of the employees will be set up in order to increase 
productivity and decrease accidents at work.

• The entire employee stimulation system will still build upon their performance throughout the year. 
The Company will, however, assume that the net starting salary for even the least challenging jobs 
enables every single employee to earn a socially acceptable wage.

The activities of all members of the Impol Group will be set in a way that every single measure promotes 
better results in the Group as a whole. 

The greatest attention will still be paid to our regular customers, although a significant part of our efforts 
will also be directed towards gaining new customers. Impol will pay special attention to products that bring 
a higher net value added and will simultaneously guarantee the achievement of the quantitative volume of 
sales as foreseen in our plans, which will ensure the adequate coverage of our fixed expenses.
Sales will continue to be organised mainly on the principles of agents and agencies within the Group; all 
those engaged will mostly be stimulated by binding them to the sales premium achieved and paid above 
the price of aluminium on the LME, reduced by the purchase premium. Impol will strengthen all teams 
involved in the sales and sales procedures.

Investments will mostly pursue the goals which guarantee full utilisation of all available capacities as well as 
a higher level of business stability and safety of operations. Sources for financing investments of long-term 
character will be acquired mostly from external sources, whereas shortterm investments will be in compli-
ance with the movement in raw material prices and the need to guarantee day-to-day liquidity. 
Impol will continue to optimise and upgrade the comprehensive information system which will be used at 
the Group level.

When acquiring major business stakes in other companies, Impol will pursue the goals of including espe-
cially those programmes that upgrade the existing programmes or supplement them in terms of a higher 
added value, while taking into consideration the fact that the integration of new programmes must not 
weaken the composition of sources for financing the entire process as in this case the share of liabilities 
would increase. Impol will also continue to form stronger alliances in the aluminium industry, especially in 
the Balkans, whereas investments outside this area will mostly concentrate on extending the sales net-work.

In order to optimise its costs, Impol will continue to promote outsourcing of a large part of its services 
outside the Group such as: Alcad – informatics, Ates, Simfin – finance and accounting, Tehnika-SET – 
maintenance, etc.

External sources in a form of leverage will be included into the Impol Group through the Group companies 
with sufficient assets to provide for adequate collateral for obtained additional non-proprietary sources of 
financing. Financing within the Group will be carried out under external conditions and will include the 
costs of providing funds. Individual companies of the Group can also participate in financial markets inde-
pendently, subject to a prior consent of Impol's Management Board.

Supply of raw materials will continue to give priority to those purchase sources that guarantee long-term 
business cooperation with Impol under conditions agreed upon in advance. When purchasing aluminium 
raw materials, we will continue to include all available sources if the provided raw materials are of appropri-
ate quality. In order to ensure the highest level of autonomy in providing adequate input raw materials with 
a higher value added achieved within the Impol Group, Impol will pay special attention to improvements 
in this field, and will start with the introduction of a uniform and comprehensive information system to 
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support the purchasing in most parts of the Group.

Regarding the information system management, we will continue to guarantee the consistency of data with 
the inclusion of the IT Supervisory Board.

The information system will be upgraded towards an integrated information system in all companies of 
the Group. Through continuous audit procedures of functioning of the information system which were 
introduced during the previous years, Impol will guarantee optimal introduction of new or improvement of 
the existing parts of the information system mainly by consistently observing the principle of management 
of the data exchange system through its information backbone. Economic viability will be at the forefront 
in that regard.

The basic rules of the functioning of the Impol Group laid down in Impol Code of Business Conduct 
remain unchanged. They will be amended if necessary, but only on the basis of carefully verified needs re-
sulting from the changed conditions on the market.

The dividend policy in 2016 will be applied in accordance with the guidelines laid down in the long-term 
strategy so that the shareholders will be provided with higher dividend yields, which will, however, not 
represent a significant additional burden for the holding company of the Impol Group.
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In compliance with the Companies Act, Impol 2000 d.d. with the registered office in Slovenska Bistrica, 
Partizanska 38, being the holding company of the Impol Group and a large public limited company, is 
obliged to prepare a consolidated annual report and have its operations audited. With the issue of bonds at 
the end of 2015 the company was transformed to a public limited company.

Impol 2000 d.d. a management company, was established in August 1998, and registered in the Register of 
Companies at the Regional Court in Maribor on 3 August 1998 as a public limited company, with the de-
cision Srg. 98/01042, and with the entry number 1/10469/00. The Company is classified under the activity 
code 70.100, i.e., the management of holding companies. The Company's registration number is 1317342.

On 9 November 1998, the Company’s decision Srg 98/01486 on increasing the share capital with in-kind 
contributions, i.e., with the shares of Impol d.d. Slovenska Bistrica, was registered in the Register of Com-
panies at the Regional Court in Maribor, with the entry number 1/10469/00. 

On 1 October 1999, the Company adopted a decision on increasing its share capital. The in-kind contribu-
tion of Impol d.d. i.e. the takeover of the 100-percent share that Impol d.d. had in Impol Servis d.o.o. was 
registered in the Register of Companies at the Regional Court in Maribor on 15 February 2000, with the 
decision Srg. 1999/03108, and the entry number 1/10469/00. 

After the registration of the increase in the share capital as at 15 February 2000, the Company’s share capital 
amounted to EUR 4,451,540.

The Company's share capital is divided into 1,066,767 registered pro rata shares.
The book value of a share of Impol 2000 d.d., as at 31 December 2015 is as follows: 

Parent 
Company 

PRESENTATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY IMPOL 2000 d.d. AND 
THE IMPOL GROUP

 Table 2: Book value of a share of Impol 2000 d.d. (the holding company of the Impol Group) in EUR

Year Book value of a share of Impol 2000 
d.d. (the holding company)

Book value of a share: consolidated 
– including the equity of minority 

shareholders

Book value of a share: consolidated 
– excluding the equity of minority 

shareholders

2015 51.66 119.58 108.57

2014 49.61 99.88 91.04

2013 47.93 89.61 80.54

2012 45.88 77.78 69.83

2011 40.85 69.21 61.21

2010 36.19 56.46 49.90

2009 32.13 52.75 46.41

2008 26.54 53.33 47.27

2007 23.70 50.19 42.06

Companies in 
the Impol Group

Consolidated accounts include all companies in which the Impol Group holds more than 50% management 
rights, meaning that Simfin d.o.o., Alcad d.o.o., Impol Brazil and Slobodna carinska cona are not included 
in the consolidation. The latter are included as associated companies using the equity method.
 
The Impol Group operates within the holding company, Impol 2000 d.d. with its direct subsidiaries Impol 
d.o.o., Rondal d.o.o., Impol Hungary Kft. and Impol Servis d.o.o. and from 15 September 2015 also a com-
pany in Croatia which was named Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o. with a 65-percent equity stake, and from 
10 March 2016 it has been called Impol-TLM d.o.o. and the ownership is now 100% and from 2 March 
2016 it also owns Adrial Ulaganja d.o.o. with its registered office in Croatia, and Impol d.o.o. operates with 
thirteen active subsidiaries, four active subsubsidiaries, and two active associated companies (Table 3).
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Company Share

Impol 2000 d.d. – the holding company – directly controlling the following:

1 Impol Servis d.o.o. (controls 27.4% of Unidel d.o.o.) 100%

2 Impol d.o.o. with the following subsidiaries: 97.5%

2.1 Impol Seval a. d., Srbija with the subsidiaries:

70%

2.1.1 Impol Seval PKC d.o.o. (100%)

2.1.2 Impol Seval Tehnika d.o.o. (100%)

2.1.3 Impol Seval Final d.o.o. (100%)

2.1.4 Impol Seval President d.o.o. (100%)

2.1.4 Slobodna carinska cona (33,33%)

2.2 Impol LLT d.o.o. 100%

2.3 Impol FT d.o.o. 100%

2.4 Impol PCP d.o.o. 100%

2.5 Stampal SB d.o.o. 100%

  2.6 Impol R in R d.o.o. 100%

  2.7 Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o. 100%

  2.8 Impol Aluminum Corporation, New York (ZDA) 90%

  2.9 Impol Stanovanja d.o.o. 100%

  2.10 Štatenberg d.o.o. 100%

  2.11 Unidel d.o.o. (27.4% owned by Impol Servis d.o.o.) 72.6%

  2.12 Impol-Montal d.o.o. 100%

  2.13 Kadring d.o.o. 62.5%

2.14 associated Simfin d.o.o. 49.5%

2.15 associated Alcad d.o.o. 32%

3. Rondal d.o.o. 100%

4. Impol Hungary Kft. 100%

5. associated Impol Brazil 50%

6. Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o., in March 2016 it was renamed into Impol-TLM d.o.o. 65.0%, since 2 March 
2016 100%

Subsidiary – direct influence Balance of the invest-
ment  as at 31 Dec 2015

Balance of the invest-
ment as at 31 Dec 2014 Stake in % Capital as at 31. 

Dec 2015 in EUR
Net profit or loss 

in 2015 in EUR

Impol Servis d.o.o, Partizanska ulica 
38, Slovenska Bistrica 245,037 245,037 100  900,493 42,444

Impol d.o.o., Partizanska ulica 38,  
Slovenska Bistrica 67,588,863 67,588,863 97,5387 98,702,781 6,414,366

Rondal d.o.o., Partizanska ulica 38, 
Slovenska Bistrica 100,000 100,000 100* 7,681,123 601,715

Impol Hungary Kft., Vecsey Karoly 
ulica 7, Budapest, Hungary 0 1,724 100 -3,513,134 -2,446,88

Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o., 
Đorđićeva 19, Zagreb, Croatia** 1,745 0 65 -99,232 -102,175

Table 3: Active companies in the Impol Group

Table 4: Subsidiaries where Impol 2000 d.d. exercises direct influence

*At the end of 2011 Impol 2000 d.d. 
signed a contract on the purchase of 
a 100-percent stake of Rondal d.o.o. 
which then became its subsidiary. 
The transfer was registered in January 
2012. As at 31 December 2015, Rondal 
d.o.o. has a 99-percent own share 
in the equity of the company, and 
Impol 2000 d.d., a 1-percent stake, 
which implies an effective ownership 
of Rondal d.o.o. by Impol 2000 d.d. 
(100 percent).
** In September 2015, a company was 
established in Croatia. At the begin-
ning of March 2016, it was renamed 
to Impol-TLM d.o.o.

Of 26 Group companies, 9 operate abroad (eight in 2015). Impol Hungary Kft. and Impol-TLM d.o.o. are 
direct subsidiaries of Impol 2000 d.d. whereas two subsidiaries of Impol d.o.o. also operate abroad: IAC, 
New York, USA, and Impol Seval a. d., Serbia, which is the 100% owner of four companies. Consolidated 
calculations include all companies in which the Impol Group holds more than 50% management rights, 
meaning that Simfin d.o.o., Alcad d.o.o., Impol Brazil and Slobodna carinska cona are not included in the 
consolidation.
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 Table 5: Subsidiaries where Impol 2000 d.d. exercises indirect influence

 Table 6: Associated companies where Impol 2000 d.d. has indirect influence

 Table 7: Associated companies where Impol 2000 d.d. has direct influence

Subsidiary –
indirect influence

Registration 
number

Standard  
Industrial  

Classification

Country of the 
company

Capital as at 
31 Dec 2015 

in EUR
Net profit or loss 

in 2015 in EUR

Impol-Montal d.o.o.,  
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 5479355 28,120 Slovenia 867,484 163,905

Impol Stanovanja d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 39, Slovenska Bistrica 5598010 70,320 Slovenia 3,296,267 26,102

Štatenberg d.o.o., 
Štatenberg 86, Makole 5465249 55,301 Slovenia 419,176 241

Unidel d.o.o., 
Kraigherjeva ulica 37, Slovenska Bistrica 5764769 85,325 Slovenia 927,682 109,228

Impol Aluminum Corporation,New 
York, USA 51,520 USA 1,546,366 199,312

Impol Seval a. d., 
Sevojno, Serbia with 4 subsidiaries: 7606265 27,423 Serbia 29,733,460 7,484,391

Impol Seval PKC d.o.o., Sevojno, Serbia 1761824 70,220 Serbia 43,512 1,780

Impol Seval Final d.o.o., Sevojno, Serbia 1761826 69,200 Serbia 82,555 4.294

Impol Seval Tehnika d.o.o., Užice, Serbia 1761825 33,120 Serbia 169,911 19,079

Impol Seval President d.o.o., Zlatibor, 
Serbia 2070184 55,100 Serbia -59,353 -44,129

Stampal SB d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 1317610 28,400 Slovenia 4,647,142 1,019,085

Kadring d.o.o., 
Trg svobode 26, Slovenska Bistrica 5870941 74,140 Slovenia 727,651 137,788

Impol FT d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 2239418 28,400 Slovenia 4,948,188 2,513,589

Impol PCP d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 2239442 28,400 Slovenia 6,679,572 3,426,647

Impol LLT d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 2239434 27,530 Slovenia 2,042,120 971,287

Impol R in R d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 2239400 73,102 Slovenia 596,542 107,593

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o., 
Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica 2239426 70,320 Slovenia 624,948 159,221

Associated companies – indirect influence Country Stake in %

Simfin d.o.o., Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica* Slovenia 49.5

Alcad d.o.o., Partizanska ulica 38, Slovenska Bistrica** Slovenia 32

Slobodna carinska cona Serbia 33.33

Associated company – direct influence Country Stake in %

Impol Brazil Aluminium Ltda, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil Brazil 50

*Equity stake in possession of a 
subsidiary - Impol d.o.o.

**Equity stake in possession of a 
subsidiary - Impol d.o.o.

***Equity stake in possession of a 
subsidiary - Impol Seval a. d., majori-

ty held by Impol d.o.o.

Impol 2000 d.d. is the holding company of the Impol Group and is organised as a public limited company. 
Its capital is divided into 1,066,767 pro rata shares, issued in non-materialised form and registered as such 
on 5 March 2007. The shares are transferable and are all of the same class. The central share register is kept 
by the Company on a lawyer trust account. At the end of the year, 960 shareholders were registered.
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Shareholder Number of share Percentage (%)

Bistral d.o.o. 111,449 10.45

Impol-Montal d.o.o. 80,482 7.54

Karona d.o.o. 71,403 6.69

Alu-Trg d.o.o. 58,882 5.52

Upimol 2000 d.o.o. 54,787 5.14

Simpal d.o.o. 53,400 5.01

Alumix d.o.o. 53,400 5.01

Danilo Kranjc 29,993 2.81

Simfin d.o.o. 19,173 1.80

Varimat d.o.o. 17,206 1.61

Others (mainly natural persons) 516,592 48.43

Table 8: Overview of the shareholders as at 31 December 2015

The share ownership structure in 2015 changed in comparison with the share ownership structure as at 
31 December 2014 predominantly as a result of a reduced number of shareholders employed in the Impol 
Group.

The entire Board of Impol 2000 d.d. owns 15,182 shares or 1.42% in total. No shares were either acquired 
or disposed of in 2015. 

As at 31 December 2015, natural persons held 544,959 shares or 51.085% of the shares.
An overview of the 10 largest shareholders of total 948 shareholders continues to show adequately diver-
sified ownership:
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*In 2015, Impol-TLM d.o.o. was called Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o.

Figure 1: The Impol Group organisation 
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Statement on the management Impol 2000 d.d. in accordance with paragraph 5 Article 70 of the Compa-
nies Act ZGD-1. 

1. Reference to a valid Code
Until 14 December 2015, the code of governance entitled the Code of Business Rules of Impol adopted on 
19 January 2009 which was never published. Impol 2000 d.d. became a public limited company in Decem-
ber 2015 and as it is a listed company, the Impol Code of Business Conduct was published on 14 December 
2015 on the website at http://www.impol.com/about-us/organization/2764. The governance is in line with 
the provisions of the ZGD-1 and the aforementioned Code. The Company fully respects the above Code.

2. Description of the main features of the internal control systems and risk management in the Compa-
ny in relation to the financial reporting process
The Company's management is responsible for keeping proper accounts and the establishment of internal 
controls, ensuring the functioning of internal controls, the selection and application of accounting policies.

To make the systems of internal controls and risk management function, the Impol Group performs the 
following:
• Unification of accounting policies and their consistent application. 
• Introduction of a uniform accounting system that allows maintenance of uniform accounting policies.
• Introduction of a single business information system, which increases the efficiency of operational 

processes and at the same time provides the possibility of controlling all the Group companies.
• Introduction of adequate accounting and business reporting.
• Reporting in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards at the level of all 

Group companies.
• Implementation of internal controls.
• Implementation of regular external assessment. 
• Establishment of the IT Supervisory Board which supervises the procedures for the integration of new 

information solutions in the Group, supervises the implementation of IT projects and takes care of a 
uniform approach to IT construction.

• Establishment of a Risk Management Committee which monitors all the risks identified at the Group 
level and, where appropriate, is engaged in individual processes where certain risks may occur or have 
occurred.

• Implementation of its own system of managing risks regarding aluminium operations.

Risk management is presented in detail in the section on risks. 

We believe that the current system of internal controls in Impol 2000 d.d and the Impol Group was effec-
tively established in 2015 and that the operation was in accordance with the legal provisions and ensured 
the possibility of achieving business goals.

3. Data on the functioning of the General Meeting in its key competences, and the description of the 
rules for the shareholders and the method of their enforcement
The shareholders shall exercise their rights on the Company matters for which responsibility is given to the 
General Meeting in accordance with the ZGD-1. The convocation of a General Meeting is regulated by 
the Statute. The General Meeting is convened by the Management Board. A General Meeting shall also 
be convened if members whose shares represent one-twentieth of the new equity require it and state the 
purpose and reasons.

If the Management Board refuses to give effect to the request, the minority may request the court to autho-
rize it to convene the General Meeting. The same applies when the majority requests the extension of the 
agenda after the General Meeting has been convened.

The Management Board shall convene the General Meeting one month before the meeting by publishing 
the notice on AJPES and the Company's website. The publication by the Management Board shall also 
indicate the time and place of the General Meeting.  

The General meeting can only be attended and the right to cast votes may be exercised by the shareholders 
who announce their participation at the General Meeting no later than the end of the fourth day prior to 

Management  
Statement 

Management and governance system
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the General Meeting (cut-off date) and who are registered in the central securities register at the end of the 
fourth day before the General Meeting. 

General Meeting shall decide on:
• adoption of the Annual Report,
• use of the distributable profit,
• appointment and recall of the Management Board members,
• granting discharge to the Management Board members,
• amendments to the Statute,
• measures to increase and decrease equity,
• dissolution of the Company and status transformation,
• auditor appointment,
• other matters if stipulated by the Statute in accordance with the law or regarding other matters laid 

down in the Act. 

The General Meeting is responsible for the adoption of the annual report only if the Management Board 
fails to approve it, or if the Management Board leaves a decision on the approval of the Annual Report to 
the General Meeting. 

At the General Meeting held on 17 July 2015 the shareholders took note of the Annual Report and the 
Report of the Management Board on the results of the verification of the Annual Report for 2014, and of 
the remuneration of the members of the management and supervisory bodies. The shareholders adopted a 
resolution on using the accumulated profit and granting discharge to the Management board and Supervi-
sory Board, and the resolution on the appointment of the auditor for 2015.

4. Data on the composition and functioning of the management and supervisory bodies and their com-
mittees
As of 1 January 2015, the Impol Group changed the form of governance in its holding company Impol 2000 
d.d. from two-tier governance which was in place until 31 December 2014 to one-tier governance.
 
The Management Board which represents the Company is composed of non-executive directors. The Presi-
dent of the Management Board is the legal representative of the Company. The Management Board there-
fore runs the Company, whereas the two Executive Directors run the ongoing operations. The Executive 
Directors who are not members of the Management Board also represent the Company in accordance with 
the law and are independent representatives of the company. In accordance with the resolution adopted by 
the Management Board, the Executive Directors must obtain the approval for specific areas of operations:
• the acquisition, takeover and cessation of shareholdings in other companies and the establishment of 

new companies,
• acquisition, disposal or encumbrance of real estate,
• pledge or other forms of encumbering of other assets,
• taking out short-term loans, leasing, emission of bills or commercial papers and acquisition of other 

liquid assets from external sources,
• provision of guarantees,
• granting loans to employees and third parties,
• investments into fixed capital.

Composition of the Management Board:
• Jernej Čokl, President of the MB
• Vladimir Leskovar, Vice President of the MB
• Janko Žerjav, Member of the MB 
• Milan Cerar, Member of the MB
• Bojan Gril, Member of the MB

Jernej Čokl, Vladimir Leskovar, Janko Žerjav and Milan Cerar are members of the Management Board 
appointed by the General Meeting. Their term of office expires on 31 December 2020. Bojan Gril is a 
Management Board member appointed by the RBEIG and his term of office expires on 20 January 2017. 
 
The Management Board appointed two Executive Directors who are not members of the MB:
• Edvard Slaček, Chief Executive Officer
• Irena Šela, Executive Director of Finance
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The term of office of the Executive Directors will run from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. 

The MB also appointed the Audit Committee as the standing committee of the MB in accordance with 
Articles 280 and 289 of the Companies Act ZGD-1, comprising of:
• Vladimir Leskovar, Chair of the Committee,
• Bojan Gril, Member of the MB,
• Tanja Ahaj, external member.

5. Data provided in accordance with paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1
5.1. Structure of the share capital
The Company’s share capital amounts to EUR 4,451,539.81 and is divided into:
• 23,951 par value shares of the first issue,
• 1,029,297 par value shares of the second issue,
• 13,513 par value shares of the third issue. 

The shares are held by named persons and are of the same class. The largest shareholders of Impol 2000 d.d. 
as at 31 December 2015 are as in Table 8.

As at 31 December 2015, natural persons held 544,959 shares or 51.085% of shares, the remaining shares 
are held by legal entities.

5.2. Restrictions on transfer of shares
The transfer of shares shall request a written consent of the Management Board.

5.3. Point 3 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – Qualified holdings according to the ZPre-1 
On 31 December 2015, qualified holdings on the basis of the first paragraph Article 77 of the Takeovers 
Act were as follows in Table 9.

Shareholder Number of shares %

Bistral d.o.o. 111,449 10.45 Direct holder

Impol-Montal d.o.o. 80,482 7.54 Direct holder

Karona d.o.o. 71,403 6.69 Direct holder

Alu-Trg d.o.o. 58,882 5.52 Direct holder

Upimol 2000 d.o.o. 54,787 5.14 Direct holder

Simpal d.o.o. 53,400 5.01 Direct holder

Alumix d.o.o. 53,400 5.01 Direct holder

Table 9: Shareholders with qualifying holdings as at 31 December 2015

5.4. Point 4 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 
The Company did not issue any securities that would carry special control rights.

5.5. Point 5 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – the employee share scheme
The Company has no employee share scheme.

5.6. Point 6 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – Restrictions related to voting rights
In the Statute, Impol 2000 d.d. has a restriction of voting rights, namely a shareholder who holds more 
than 10% of the shares of the Company cannot exercise the voting right for the shares exceeding 10% of 
the shares of the Company.

5.7 Point 7 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 - All agreements among shareholders known to the com-
pany that could result in the restriction of the transfer of securities or voting rights
The Company is not aware of any such agreements.

5.8. Point 8 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – Rules of the Company 
Executive Directors are appointed by the Management Board. The term of office of the Executive Directors 
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shall be three years with the possibility of reappointment. The Executive Director must meet the conditions 
laid down in the Companies Act ZGD-1, additional conditions may be determined by the Management 
Board. The Management Board shall decide on the conclusion, approval and termination of the contract on 
the performance of a function of the Executive Director.
  
The company has a Management Board which runs the company, supervises the implementation of oper-
ations and performs other tasks in accordance with the law and statute. The Management Board consists 
of five members. Four members are elected by the General Meeting, and a representative body of workers 
of the Impol Group (hereinafter: RBEIG) shall have the right to elect one member in accordance with the 
statutory provisions and the agreement concluded between the Management Board and employee repre-
sentatives - the Group electors.

A member of the Board elected by the RBEIG has a position of a non-executive director in the Manage-
ment Board and represents the interests of all the employees in the companies affiliated to the Group. The 
term of the member of the Management Board appointed by the RBEIG is two years with the possibility 
of reappointment.

The term of office of the Management Board members elected by the General Meeting is up to six years 
with the possibility of reappointment. The term of office of each member of the Management Board is 
finally decided by the General Meeting by adopting a resolution. If the term of office of a Management 
Board member is subject to early termination, the next General Meeting will elect a new member for the 
remainder of the term of office.

The Statute may be amended by the General Meeting requiring a majority of at least three quarters of the 
share capital represented.

5.9 Point 9 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – Authorisations of the members of the management, 
especially on the basis of authorisations for issuing or purchasing own shares
The authorisations are defined in point 5 - Information on the composition and functioning of the manage-
ment and supervisory bodies and their committees. The Management Board and Executive Directors have 
no special powers in connection with the issue or purchase of treasury shares.
 
5.10 Point 10 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – All important agreements in which the company 
is a party and which take effect, change or are cancelled on the basis of the change in the control over the 
company as a result of a bid, as stipulated by the act regulating acquisitions. The Company is not aware of 
any such agreements.

5.11 Point 11 paragraph 6 Article 70 of the ZGD-1 – All agreements between the company and the mem-
bers of its management or supervision bodies or the employees which foresee  compensation should such 
persons, due to a bid as stipulated by the act regulating acquisitions: resign, be fired without cause, or their 
employment relationship be terminated. 

In the event of resignation, recall or termination of the employment contract without good reason, the 
management is not entitled to compensation. 
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Our plans for 2016:

EUR 22 million  
of pre-tax profit 

EUR 48 million  
of EBITDA value

EUR 46,600  
added value per employee
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STRATEGIC ORIENTATION

STANDING 
ON FIRM GROUND, 

BUILDING A 
STABLE FUTURE
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Vision
Manufacture of aluminium products, constantly increasing the level of processing and finishing.

Impol’s Mission
Processing of aluminium into products that meet our customers’ highest possible expectations of value and 
satisfying the needs of the customers, employees, owners, environment and other stakeholders. This also 
includes best service provided to our customers.

Values
• Innovation – products are developed jointly with our customers to satisfy their needs; innovation and 

constant training of personnel are provided for.
• Diligence – provision of the participation of all the employees by means of team work, thus establish-

ing confidence in Impol on the market, and reliable services.
• Flexibility – our services are distinguished by speed, efficiency and transparency, which are provided 

for by being in direct contact with our customers.
• Excellence – quality assurance, generation of ideas and implementation of sales activities and environ-

mentally sound production processes.
• Loyalty – to society, owners, surroundings, colleagues and the environment by observing legal provi-

sions and ethical norms.

The currently applicable Strategy until 2020 defines the basis strategic orientations of the Impol Group:
• high growth of production and consequently of the sales,
• increasing net profit,
• increasing value added per employee,
• long-term financial stability,
• decreasing the net debt/EBITDA ratio,
• increasing value of the property for our shareholders.

The 2016 plan for the entire Impol Group is based on the 2014-2020 Strategy and Plan supplemented by 
the new opportunities identified in 2015 and carried out at the beginning of 2016. It was the establishment 
of a new company for the production of rolled products in Croatia.

The production of aluminium products which are almost entirely used for further processing continue to 
constitute nearly all of Impol’s business activities. Other activities are supplementary, yet also strongly con-
nected to the aluminium activity.

Goals:
• To generate at least EUR 22 million in profit, EBITDA in the amount of EUR 48 million and value 

added per employee in the amount of EUR 46.6 thousand;
• To increase the level of self-supply with adequate input raw materials for the production of rolled 

products with the integration of new capacities in Croatia;
• To continuously develop new purchase sources of aluminium raw materials and to the greatest extent 

guarantee the acquisition of waste material from Impol product customers;
• To continue increasing the use of cheaper forms of aluminium raw materials by simultaneously in-

creasing the use of capacities already established and to ensure the segmentation of products by quality 
of input raw materials needed for their production. Based on this it is necessary to begin selecting 
production programmes and mainly consider the criteria of their contribution to a collectively achieved 
contribution for covering fixed costs;

• To ensure, irrespective of the point of sale within the Group, that the customers have access to the 
entire range of Impol’s products, all being sold under the Impol trademark;

• To enable and optimise production processes to facilitate the delivery of products within the desired 
deadlines and if these are unattainable due to any limitations, within the deadlines set by Impol and 
accepted by the customers at the latest;

• To guarantee higher product finishing phases (painting, advanced alloys, reshaping, cutting, anodisa-
tion, etc.). To develop products by the specifications and needs of the buyer.

Vision, Mission 
and Values

Plan of  
Operations for 

the Impol Group 
in 2016

Strategic orientation 
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Policy:
• With the planned scale of operations in 2016, the Impol Group will guarantee the growth of its share-

holders and other financial stakeholders’ assets and simultaneously guarantee dividends and/or interest 
rates that are balanced with the policies listed in Impol’s long-term operating strategy. In terms of sales, 
the following sales outside the group (in EUR thousand) will be achieved: 

Estimate of gross profit for 2016 in EUR 000

Net revenue from sales 606,442

From the sale of products (tangible)  547,088

• In the domestic market 34,040

• In the foreign market 513,048

From the sale of services 2,182

• In the domestic market 1,701

• In the foreign market 481

From the sale of merchandise and materials 57,172

• In the domestic market 15,251

• In the foreign market 41,922

Change in inventories 0

• Opening inventories 10,373

• Closing inventories 10,373

Own products and services 0

Other operating revenue 1,348

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT 607,791

Planned indicators

Cash flow from current operations (in EUR 000) 41,043 

Added value per employee in EUR 46,606

EBITDA (in EUR 000) 47,802

EBIT (in EUR 000) 31,612

Net debt / EBITDA 3.20

Table 10: Planned realisation by type and market

Table 11: Planned indicators 2016

• The continuous expansion of the market will be guaranteed on any market where Impol is already pres-
ent. Priority will be given to the markets with lower input costs where greater dispersal of market risks is 
enabled. Market risks will be reduced by means of appropriate, cost-effective and rational insurance. In 
terms of aluminium sales, Impol continues to pursue the goal of achieving an over 20% share of the mar-
ket outside the EU, whereas in terms of the EU, it continues to pay special attention to the local market 
and to satisfy its need as comprehensively and fully as possible given its potential size.

• Special attention will continue to be paid to expanding the pre-painted strips and other product markets 
that attain a high net sales premium (sale premium above the aluminium price at the LME less the 
purchase premium).

• The development and investment policy will pursue the mainly balanced growth of the Company by 
simultaneously guaranteeing a higher level of security in the provision of input raw materials at an ac-
ceptable price, which is why further emphasis will be placed on minimising investments in current assets.

• In compliance with the starting points listed above, financial measures will be harmonised with Impol’s 
development and marketing policies as well as the liabilities taken upon by the controlling company 
towards long-term investors.
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Selection of 
Programmes of 

Operations

Highlights of Greater 
Importance from the 

Foreseen Results

• With regard to the provision of funds for non-current financial investments, Impol will establish con-
nections with other investors and banks for individual investments. In terms of current financing, it will 
include the existing bank funds and continue to provide sufficient dispersal of funds and reduce the scope 
of investments needed in current assets. 

• As the preservation and development of the existing jobs and the creation of new jobs are directly depen-
dent on sufficiently generated profit, the majority of the generated profit will be reinvested to ensure that 
EUR 10 thousand are invested in every single post annually to thus continue to preserve jobs.

• In order to optimise its costs, Impol will also continue with as much outsourcing as possible (Alcad – 
informatics, Simfin – finance and accounting, Tehnika-SET and Ates for current maintenance, etc.). 
Special attention will be paid to the fact that no part of the Group becomes dependent on an external 
contractor as a monopolist.

• Long-term investments, except for ongoing minor renovations, will be carried out in 2016 within the 
available external sources of financing. Own net cash flows will be used in their entirety to repay funds 
borrowed during the previous period. To provide for the settlement of such liabilities and the financing of 
new investments, up to EUR 30 million in additional long-term loans will be taken out and short-term 
loans on the level of the already granted amounts will be renewed.

• To minimise foreign exchange risks arising from exchange differences, purchasing will continue to have 
as many Aluminium raw material purchases carried out in EUR as possible. 

• In terms of raw material supply, Impol will seek sources which will facilitate purchase financing, cause a 
lower tying up of current assets and guarantee a higher level of security in the provision of an uninter-
upted business process.

• Special attention will continue to be paid to protection against risks incurred by constant changes in 
raw material prices. The Company will thus continue to deepen its risk management knowledge and 
apply it immediately. Within the framework of the assigned mandates and duties the Risk Management 
Committee (RME) will check the relevance of hedging, take appropriate measures and assign duties if 
necessary.

• Customer-oriented projects (deepening and upgrading of e-business, daily planning, etc.) will continue 
to provide customers with services of a high quality, tailored to their needs and expectations. 

• The information system (IT) will be upgraded towards an integrated information system in all companies 
of the Group. Information systems in the Group will be improved to enable them to monitor changes 
in the organisational structure as soon as possible and to prevent situations in which a rigid information 
system would compel us to ignore a change or carry it out incompletely. Impol will continue to carry 
out permanent internal auditing of the information system by promptly introducing improvements that 
rectify the deficiencies established. The IT Supervisory Board will continue to supervise the information 
system operation.

• The basic rules of operation of the Impol Group continue to remain the same. Some of the most import-
ant ones are:
• Relations among business entities in the Group can only be established on the basis of market prices 

if such prices exist. If they cannot be established, relations must be established on the basis of other 
methods: cost plus method, profit split method and transactional net margin method.

• The operations of one part of the Group cannot disturb the operations of the other parts thereof – 
costs of a process are borne by the programme originally incurring them.

• Business processes are organised on the basis of the Impol Code of Business Conduct.
• EUR 1.41 will be spent on dividends per share.

• The entire employee stimulation system will continue to build upon their performance throughout the 
entire year.

The development activities in 2016 will prioritise the resolution of problems regarding the two hot rolling mills 
by integrating the programme of the former TLM Šibenik, and the renewal of a hot rolling mill in Impol Seval 
and the beginning of launching a new programme of cast bars. Preference will be given to the investments 
in the market and design of production processes which will enable Impol to utilise the available capacities 
in subsequent periods. In search of profitable investment opportunities we will especially carefully monitor 
developments in the market of products for the industry of means of transport.

The expected operating results of the entire Impol Group (consolidated) are as follows (only selected indicators 
– all value indicators will be determined in EUR thousand unless otherwise specified):
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Table 12: Expected results in 2016

ESTIMATE OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT FOR 2016 1 Jan 2016–31 Dec 2016 (in 000 EUR)

Net revenue from sales 606,442

From the sale of products (tangible) 547,088

• In the domestic market 34,040

• In the foreign market 513,048

From the sale of services 2,182

• In the domestic market 1,701

• In the foreign market 481

From the sale of merchandise and materials 57,172

• In the domestic market 15,251

• In the foreign market 41,922

Change in value of inventories 0

• Opening inventories 10,373

• Closing inventories 10,373

Own products and services 0

Other operating revenue 1,348

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT 607,791

Costs of goods, material and services 508,618

Purchase value of goods sold 45,297

Costs of materials used 427,407

Costs of services 35,913

Labour costs 50,078

Costs of salaries 36,169

Social security costs 7,125

Other labour costs 6,785

• Of which for supplementary pension insurance 173

Write-downs 16,229

Depreciation 16,190

• Of which for intangible fixed assets 14,103

Operating expenses from revaluation of intangible assets and tangible assets 1

Revaluation of operating expenses for current assets 38

Other operating expenses 1,254

TOTAL OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES 576,179

Profit/loss from regular operations 31,612

TOTAL FINANCIAL REVENUE 1,372

Financial revenue from participating interests 45

a) Financial revenue from participating interests in other companies 39

b) Financial revenue from other investments 0

Financial revenue from loans granted 11

a) Financial revenue from loans to others 11

Financial revenue from operating receivables due from others 1,317

 a) From interest rates due from others 45

 b) Foreign exchange gains 975

Other financial revenue (discounts and forward transactions) 297



30

report - positive trends

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSES 10,297

Financial expenses from the impairments and write-offs of investments 0

 Other financial expenses from revaluation 0

Expenses from sale of financial investments 0

Financial expenses from financial liabilities 8,745

a) Financial expenses from loans received from associate companies 35

b) Financial expenses from loans received from banks 5,412

•  Interest rates due for current loans 2,124

•  Interest rates due for non-current loans 3,288

c) Financial expenses from bonds issued 1,830

d) Financial expenses incurred in connection with other financial liabilities 1,468

• Of which foreign exchange losses 938

Financial expenses from operating liabilities 1,552

a) Financial expenses from operating liabilities to trade 9

b) Financial expenses from other operating liabilities 1,543

• Of which foreign exchange losses 927

Net earnings before taxes 22,687

Income tax 3,313

Deferred taxes 0

Net profit/loss for the financial year 19,374

Table 13: Estimated balance sheet 

ESTIMATE OF BALANCE SHEET as at 31 December 2016 in EUR 000

 ASSETS

Fixed assets 151,277

Intangible fixed assets and non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue 2,373

• Cost 325

Non-current property rights                                490

• Acquired by means of pecuniary interest 490

• Acquired by means of own development 0

Goodwill 691

Advances for intangible fixed assets 0

Non-current deferred development costs 0

Other non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue                    1,192

• Tangible fixed assets 141,149

• Cost 401,090

Land and buildings                                           33,713

a) Land 3,825

b) Buildings 29,887

• Cost 75,600

Production equipment and machinery 95,038

• Cost 307,056

Other machinery and equipment 3,073

• Cost 18,433

Fixed assets being acquired 9,326

a) Tangible fixed assets under construction and manufacture 7,527

b) Advances to acquire tangible fixed assets 1,799
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Investment property                                         5,355

• Cost 10,664

Non-current investments 1,281

Non-current investments, excluding loans   1,184

a) Shares and participating interests in the Group                       0

b) Shares and participating interests in associate companies                     616

c) Other shares and participating interests                                     391

d) Other non-current investments 177

Non-current loans                                            97

a) Non-current loans to Group companies                                            

b) Non-current loans to others                                  97

• Other non-current financial receivables (loans, etc.) 97

c) Non-current unpaid called-up capital 0

Non-current operating receivables 0

Non-current operating receivables due from customers                         0

Non-current operating receivables due from others 0

Deferred tax receivables                                     1,119

CURRENT ASSETS 271,197

Assets (groups for disposal) for sale                     0

Inventories 106,465

Material 84,325

Work in process 12,571

Products and merchandise                                    6,820

• Products 4,659

• Merchandise 2,160

Advances for inventories 2,749

• In the domestic market 5

• In the foreign market 2,744

Current financial investments 9,029

Current financial investments, excluding loans                    2,822

a) Other shares and participating interests                                     0

• Of which to associate companies 0

b) Other current financial investments  2,822

Short-term loans                                           6,207

a) Short-term loans to others                                 6,207

• Of which to associate companies 0

b) Current unpaid called-up capital 0

Current operating receivables 126,575

Current operating receivables due from customers 95,397

• In the domestic market 4,231

• In the foreign market 91,166

• Of which current receivables due from associate companies 0

Current operating receivables due from others 31,178

• In the domestic market 493

• In the foreign market 2

• Other advances given 273

• Other receivables (VAT, etc.) 30,410

Cash and cash equivalents                                               29,127

Current deferred costs and accrued revenue                         2,876

TOTAL ASSETS 425,349
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TOTAL LIABILITIES                                 

Equity 153,883

Minority equity (including profit from the current year) 13,772

Called-up capital 4,452

Share capital 4,452

Uncalled-up capital (as deductions) 0

Capital reserves 10,751

Adjustment from revaluation of capital 10,751

Reserves from profit 6,428

Legal reserves 0

Reserves for treasury shares and own participating interests 0

• Treasury shares and own participating interests (as deductions) 0

• Statutory reserves 695

Other reserves from profit 5,733

Revaluation surplus + consolidation difference                                -240

Net profit brought forward                                  96,355

Net profit/loss for the financial year                            22,365

Minority equity profit/loss 

Provisions and non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue           2,166

Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 1,481

Other provisions 0

• Of which: Provisions for benefits 0

Non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue                          685

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 126,477

Non-current financial liabilities 124,944

Non-current financial liabilities to banks                         89,052

Non-current financial liabilities from bonds payable                      30,000

Other non-current financial liabilities                           5,892

Non-current operating liabilities 224

Non-current operating trade liabilities                 0

Non-current bills of exchange payable                                  0

Non-current operating liabilities from advance payments            0

Other non-current operating liabilities                           224

Deferred tax liabilities                                   1,309

CURRENT LIABILITIES 140,194

Liabilities included in groups for disposal                   0

Current financial liabilities                                66,165

Current financial liabilities to banks                        55,758

• Of which the current part of non-current liabilities 38,323

Current financial liabilities from bonds payable            10,000

Other current financial liabilities                          408

a) To other external parties 408

Current operating liabilities                                74,028

Current trade payables                54,925

a) In the domestic market 19,006

b) In the foreign market 35,919

Current bills of exchange payable 0



33

report - positive trends

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

Current operating liabilities from advance payments           542

a) In the domestic market 19

b) In the foreign market 523

Other current operating liabilities                          18,562

a) To employees 3,032

b) Tax liabilities 14,356

c) Other liabilities 1,174

Current accrued costs and deferred revenue 2,630

TOTAL LIABILITIES 425,350

NET CASH FLOW – RECAPITULATION Total (in EUR 000) 31 Dec 2016

Inflows

• Net profit 22,365

• Depreciation 16,190

• Additionally taken out loans 56,700

• Dividends received

• Difference in provisions

• Cash at bank 70,000

Outflows 0

• Repayments of loans 84,675

• Dividend payment 1,580

Available for investments 79,000

Planned investments 49,262

• Of which non-current (fixed assets and financial investments) 34,262

• Of which current (current assets) 15,000

Anticipated indicators for 2016

Cost recovery ratio

(equity + provisions)/(inventories + material investments + non-material investments)  59.7%

Financial reliability ratios  

a) Equity/all sources of operating assets 36.2%

b) Equity + non-current liabilities/business liabilities 65.9%

 c) Equity/fixed assets (carrying amounts) 103.4%

Creditworthiness level  

a) Equity + non-current liabilities/fixed assets + inventories       108.8%

b) Golden balance rule = non-current sources/non-current investments  185.3%

c) Net debt/operating revenue 44.4%

Level of financial independence in %  

(possibility of liability reimbursement with property)    157.9%

General liquidity indicator–current ratio

(current assets/current liabilities) 193.4%

Table 14: Estimate of net cash flow 

Table 15: Anticipated indicators for 2016 
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Day-to-day liquidity indicator–quick ratio

(current assets–inventories) / current liabilities 117.5%

Current liquidity indicator–doomsday ratio  

Rapid test  = (cash + securities) / current liabilities 20.8%

Financing cost indicators  

a) Financial expenses / expenses 1.5%

b) Current liabilities / (current liabilities + non-current liabilities) 52.6%

Level of liabilities covered  with non-current sources 49.9%

Level of inventories covered with non-current sources 37.9%

Equity/fixed assets 101.7%

Total assets turnover ratio 1.43 

• (Net profit/loss) / business assets 5.33%

• Net earnings / (equity–net profit/loss of the current year) 17.25%

Level of reproductive capacity 25.26%

Ratio of depreciation to intangible and tangible assets 10.70%

Total dividends / capital 1.03%

Total dividends / called-up capital 35.49%

Total revenue / total expenses 104.37%

Operating revenue / operating expenses 105.49%

Operating revenue / capital 394.97%

Revenue/employees (annual criterion) (in EUR 000) 289 

Average number of employees (2,088 paid hours/ employee) 2,101

Oper. revenue/(fixed and current assets + labour costs) 143.86%

Ratio (operating revenue / costs)       105.49%

Ratio (financial revenue / financial expenses) 13.3%

Cash flow from current operations (in EUR 000) 41,043 

Economic value added (in EUR 000) 15,378 

Revenue profitability in % 3.7%

Operating revenue/(equity + non-current liabilities) 2.2 

AV / tonne (in EUR  thousand/ t) 0.22 

Labour costs in % of realisation (revenue from the sale of merchandise excluded) 9.12%

Added value per employee in EUR 46,606

EBITDA 47,802

EBIT 31,612

Margin 3.7%

Debt / equity 173%

Long-term loans / equity 82%

Equity / assets 36.2%

Net debt / EBITDA 3.39

Revenue generated from operation (in EUR  million) 607.8

Depreciation 16,190

WACC 

• Weighted average cost of borrowed capital 4.1%

• Weighted average cost of total asset sources (dividend=cost) 3.3%

ROC (return of capital = net profit / loss / (equity + equity from the previous year)/2) 15.9%
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We have exceeded …
The planned net profit by 

38% 
The planned net cash flow by 

16% 
The planned scope of production by 

3% 
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

IMPOL 2015 – YEAR OF GROWTH

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

YEAR OF 
SURPLUSES
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In 2015, the Impol Group generated net sales revenue of EUR 546.1 million, which is 12% more than in 
2014. The revenues generated in the domestic market account for 6.4% in the structure of sales revenues, 
and compared to the previous year they increased by 11.4%. Revenues generated in foreign markets ac-
counted for 93.6 percent of total revenues and in comparison with 2014 they rose by 12.4%. Most of the 
revenues generated by the Impol Group in foreign markets are achieved in the markets of the European 
Union, which is presented in the report later.

• Operating expenses of the Impol Group amounting to EUR 518.6 million are by 11.2% higher than 
in the previous year. The costs of goods, material and services rose by 11.5% and account for 86.8% in 
the structure.

• The most important category of operating expenses is the cost of material which amounted to EUR 
360.9 million in 2015. Their proportion in total operating expenses equals 69.6%. The largest share of 
costs of material represents the costs of raw materials, and the remaining costs are the costs of energy 
products, water, disposal of packaging and other materials.

• Costs of services which account for 7.0% of total operating expenses amounted to EUR 36.3 million 
in 2015 and increased by 13.7% compared to 2014.

• Labour costs of EUR 46.4 million increased by 8.5% compared to 2014.
• Write-offs in the amount of EUR 20.7 million are 11.7% higher than in the previous year, mainly as 

a result of higher operating expenses from revaluation of current assets. Depreciation charge in 2015 
amounted to EUR 15.1 million, which is almost 7% less than in 2014.

• Other operating expenses in 2015 amounted to EUR 1.2 million, which is approximately at the level 
of the previous year. The biggest proportion of other operating expenses is the cost associated with the 
environmental taxes (concession for water, land use fee, etc.).

• In the 2015 financial year, the Impol Group generated EUR 33.3 million of earnings before interest 
and taxes (EBIT) and EUR 48.3 million of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 
(EBITDA). 

• In 2015, the Impol Group generated EUR 7.2 million of loss from financing (2014: EUR -8.4 million). 
• Financial expenses mainly include liabilities to bank and amounted to EUR 5.2 million (2014: EUR 

6.0 million).
• In 2015, the Impol Group generated net profit of EUR 22.5 million.

At the end of 2015, the assets of the Impol Group equalled EUR 362.4 million, which is EUR 35.2 million 
more than total assets of the Group at the end of 2014. The changes in assets were primarily influenced by 
the increase of liquid assets.

Non-current assets decreased by EUR 4.0 million, primarily as a result of less investment compared to 
depreciation charge.

As at 31 December 2015, current assets amount to EUR 229.3 million, which is EUR 40.2 million more 
than as at 31 December 2014. Inventories dropped by EUR 11.0 and million, operating receivables by EUR 
12.3 million, resulting from the decreased value of aluminium on the stock exchange, whereas liquid assets 
increased by EUR 58.3 million as a result of the issue of bonds at the end of the year and a favourable result 
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, total liabilities of the Impol Group amounted to EUR 362.4 million and in-
creased in 2015 by EUR 35.2 million. Compared to 2014, the group reduced its current liabilities by EUR 
25.0 million and increased non-current liabilities by EUR 38.9 million. The increase of non-current liabil-
ities was the result of the issue of bonds.

Total capital of the Impol Group increased in 2015 by EUR 21.4 million. Net profit after tax contributed 
most to this result.

Impol Group 
Performance

Notes on the 
Statement of  

Financial  
Position of the 

Impol Group

Analysis of the performance
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Impol 2000 d.d. (hereinafter: the Company) generated net sales revenues of EUR 15.9 million (the sales 
of products, services and merchandise), which is 12.7% more than in 2014. In the domestic market, the 
Company generated net revenues arising from the sales of products, services and merchandise of EUR 13.5 
million, which is 0.4% more than in the previous year. In foreign markets, it generated net revenues of EUR 
2.4 million, which is 100.0% less than in 2014. In 2015, operating expenses increased by 29.8% compared to 
2014 and stood at EUR 14.6 million. Costs of goods and material sold account for 68.5% of total operating 
expenses and are followed by labour costs equalling 21.7%, and costs of services with 7.8%.

In 2015, the Company recorded EUR 1.38 million of operating profit. In 2014, operating profit amounted 
to EUR 2.9 million.

Operating cash flow (EBITDA) in the amount of EUR 1.4 million was positive. In 2015, the Company 
generated EUR 1.9 million of profit from financing resulting from financial revenues, financial revenues 
from participating interests in Group. Financial expenses of EUR 1.0 million are EUR 0.6 million higher 
than in 2014 as a result of financial expenses from other financial liabilities. In 2015, the Company generat-
ed net profit after tax of EUR 3.1 million while in 2014 it amounted to EUR 2.1 million.

At the end of 2015, the assets of Impol 2000 d.d. equalled EUR 107.6 million, which is 44.2% more than 
total assets of the Company at the end of 2014. Non-current assets remained at the same level as in 2014. 
The increase in assets was a result of the increase of cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2015, total liabilities of the Company stood at EUR 107.6 million and were EUR 33.0 
million higher than the liabilities of the previous year. The increase is the result of the issue of bonds in the 
amount of EUR 50.0 million and the repayment of comercial papers of EUR 20.0 million.

The capital of the Company of EUR 55.1 million was 4.0% or EUR 2.1 million higher than in 2014.
As at 31 December 2015, net debt, calculated as a difference between total financial liabilities and cash and 
cash equivalents and short-term financial investments, amounted to EUR 14.5 million, which is EUR 2.5 
million less than in 2014.

Performance of 
Impol 2000 d.d.

Notes on the 
Statement of  
Financial  
Position of  
Impol 2000 d.d.



YEAR OF GROWTH

40 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

The most characteristic developments in 2015 can be drawn in the following observations:
• Moderate optimism was preserved in the sales markets facilitating a quantitative increase in sales.
• In terms of the purchase of aluminium raw material at the LME, purchase prices were marked by a 

drop in basic quoted aluminium prices, including a tendency of purchase premium decreasing.

Events 
in 2015

Impol 2015 – a year of growth

Figure 2: The movement of aluminium prices on the LME in 2008–2015

• The status of orders continuously demanded to carry them out in short delivery periods. Such a meth-
od of executing orders requires an adjustment of measures pertaining to the purchase of raw materials, 
stock financing, the adjustment of technological and technical procedures and internal organisational 
solutions, which is why special attention was paid thereto throughout the entire business year. The 
number of orders rose during the first half of the year, thus prompt gaining of new orders facilitated 
the achievement of a satisfactory scope of operations in terms of quantity and value.

• Impol remains in the top 10 Slovenian export companies and among the top 15 largest companies in 
the country in absolute terms.

• The Impol Group achieved an EBITDA of EUR 48.4 million that also includes almost EUR 33.3 
million of operating profit and EUR 15.1 million in depreciation. EBITDA rose by 24% compared to 
the previous year.

• The quantitative volume of aluminium product sales of Impol rose by 3% in 2015 compared to the 
previous year.

• The production volume of aluminium product for customers that are involved in means of transport 
production processes continues to be on the rise. Quantitatively speaking, the structure of sales by 
intended use of Impol products is estimated to be as in Table 16.

• Operations pertaining to the aluminium processing programme constitute the largest part of the entire 
production and sales process at Impol. Revenue pertaining thereto constitutes 99% of all revenue gen-
erated on external markets, whereas the remaining part of revenue is generated from services carried 
out mostly on the domestic market.

• The programme includes a broad range of products, which reduces Impol’s exposure to market fluc-
tuations. 

• The impact of market fluctuations continues to be reduced also by a relatively large-scale dispersal of 
customers, without any dominant or exclusive customers.

• Our sales continue to be concentrated mostly on nearby markets in Europe, as only a small number of 
products of the Impol Group programme can tolerate higher costs of transportation. It is also more 
difficult to provide high-quality sales and after-sales services at a larger distance.
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Intended use Share

Retail 45.18%

Automotive industry 20.98%

Construction business, constructions 13.46%

Consumer goods 8.42%

Food industry 6.41%

Pharmaceutical industry 2.12%

Electrical industry 1.88%

Other 0.90%

Machinery and equipment 0.65%

Table 16: Intended use of products

• The share of sales outside the EU continues to rise slightly, and Germany continues to be our largest 
individual market. The Impol Group has established a permanent business partnership with customers 
from about 50 countries, although customers from the EU prevail.

Figure 3: Sales of products by region

83,35% EU

8,25% Europe-other

4,76% Slovenia

2,88% North America

0,22% South America

0,27% Africa

0,19% Asia

0,08% Australia



YEAR OF GROWTH

42 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

• The pre-painted aluminium strip production line continues to require intensive acquisition of new 
production knowledge, new markets and new methods of cooperation with our customers intended to 
ultimately refocus the entire area of unfinished strip sales to the sales of pre-painted strips.

• The productivity of the Group continues to grow as expected. The aluminium product sales volume per 
employee of the Group rose in 2015 by a good 1% compared to the preceding year.

• Casting capacity renovation works were continued and a project to increase homogenisation capacities 
started and is expected to complete in the first quarter of 2016. 

• The structure of sources of finance also continues to improve by financing as much as about 35% of all 
investments by equity, meaning that this type of financing improved by 8% compared with the preced-
ing year. In 2015, the Impol Group managed to reduce the scope of bank loans taken out compared 
with the preceding year by 5%. However, financial liabilities rose by 15% compared to 2014. In 2015, 
Impol issued bonds amounting to EUR 50 million for the first time in order to finance a cycle of in-
vestments for further long-term growth and development.

• In 2015, the Impol Group invested almost EUR 12 million in non-current assets.
• The need for short-term investments of the Group decreased during the year, as the value of the vol-

ume of operations dropped due to the decrease of basic quoted aluminium raw material prices and 
despite the rise in the sales volume. The largest percentage decrease in short-term investments related 
to the decrease of investments in inventories and receivables.

• In 2015, the Impol Group reached almost EUR 54 thousand in added value per employee, which is an 
18% rise compared with the preceding year.

• In 2015, a new company in Croatia was established in order to extend the rolling programmes and 
the possibility of the supply of raw materials at a more favourable price. The company will start its 
operations in 2016.

• All operations in 2015 were organised in compliance with the renewed Code of Business Conduct of 
the Impol Group.

Figure 4: Sales of products by country
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Figure 5: Working capital by year
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Table 17: Overview of results of the Impol Group (consolidated for the period 2002–2015) in EUR million

Year/indicator 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Consolidated net 
sales revenue 275.3 335.4 359.5 347.6 414.4 485.9 445.9 303.8 421.1 473.6 463.2 460.8 486.3 546.1

 – From sold products 193.5 190.8 211.9 257.5 323.4 426.7 382.9 274.7 352.7 405.7 410.8 403.8 426.9 481.4

Consolidated  
operating expenses 266.1 337.6 364.8 343.1 419.2 429.6 428.9 292.3 414.4 448.2 448.9 444.4 466.2 518.575

– Depreciation        6.3 7.9 11 14.1 14.4 15.1 15.7 12.1 14.4 15.6 16.6 15.4 16.2 15.1

Operating profit 10.1 8.8 1.9 12.3 12.9 38.7 21.2 15.2 16 26.3 23 21.3 22.8 33.2

Financial revenues/
expenses difference -5.6 -6.4 -9.4 -12.7 -6.4 -14.5 -12.7 -14.3 -9.7 -11.1 -9 -7.4 -8.4 -7.3

Profit or loss  4.6 3.4 -6.8 2.3 6 21 8 0.7 6 13.6 12.3 12.9 12.4 22.5

Cash flow from 
current operations 10.9 11.3 4.2 16.3 20.4 36.1 23.7 12.7 20.4 29.2 28.9 28.3 28.5 38.3

Equity 83.8 83.5 78.4 81.7 86.6 53.1 56.9 56.3 60 73.6 83.5 95.6 106.5 127.6

Assets 199.6 246.3 271.2 290.5 337.2 317.2 309.9 293.7 315.9 320.1 330.1 307.6 327.6 362.4

Share book value in 
EUR (including the 
equity of minority 
owners)

     49.8 53.3 52.9 56.2 69.2 79.9 89.61 99.88 119.6

Added value per 
employee in EUR 18.807 24.971 25.180 29.888 30.764 49.786 41.556 35.111 39.381 47.441 44.077 43.241 45.815  54.712

Table 17 presents key data and indicators. 

Figure 6: Value of sales and trend
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A short overview of our operations in Table 17 and 18 shows that, in 2015, Impol significantly increased the 
scope of its operations in terms of value from the previous year, followed in parallel by the movement of the 
cash flow and economic viability of our operations. Less than half of the cash flow from current operations 
was achieved from depreciation and approximately 60% from profit. An increase in revenue was achieved 
mainly due to a greater volume of sales of aluminium products.

This list of key performance indicators shows that the 2015 financial year was one of the more successful 
years in a comparable period.

It has also been found that the Impol Group managed to somewhat improve its financing structure. This is 
mostly due to the highly conservative actions of our shareholders in relation to the payment of dividends, 
since based on their decisions the majority of profit is re-invested in the company and thus provides it with 
an important portion of resources for continuous development.

Year/indicator 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Equity/all sources of 
operating assets 42.00% 33.90% 28.90% 28.10% 25.70% 16.70% 18.40% 19.10% 19.00% 23.40% 25.80% 31.10% 32.50% 35.2%

Golden rule of 
balance sheet = 
non-current assets/
non-current invest-
ments  

125.50% 91.10% 77.60% 77.50% 83.40% 90.70% 90.10% 93.70% 105.20% 118.80% 129.90% 116.70% 135.00% 184.5%

Net debt/operating 
revenues 41.70% 48.40% 52.10% 59.70% 60.10% 54.00% 56.30% 78.10% 60.40% 51.00% 52.60% 45.70% 45.10% 42.6

Option to settle liabil-
ities with property    174.00% 151.80% 144.80% 140.10% 135.40% 120.90% 123.30% 124.50% 124.20% 131.30% 135.70% 146.20% 149.40% 155.9%

Financial expenses/
expenses 3.40% 3.70% 4.20% 4.40% 2.80% 2.90% 3.90% 4.10% 3.60% 3.50% 3.00% 2.00% 2.10% 1.3%

Asset turnover ratio 1.39 1.38 1.34 1.26 1.27 1.6 1.49 1.06 1.38 1.53 1.44 1.52 1.5 1.52

Net earnings/(equity 
- net profit/loss of the 
current year)

5.62% 4.15% -7.96% 2.85% 7.28% 70.03% 16.36% 1.14% 10.96% 22.47% 18.98% 15.30% 13.20% 20.87%

Income/employee 
ratio 133.976 177.666 196.893 197.777 229.657 275.835 251.8 185.724 249.897 266.937 255.729 255.074 262.77 299.84

Economic value add-
ed (in EUR thousand) 600 -584 -10,501 -1,599 1,898 18,511 5,317 -2,010 3,176 10,114 9,775 8,330 7,391 16,474

Margin 1.70% 1.00% -1.90% 0.70% 1.40% 4.30% 1.80% 0.20% 1.40% 2.90% 3.00% 2.79% 2.56% 4.13%

Debt/equity 136% 193% 238% 252% 287% 491% 439% 420% 421% 323% 282% 218% 205% 182%

Table  18: Key indicators     
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Through Impol-TLM* d.o.o. in Croatia which the Impol Group established in 2015, the Group managed to 
purchase Adrial Ulaganja d.o.o. on 2 March 2016 and leased production assets to set up the programme of 
rolled aluminium products in Šibenik. Impol-TLM d.o.o. employed 208 persons who started preparations 
for the start of the production on 10 March 2016.

Important events after the end 
of the financial year

* In September 2015, a company was 
established in Croatia. At the begin-
ning of March 2016, it was renamed 
to Impol-TLM d.o.o.
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The predominant activity in the Impol Group is the processing of aluminium into rolled, extruded, drawn, 
stamped, forged and other types of aluminium products (the main activities are registered as 24.530 and 
25.500), but the Group also performs various other, less important activities. The majority of activities in 
the Group are organised within specific companies that conduct business with one another in compliance 
with the market rules.

In 2015, Impol was upgrading its sales programme towards the development of products with a higher 
added value which are of great interest to customers from more demanding industries. For this purpose, 
new products, alloys and test procedures were developed, which was enabled by the past investments into 
production capacities focusing on the products intended for the markets with a long-term growth potential. 
Given the current market trends and the generated sales of these products, we can conclude that this was 
the right decision, enabling Impol to meet the demands of one of the more demanding market segments.
Investment in increasing the casting capacity contributed to the increase in the share of own production of 
input materials, maintenance and achievement of higher quality products, the development of sophisticated 
alloys and increase in the share of secondary aluminium processing.

In 2015, Impol set the foundations to ensure the continued growth of the company in two key programmes 
– rolling and extrusion. In the field of rolling we are faced with the challenge of adequate management 
of economies of scale, while the extrusion programmes aim at increasing the complexity of manufactured 
products.

Overview of operations

Year/Indicator 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016p

Available aluminium 
production capacities 
in millions of tonnes

   48.57 50.20 52.90 5.60 62.30 66.90 71.91 Data not 
available

Global production of 
primary aluminium 
in millions of tonnes

33.94 38.13 39.97 37.71 42.35 45.79 47.79 50.60 53.06 57.36 60.29

Global consumption 
of primary alumin-
ium in millions of 
tonnes

34.40 37.85 37.52 34.23 40.70 44.50 47.30 49.90 53.30 57.08 60.42

Incurred imbalance (+ 
aluminium surplus, – 
aluminium deficit) in 
millions of tonnes

-0.46 0.28 2.45 3.48 1.65 1.29 0.49 0.70 -0.24 0.29 0.14

LME cash price:  
USD/tonne – annual 
average

2.566 2.639 2.569 1.665 2.191 2.423 2.052 1.889 1.867 1.662 1.475

Table 19: Global production of primary aluminium

(Source: SG 2006–2009, DB AG / 
London 4. 3. 2015  2010–2015, http://
www.reportlinker.com, http://www.

world-aluminium.org)

In terms of global processing of produced primary aluminium, the Impol Group achieved a 0.31% pro-
cessing share compared to newly produced aluminium. In 2015, the share fell from 0.32% in 2014. In 
compliance with its strategic orientations, Impol continues to focus more on the added value in the product 
rather than on the quantity, even though the latter continues to constitute an important focus, since fixed 
costs in a mass production process can only be properly contained with a sufficient quantity of products. 
As the global processing of aluminium, including the processing of secondary recyclable aluminium already 
exceeds 70 million tonnes annually, Impol’s share in total processing amounts to slightly less than three parts 
per thousand (3‰).  

In 2015, the turnover in terms of value increased compared to the previous year.
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Until 1950, Impol processed only copper; aluminium processing has been under way since 1950 (the pro-
gramme is described in further detail at http://www.impol.com) when the total global annual production of 
primary electrolyte aluminium amounted to as little as just over 1 million tonnes, whereas the current figure 
is 60 million tonnes. The aluminium processing industry is characterised by shaping the sales prices of its 
products in such a way that sales premiums are negotiated with customers given the primary aluminium 
price on the LME. The turnover in terms of value rises or falls independently from the quantitative volume 
of sales and also independently from changes in sales margins. 

The same also applies to the purchase prices for aluminium raw materials, which are shaped by negotiating 
a purchase premium with suppliers given the quoted aluminium prices, usually including all delivery costs 
under the conditions of Incoterms DDP; the preceding year was marked by the introduction of a regional 
annuity or purchase premium, which is becoming constant and normal by making its amount public in 
Metal Bulletin. The aluminium price significantly impacts the size of direct costs; however, subject to appro-
priate forward collateral (hedging), its fluctuation should not have a direct impact on the operating results. 

The industry is rather stable in terms of basic aluminium and alloy processing technology. The greatest 
dynamics can be observed in the field of process control, quality and supply chain optimisation processes. 
Impol spends EUR 2–3 million annually on process control improvements. In such a way we are safeguard-
ing the competitiveness of our products and services in the future as well. Investments are expected to result 
in the share of European-wide competitive B2B products rising to above 70%. Other standard products are 
of particular importance for utilising the remaining capacities which efficiently complement the sales mix 
at a high productivity rate and low processing costs.

Figure 7: The share of Impol in the use of produced primary aluminium in 2015
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The prevailing sales programme of the Impol Group is focused on the production and sales of aluminium 
products. Two basic groups of aluminium products are covered – rolled and extruded products. We also 
manufacture two niche programmes (forgings and slugs). Other products and services of the Impol Group 
account for less than 1% of the sales.
The entire production programme is based on orders and is triggered by sales orders. Customers are divided 
into two segments: distributers and final customers, whereby the share of sales to final customers has been 
increasing in recent years in order to maintain the stability of operations and the transparency of manage-
ment of the production, sales and purchasing.

Impol supplies a wide range of aluminium rolled, extruded and, to a lesser extent, additionally processed 
products (forged, pre-painted, anodised, etc.) manufactured upon the individual request of the customer, 
thus the entire production is designed and run as individual production carried out on a mass scale so as to 
meet the price-related expectations of our customers.

In 2015, the majority of Impol’s sales were still focused on the European Union where, including sales in 
Slovenia, about 83% of our products are sold. Last year, a share of sales to Germany additionally strength-
ened accounting for more than a third of the entire market of the Impol Group. The second largest market 
is Italy with a 15-percent share. The sales in other countries is more dispersed as none of these countries 
reaches more than a 5-percent market share.

In 2015, the share of sales in the domestic market slightly increased, suggesting a slow recovery of the 
Slovenian economy. For various reasons, long-distance transport of aluminium products (costs of transport, 
impact on the product quality, various quality and technical conditions) is not profitable and the sales are 
focused on markets that are not located at excessive distances from the production site. Only certain niche 
products can be sold to more distant markets. The sales to the USA strengthened in the previous year owing 
to a favourable euro/dollar exchange rate.  

Products and 
Services

Market and 
Customers

Figure  8: Shares of sales by product programme
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Impol continues to preserve dispersal among markets, customers and industries, thus following the guide-
line that no customer shall achieve a dominant share. The sales are dispersed to a big number of customers, 
an individual customer as a rule does not exceed 10% of total production. Our strategic positioning is 
additionally enhanced by a diversified production programme. The customers of Impol products are from 
various segments. The largest shares represent transport (21%), construction business (13%) and consumer 
goods (8%).

The most realistic presentation of the trends of growth is based on the quantities of aluminium products in 
tonnes. The data on turnover in terms of value is distorted by the price movements on the LME.

Figure 10: Customer by market segment

Figure 9: Sales by region expressed in percentage
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Within the Impol Group, the sales of aluminium are mainly carried out through Impol d.o.o. while the 
sales of other products and services are done directly by the Group companies that deal with the concerned 
market activities. Impol d.o.o. continues to carry out all services related to the sales of products and sales 
departments of other business entities that form part of the Impol Group.

Impol’s aluminium production programme is divided into the standard and specialised programmes. The 
standard programme is intended for sales to retailers (43%) that purchase standard products for re-sale pur-
poses. The specialised programme, on the other hand, is intended for direct sales to final customers (57%), 
for whom products are made on the basis of specific designs (specific forms, alloys, mechanical and chemical 
properties, etc.). Such a division facilitates a high level of operating safety and has proved to be appropriate 
in all market fluctuations. 

In terms of standard programme sales, sales agreements are concluded in a form of prompt orders, whereas 
contracts for specialised programmes are, as a rule, concluded on a longer-term basis for a period of one year 
in advance, based on which deliveries are carried out following recalls. Impol now possesses the ability to 
meet the majority of demand within a deadline that, as a rule, does not exceed one month, unless demand 
significantly exceeds the capacities available.

Impol sells its products to industrial customers who continue to process Impol’s products which are thus 
considered an input raw material. Customers and suppliers are not gained in accordance with the traditional 
marketing principles but mainly on the basis of being familiar with one another in the industry and the 
established goodwill in this closed business environment. 

Significant achievements in sales 
• The sales of extruded products managed to increase and excellent utilisation of available production 

capacities was achieved.
• We increased the sales of profiles based on orders and achieved a higher value added of products. 
• The demand for foils increased in 2015.
• An effective and geographically evenly distributed network was developed.
• Price ratios in the market were successfully managed.
• The risks caused by market development in terms of fluctuations of input raw material prices were 

mitigated by improving the formula in the conclusion of contracts.
• We managed to retain all customers and even increase sales to some of them.

Figure 11: Trend of the sales of sold quantities of products
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The Impol Group has organised strategic purchasing which includes the conclusion of purchase agreements 
for raw materials and services, investment goods and various types of consumables. By doing this, we pro-
vide for uniform purchasing conditions for the companies in the Group and make use of the economies of 
scale on the market.

Primary and secondary aluminium in various forms make up the largest share in terms of raw material pur-
chasing. Given the fact that Impol is a processor with no raw material sources of its own, appropriate raw 
materials must be purchased for the production of every single product. The largest share in terms of raw 
material purchasing is made up by primary aluminium ingots (50%) and secondary aluminium in a form 
of aluminium scrap (17%) which are, together with alloying elements, processed in our own foundries in 
advanced aluminium alloys. During recent years, Impol has intensively promoted the consumption of sec-
ondary aluminium. The field of primary aluminium is characterised by a small number of providers thereof 
on the free market, resulting in reduced competition and greater dependency on a few major providers. 
Aluminium is also a very interesting raw material on the market for large merchants and banks seeking to 
profit from the financing of inventories, which hinders the process of purchasing of our most important raw 
material. We have managed to ensure a regular supply by concluding strategic purchase contracts and by 
maintaining business relationships with all of our global providers.

In the field of secondary aluminium, the Impol Group is active both on the market – by establishing loop-
backs with customers – and in production management – with a cost- or technology-efficient re-melting 
method. To this end Impol started and concluded the investment in state-of-the-art technology and equip-
ment in the foundry.

Purchase premiums for all forms of aluminium experienced a downward trend in 2015. All our purchasing 
contracts for 2015 were concluded on the so-called »floating« MB basis so that favourable market develop-
ments were fully reflected in the operations of the Impol Group.

Low LME price: in terms of financing working capital, it positively affected our operations; however this 
is also one of the reasons why the selection of the providers of primary aluminium in the SE Europe has 
shrunk. The negative trend in LME-prices also leads to pessimistic atmosphere on the market, and despite 
the fact that the contango increasingly narrowed and moved into backwardation in early 2016, the global 
stocks of aluminium are still enormous, causing concern in the markets, which is reflected in the falling 
LME-prices.

Purchase of other materials and services: due to good liquidity of the Group, standing out in the difficult 
Slovenian business environment, we were able to achieve lower purchase prices, which mirrored in effective 
cost control in 2015.

Purchasing

Purchasing of 
Aluminium Raw 
Materials

Main Characteristics of 
Purchasing in 2015

Figure 12: Movement in purchase premium
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R&D activities at the Impol Group are organised in multiple layers. Investment development is carried out 
by the parent company Impol 2000, which has been the coordinator of the Group's development activities 
since 2015 and it also heads the registered Impol research group. The group carries out research assignments 
that are awarded to the company through tenders. Applied development is carried out at Impol LLT, Impol 
FT, Impol Seval, Impol PCP and Impol R in R, whereas the Technological Development Department of 
the parent company Impol 2000 d.d. (Impol d.o.o. until 2015) is in charge of coordination, it assists in the 
formulation of appropriate assignments and supervises the implementation of applied assignments.

In 2015, 32 research-development assignments were carried out generating a total of EUR 1.8 million of 
economic gain. In addition, the cost controlling method used for research projects was updated, being more 
transparent now. 16 new technologies were introduced into the production processes and 6 new alloys cus-
tomised to the specific needs of our customers were developed, and the properties of 6 existing alloys were 
improved. To meet the needs of our customers, 13 new products were developed last year. 

In the past year we did not apply for funding of research projects to be granted subsidies, since the calls were 
prepared so that large companies had practically no possibility to apply. We took part in the implementation 
of the Slovenian Research Agency's project “Simulation of industrial solidification processes under the 
influence of electromagnetic field”.

In October 2015 the 11th research symposium was organised where Impol's researchers presented their 
achievements and we got acquainted with the examples of good practice in other Slovene companies.

In 2015, the modernization of foundry and hot-rolling capacities continued and a project to increase the 
homogenization and forging capacities started. 

The table below presents also the investments into current assets amounting to EUR 40 million; however 
this is reflected in the increase in cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2015 due to the issue of bonds. The 
investments in inventories and receivables as a significant proportion of current assets dropped.

R&D Activities

Investment 
Activity

Development and investment processes

Table 20: Volume of investments (in EUR million)

Figure 13: Volume of investment in fixed assets

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Investment in acquisition of shares / stakes    0.1 0.1  

Investment in fixed assets 12.0 14.0 12.7 18.6 18.7 20

Investment in current assets 40.8 25.5 -10 5.6 -0.6 20.6

Total 52.8 29.5 2.7 24.3 18.2 40.6

In 2015, special emphasis was placed on minor investments and the preparations for a major investment 
cycle in 2016 and 2017.
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In 2015, the Impol Group continued to consolidate the structure of its financing sources by financing 35% 
of total investments with equity. Compared to the preceding year, it improved the structure of its financing 
sources on account of an increase in long-term sources as compared to short-term sources.

Owing to the need to ensure adequate repayment of long-term and short-term loans taken out by all Group 
companies and to guarantee a higher share of equity as a source for the financing of investments in durable 
current assets, the Impol Group continues to maximise the use of profit for these purposes. Profit generated 
by Group companies is thus sufficiently concentrated and allocated to investments that yield the highest 
profits and feature the shortest repayment periods.

In 2015, the Group also included alternative financing sources - bonds - in its financing and thus managed 
to reduce its liabilities to banks. 

The company devotes special attention to the engagement of assets in short-term investments (inventories, 
receivables, cash, other) and their continuous optimisation so as to avoid problems that are difficult to 
manage such as a shortage of funds or reduced availability of said funds from external short-term financing 
sources.
Dividends are determined in accordance with the adopted long-term strategy.

Shareholders provide support to the company through the dividend policy and by approving the operating 
strategy and plans as they are aware that profit is to a great extent recognised as a future development cost 
only in the marketplace, which is why the dividend policy is formulated correspondingly.

All long-term investments were initiated solely on the basis of a prior decision of the Management Board.
No significant changes in the ownership structure within the General Meeting are expected in 2015. The 
company has also not foreseen the establishment of a special reserve fund nor an intervention in its own 
ownership structure. 
 

Financing and Dividend Policy
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Risk management in the Impol Group is 
based on the principle that assessment 
and management of risk is an integral 
part of all business activities.

Basic guidelines
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RISK TYPES AND THEIR MANAGEMENT 
THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF SPECIAL 

MEASURES

RISK 
MANAGEMENT – 

PRESERVING 
STABILITY
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The exposure to various risks is regularly monitored in the Impol Group and measures to manage these 
risks are adopted accordingly. In the Impol Group, risk management is based on the principle that the risk 
assessment and management is the integral part of all business activities.

Active risk management is the primary responsibility of individual business areas which are responsible for 
the establishment of appropriate and effective internal controls and the implementation of business activi-
ties in accordance with prescribed restrictions and given strategic objectives:
The second level comprises of the Risk Management Committee whish is tasked to:

1. determine the most important areas of risks in the Impol system, identify risks and draft proposals to 
decrease them and submit the proposals to the Management Board;
2. address important business events and identify the most significant risks in advance and the measures 
to decrease;
3. examine potential methods and procedures for risk minimisation, propose their use and monitor the 
implementation of measures aiming at risk reduction together with the assessment of the results of this 
process.

The third level is the Internal Audit which periodically reviews the effectiveness and reliability of the inter-
nal control environment in accordance with the regulatory requirements. 

The Impol Group faces several risks within the scope of its business process.

Risk management

Table 21: Types of risks and their management through the application of special measures

Business risks Risk description Management method employed Exposure

Market and price 
risks

Sales:
• Market prices do not keep in step with changes in purchase pric-

es or they only adjust to the latter with a lag of several months, 
which is why we perform intensive coordination in this respect 
with our customers.

• Customer service – delays resulting from production stoppages, 
inadequately organised logistics cause excessive costs and 
delays. 

Purchasing:
• Aluminium – unexpected events in the areas of prices and 

purchase premiums, exchange rate risk (negative exchange rate 
differences), unreliable supply sources and associated negative 
effects on production, liquidity gaps caused by the need to 
purchase large quantities all at once. 

• Energy products – unexpected increase in prices, shortage of 
readily available sources.

• Conclusion of contracts by determining sales premiums so that 
the changes in purchase premiums are translated in the sales 
premiums.

• Continuous training for quality and full compliance with all the 
obligations.

• Conclusion of contracts for longer, at least one year delivery 
periods.

• Integration of suppliers as financers.
• Majority of energy is purchased for a period of at least two years 

in advance.

Moderate

Investment risks

• Increase in fixed costs and the resulting need to increase the 
volume of sales coupled with the threat of an increase in losses.

• Being late in mastering the technical-technological aspects of 
new investments, new markets; neglecting the costs resulting 
from the above.

• Cash flow being too weak to ensure the return of invested assets. 
• Neglect of investments into durable current assets and their sub-

sequent financing with short-term sources of financing despite 
the investment definitely being a long-term one.

• When planning the required added value per employee, Impol 
starts from the finding that the said value must, in addition to 
meeting the requirements arising from current operations and 
the dividend-related expectations of the shareholders, also 
meet the need of investing no less than EUR 10 thousand in 
order to preserve the existing position of employment and that 
at least a total of EUR 1 million must be earmarked for all types 
of investments for each new position of employment taking into 
account the expected growth in the number of new positions of 
employment.

Moderate

Human resources

• Lack of mobility and the associated costs that are higher than 
would be justified.

• Inadequate assurance of knowledge retention.
• Risk associated with the acquisition of key personnel.

• By introducing new IT applications, the company ensures the 
capture of a broader scope of employee knowledge and im-
portant data that are thus made available to a broader circle of 
employees, working with the key personnel, introduction of the 
governance standards, permanent education and training.

Moderate

Research and  
development • Research and development

• Introduction of a comprehensive system of applicative and 
technological development, integration as a development 
supplier to customers.

Moderate

Environmental  
protection • Discharges of hazardous substances. • Constant monitoring of emissions, integration of devices to 

prevent or reduce risks. Moderate
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Operational risk is the risk of incurring losses coupled with legal risk arising from:
• inadequate or incorrect implementation of internal procedures,
• other incorrect actions by the people belonging to the company's internal business area,
• inadequate or incorrect functioning of systems within the company's internal business area,
• external events or acts.

This is why Impol constantly improves or adapts its organisational structure (this is also why the governance 
system is being changed in 2015 from a two-tier to a one-tier system) and also continuously improves the 
entire IT system in order to ensure that business events are monitored in real time.

Financial risks Risk description Management method employed Exposure

Liquidity risks

• Lack of liquid assets required to settle operating and financing 
liabilities.

• Liquidity risk is a risk of incurring loss owing to short-term 
insolvency.

• Pre-agreed credit lines and drawing up of outflow and inflow 
plans. Minor

Risk of a change in 
the prices of alumini-
um raw materials

• Aluminium is a commodity and its prices change continu-
ously. Customers seek to purchase products based on the 
pre-arranged price basis for aluminium.

• Hedging – forwards and futures contracts. Moderate

Foreign exchange 
risk

• The threat of loss on account of unfavourable exchange rate 
fluctuations – this applies to USD in particular.

• Hedging by means of appropriate derivative financial instruments 
and the option of purchasing basic raw materials in the local 
currency. 

Moderate

Interest rate risk • Risk associated with changes in the terms and conditions for 
financing and borrowing.

• Monitoring of the ECB's and FED's policies, hedging using appro-
priate derivative financial instruments 

• interest rate swaps, shifting from a fixed to a floating interest rate. 
Moderate

Credit risk • Risk of customer failure to settle their liabilities.

• Securing trade receivables -primarily receivables from foreign 
debtors - through Prva kreditna zavarovalnica and foreign 
insurance firms, monitoring of customer credit ratings, limiting 
maximum exposure to individual customers. Transactions with 
customers located in high-risk markets are only performed on the 
basis of advance payments or prime bank guarantees.

Moderate to 
high

Claims for damages 
and lawsuit risk

• Risk of claims for damages being filed by third parties as a 
result of loss events caused inadvertently by the company 
through its activities, possession of items and placement of 
products on the market.

• General liability and product liability insurance (mainly for the 
segment of the manufacture of products intended for the means 
of transport industry).

Low to  
moderate

Damage to property 
risk

• The threat of damage to property resulting from destructive 
natural forces; machinery break-down, fire, etc.

• Conclusion of property insurance, machinery breakdown insur-
ance, business interruption insurance, fire insurance and other 
specific insurance types.

Moderate

Operational risks Risk description Management method employed Exposure

Risks in production

• Failure to manage the technological processes (recurring 
problems and associated dissatisfaction of customers).

• Excessive inventories – foreign exchange, cost, liquidity and 
other risks.

• Equipment reliability – insurance costs, deductibles,
• bottlenecks – disruptive inventories, disrupted flow with logis-

tical difficulties, failures to meet delivery deadlines, etc.

• Planning of the entire supply chain and the provision of sufficient 
production capacities. Moderate

Information
technology risks

• Failure to manage internal controls,
• failure to ensure substitution of absent workers,
• multiple processing of the same data,
• disruptions in the production process due to disturbances in 

the field of information sources.

• Security measures, a plan for uninterrupted operation of informa-
tion technology. Moderate

Risks associated with 
employees • Occurrence of accidents and injuries, unplanned absence.

• Measures in the field of risk assessment at the workplace, continu-
ous education and training in the working environment, a system 
of replacement.

Moderate
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Market and price risks
The Impol Group has established a permanent business partnership with customers from about 50 coun-
tries. The key advantages of the Impol Group are quick response to business condition changes and the 
provision of a wide range of products. By constantly monitoring the changes in dealing in a metal listed on 
the LME, aluminium, as well as the changes in the formation of the purchase and sales prices of aluminium 
we are able to integrate them into our operations.

Investment risk
The risks arising from the implementation of investments are in particular the risks associated with in-
vestment planning in fixed assets in terms of their value, performance, schedules, and on the other hand, 
investments in the provision of permanent working capital granted by the investment in fixed assets. The 
risks associated with the investments in fixed assets are minimised on the basis of an adequate policy 
of obtaining and directing external sources of financing. Also these types of investments are financed by 
non-current assets, as well as we strive to finance a considerable portion of current assets with long-term 
sources of funding. 

Risks associated with human resources
The education and training of our employees is planned and regularly monitored. Their responsibility at 
workplaces is strengthened by introducing a system of governance standards. The risks related to a lack of 
adequate professional labour force on the market is managed by our scholarship policy thus ensuring future 
availability of labour.
 
Risks associated with R&D
Impol’s products are used in industries where exceptional quality and safety are required. Therefore, our 
procedures are constantly renewed through development tasks and research. We build on our cooperation 
with our customers, development suppliers and prevent risks in technical and technological procedures.

Risks associated with environmental protection
Exceptional events such as fires, failure of energy supply, spilling or leaking of hazardous substances can 
have adverse effects on the environment. Preventive checks, equipment maintenance, training and education 
of the staff can reduce the probability of such events.

According to the probability of occurrence and relevance, the financial risks of the Impol Group are ranked 
high. Therefore, attention is placed to different categories of risks. They are monitored and managed by the 
Finance and Business Administration Department, the Risk Management Department and all other rele-
vant departments at Impol Group companies that operate outside Slovenia.

Liquidity risks
When it comes to liquidity risk management, the Impol Group examines whether it is able to settle all 
current operating liabilities and whether it is generating sufficient cash flow to settle financing liabilities.
Floating weekly and monthly planning of cash flows allows us to establish the liquid asset requirements. 
Potential shortages of cash are covered by bank credit lines, whereas any short-term surpluses are invested in 
liquid current financial assets. The Impol Group is able to settle all of its outstanding liabilities at any time. 
Well-performing operations grant solvency and increase in capital.

Risk of changes in aluminium prices
The risk of changes in aluminium prices constitutes the greatest risk for the operations of the Impol Group 
alongside the sales market risk. 

The Impol Group follows the principle stating that as soon as a sales agreement is concluded or a sales order 
is received that is concluded by referring to a specific aluminium raw material price on the LME, alumin-
ium raw materials are secured either physically or by means of forward contracts at the same price as that 
included in the basis for the conclusion of the sales agreement or order. 
The methods for the inclusion of costs and inventory management are established accordingly.

Collateral is usually provided primarily by guaranteeing adequate actual raw material sources with only the 
missing or excess difference being subject to forward purchases or sales on forward markets respectively.

As regards the management of the price risk arising from changes in quoted aluminium prices, it should be 
emphasised that quoted aluminium prices move completely randomly, but they serve as the basis for estab-
lishing daily purchase and sales prices of aluminium and of Impol's aluminium products. 

Business Risks

Management of 
Financial Risks
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Figure 14: Changes in the prices of aluminium on the LME

Given the large share of LME prices in the purchase and sales prices, the movement of quoted aluminium 
prices constitutes one of the greatest risks faced by the Group in its operations. We, therefore, established 
the Futures Trading Department as early as nine years ago and developed an IT system that links sales and 
purchase agreements from the point of view of LME prices which automatically links all “back-to-back” 
transactions, whereby the established difference constitutes the daily risk on the physical market that is 
hedged on the forward market with the help of brokers directly on the London Metal Exchange. 

The fact is that Impol needs to operate with great flexibility on the market and provide all pricing alterna-
tives to its customers. In doing so, however, we must make sure that the contractually agreed sales margin 
remains unchanged. In 2015, operations involving LME prices were efficient, successful and profitable on 
the Group level, which we achieved through appropriate forward sales of all excess raw material inventories 
and by successfully closing these forward positions.

By continuously monitoring developments at the specialised department and continuous control by the Risk 
Management Committee (RMC), the Group ensures the continuity and stability of the hedging process.

The majority of sales and purchasing are performed in the same currency, meaning that changes in foreign 
exchange rates do not bring about difficulties in these areas.

The Group is, however, exposed to such changes in two major areas, i.e. the purchasing of aluminium raw 
materials and when taking out loans denominated in a currency that is different than the currency of the 
company's accounts.

A major part of raw materials imported by Impol from outside the European Union is purchased in US 
Dollars, which represents an open FX position of Impol d.o.o.

Foreign  
Exchange Risk

Table 22: Values of key exchange rate in 2015 and 2014

Exchange 
rate EUR

Value as 
at 31 Dec  

2014

Value as 
at 31 Dec  

2015

% of a 
change in 

value (2015 / 
2014)

Lowest 
value in 

2015

Highest 
value in 

2015

% of a change 
between the 

lowest and 
highest value

Average 
value in 

2014

Average 
value in 

2015

% of a change 
between the 

average values 
(2015 / 2014)

USD 1,216 1,089 -10% 1,056 1,210 15% 1,329 1,110 -16%

RSD 120,60 121,23 1% 119,51 123,59 3% 116,87 120,56 3%
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In 2015, a certain portion of open USD positions was hedged by Impol d.o.o. in compliance with the foreign 
exchange risk management policy by using derivative financial instruments, while the remaining part was 
left unsecured. Open positions were hedged using simple derivative instruments, such as forward contracts. 

Foreign exchange risk is also present in Serbia due to the EUR/RSD exchange rate. The aim of the measure 
adopted by the Group so as to reduce the impact of exchange differences on operating profit in the Serbian 
part of the Group is to minimise the need to finance a considerable share of raw materials by organising a 
large part of the sales in the European Union through Impol d.o.o. providing aluminium to be processed, 
which eliminates the risk of major foreign exchange differences.

At the end of the year, the Impol Group had long-term loans remunerated at the 6-month EURIBOR 
reference interest rate. At the end of the year, the Impol Group had long-term loans tied to EURIBOR. 
The Impol Group has 33% of long-term financial liabilities with a fixed interest rate. EURIBOR remains 
at a historically low level. 

Total interest rate at which the Impol Group was borrowing was lower than in 2014. In 2015, a part of the 
loan portfolio which is linked to the variable rate was changed to a variable interest rate through the use of 
a derivative, namely the interest rate swap. 

The credit control process encompasses customer credit rating which is carried out regularly in cooperation 
with the selected insurance company and foreign insurance firms as well as our customer solvency monitor-
ing system. The Group has secured the majority of customers, in particular the large ones. The Group policy 
is that no single customer should exceed seven percent of total sales.

By regularly monitoring open and past due trade receivables, the ageing structure of receivables and aver-
age payment deadlines, the Impol Group maintains its credit exposure within acceptable limits given the 
strained conditions on the market. In 2015, the Group managed to reduce trade receivables compared to 
2014 owing to a drop in aluminium prices on the stock exchange which serves as the basis for the deter-
mination of selling prices, and due to the advanced information system for managing trade receivables by 
individual customer. In 2015, value adjustments of EUR 5.4 million to trade receivables were made whereby 
the amount of compensations received was EUR 0.3 million.

The aim of the Impol Group is to ensure financial compensation for damage incurred on the property, for 
lost profit resulting from business interruption as well as for the Group to be insured against third-party 
claims for damages. Procedures for this purpose have been made uniform for the entire Group. 

Property insurance for equipment has been concluded based on the carrying amount of the equipment and 
the same applies for machinery breakdown insurance. The sum insured under machinery breakdown insur-
ance equals the sum of labour costs and depreciation costs.

As regards product insurance from Impol to the customer, Impol has concluded agreements with transport 

Interest 
Rate Risk

Credit Risk

Claims for  
Damages and 

Lawsuit Risk 
and Damage to  

Property Risk

Table 23: Values of the interest rate - EURIBOR in 2015 and 2014 

EURIBOR Value as at 
31 Dec 2014 

Value as at 
31 Dec 2015 

Change in the interest 
rate expressed in per-

centage points  
(31 Dec 2014 – 31 Dec 

2015) 

Lowest value 
in 2015 

Highest value 
in 2015 

Change between the 
lowest interest rate 

and the highest inter-
est rate expressed in 

percentage points  

Average val-
ue in 2014 

Average val-
ue in 2015 

Change in the 
average interest 

rate expressed in 
percentage points  

(2015–2014) 

6-month 0.171% -0.042% -0.213 -0.042% 0.169% 0.211 0.308% 0.053% -0.255 

3-month 0.078% -0.132% -0.210 -0.192% 0.110% 0.302 0.209% 0.047% -0.162 

1-month 0.018% -0.202% -0.220 -0.206% 0.016% 0.222 0.101% -0.072% -0.173
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providers that require them to conclude their own damage liability insurance.

As Impol is aware of its liability from any potential damage that could result from the sales of its products 
on the market, it has also adjusted its product liability insurance policies accordingly. Product liability in-
surance has been concluded for the automotive industry rods, tubes and profiles programme. Impol has also 
insured general liability for damage to third parties caused inadvertently by its operations or possession of 
items.

Impol, therefore, continuously monitors technological development trends and applies them within the 
shortest time possible and insofar as this is within its possibilities. This is also why departments tasked with 
applied development are organised in production environments, which enables rapid procedures.

Impol organises the monitoring of all databases that are exchanged between different applications in a 
common database (IT backbone). Impol manages the information technology at the operational transac-
tional level with the available hardware and by taking care of sufficient capacities and performance. Key 
components are duplicated and interoperable redundantly. Applied solutions are compatible with the IT 
infrastructure and standards.

Impol saves data on a daily basis (backup of all databases) by introducing data protection policies and the 
associated management processes. The Company strives to minimise risks and therefore uses consolidated 
data infrastructure, separated solutions to protect data from other infrastructure, two location-independent 
copies of protected data and the support for the archived copy of the data.

Two Internal Audit departments are organised at the Impol Group.

An Internal Audit Department operates at the parent company and provides assistance to the Management 
and Supervisory Boards in the decision-making process so as to minimise risks. The Internal Audit Depart-
ment operates in compliance with the plan specified by the Management Board and in compliance with 
prompt resolutions adopted by the Management Board in respect of the department's engagement in the 
process for the resolution of problems. In 2015, the Internal Audit Department was engaged in 57 projects 
and proposed 116 improvements by specifying shortcomings and drawing up a problem resolution plan or 
by drawing up direct solutions, which it used as the basis for the preparation of relevant resolution proposals 
to be adopted by the bodies responsible.

The Internal Audit Department reported on its work to the Management Board and the two executive 
directors for 2015. It operates within the scope of the entire Impol Group.

In compliance with Serbian legislation, the Serbian part of the Group appoints a special internal auditor 
who monitors the legality and efficiency of operations, which is why a special Internal Audit Department 
was established at the Impol Seval a.d. subsidiary.

The method of work of the Internal Audit Department complies with the standards and the generally ac-
cepted guidelines for its operations, and has been further upgraded by qualifications for the performance of 
certain controlling tasks which in turn ensures immediate and high-quality implementation of the findings 
of internal audits. This in turn directly affects the reduction of operating costs and improves operating profit.

Risks in 
Production 

Information 
Technology 
Risks

Internal Audit
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We are committed to the  
establishment of sound working 
conditions for our employees, the 
preservation of their health and 
safety, the establishment of a fair 
relationship with our associates, 
and to the promotion of motivation 
and willingness to work.
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RESPONSIBLE TO EMPLOYEES

RESPONSIBLE TO NATURE

RESPONSIBLE TO THE ENVIRONMENT

COMMITMENT TO 
SUSTAINABLE 

DEVELOPMENT
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We are committed to the establishment of sound working conditions for our employees, the preservation of 
their health and safety, the establishment of a fair relationship with our associates, and to the promotion of 
motivation and willingness to work.

All of our activities are geared towards minimising the negative effects on the environment and the promotion 
of coexistence with nature.

Our operations are transparent, fair and comply with high moral and ethical standards. Operations are organ-
ised in accordance with the Impol Code of Business Conduct (available at: http://www.impol.si/files/default/
certifikati/Kodeks_splet.pdf ) that sets out our values, method of work, the company's expectations vis-à-vis 
employees and the rules on cooperation between the companies in the Impol Group.

Because of our involvement in the local environment, we continuously foster care for coexistence with the 
local residents, contribute to the development of social activities, promote the development of high-potential 
activities and contribute to a higher quality of life.

Commitment 
to Sustainable 
Development

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Table 24: Our responsibilities

Responsible to … year 2015 year 2020

… the employees

Payment

• Higher than the Slovenian and industry aver-
ages.

• All employees received a 13th month's pay.
• The employees received a special bonus on the 

occasion of the 190th anniversary and a Christ-
mas bonus at the end of the year.

• Higher than the Slovenian and industry aver-
ages.

• If objectives are attained, employees are entitled 
to a 13th month's pay.

Health and safety • 39 industrial accidents (Slovenia)
• 21 industrial accidents (Serbia) • No accidents.

Loyalty • Employee turnover at the Impol Group was 3.27 
percent. • Employee turnover is 4 percent.

Knowledge and 
understanding

• An employee undergoes 10.4 hours of training 
per year on average.

• Employees have submitted 196 useful proposals.

• An employee undergoes 25 hours of training per 
year and the management receives 40 hours of 
training per year.

• Each employee submits at least one useful 
proposal per year. 

Self-actualization • 5% of employees receive an annual feedback 
assessment of progress.

• 75% of employees receive an annual feedback 
assessment of progress.

… nature

Recycling

• Separate waste collection has been introduced 
at all levels at the Impol Group.

• Regular monitoring and planning of waste 
creation.

• Ensure the processing of 98% of the waste 
created.

Efficient energy 
consumption

• The consumption of natural gas came in at 
127.71 Sm3/t.

• The consumption of process water came in at 
1.48 m3/t.

• Overhaul of energy distribution infrastructure to 
achieve the lowest loss rates.

• Introduction of energy management and an 
energy supervision system.

• Introduction of BAT techniques to maintain low 
specific consumption of energy and process 
water, which we achieved with the projects 
implemented in previous years.

Emission reduction • CO2 emissions came in at 31,514 tonnes.

• Continuation of projects for the reduction of 
natural gas consumption by replacing plants 
with more modern (efficient) ones.

• Introduction of the use of waste heat.

… local environment

Noise reduction • Regular implementation of activities for the 
reduction of noise. • No noise complaints from local residents.

Local community 
development

• The biggest and most successful employer in 
the region.

• The biggest and most successful employer in the 
region Active participation in the promotion of 
entrepreneurship in the region. 

Responsible to the employees



Sustainable Development

65ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

Our almost 200-year long tradition is based on a fair attitude towards employees that gave rise to the 
growth and development of the Impol Group. The Group focuses on satisfying all employee need groups, 
while employee wellbeing is demonstrated by the numerous indicators that we keep track of. 

A programme for the sustainable development of employees according to the needs pyramid (Maslow) aims 
to comprehensively develop employee potentials.

Fair wages
• Employees in Slovenia and Serbia earn wages that are higher than the average in the industry and the 

national average.
• Employees receive the maximum permissible holiday pay.
• As the business objectives were attained, employees were entitled to a 13th month's pay.
• Employees received a bonus on the occasion of the 190th anniversary celebration.
• Employees received Christmas bonus.
  
Health and safety
• The occupational health and safety system is continuously improved.
• Working conditions have improved.
• Training in the field of safety and health at work was renewed.
• We take part in national projects aimed at the reduction of sick leave absences and the reduction of 

industrial accidents.
• The Impol Health Promotion Society has been established helping improve the quality of life of our 

employees.
• The company pays supplementary pension insurance for its employees. The savings scheme includes all 

employees who also pay an insurance premium on an individual basis. The monthly premium spent by 
individual Group Impol companies per employee amounts to EUR 25.04.

Loyalty
• Every year, events are organised to promote Impol Group employee loyalty and sense of belonging.
• Employees receive awards for 10, 20, 30 or 40 years of service at the Impol Group in Slovenia and for 

10, 20, 30 and 35 years of service at Impol Seval (Serbia).
• Internal newsletters Metalurg (in Slovenia) and Seval (in Serbia) are regularly published so as to build 

the culture of belonging and mutual respect.
• Works councils are established in all Impol Group companies employing more than 20 persons.

Knowledge and understanding
• We develop the competences of managers and expect them to have a positive attitude towards their 

associates.
• Our employees are provided with education and training in accordance with the requirements of the 

Impol Group.

Self-actualization
• A system for the rewarding of innovation and useful proposals has been set up.
• Employees are engaged in project teams and provided with opportunities to prove their abilities.

The Impol Group is committed to equality of opportunity in employment and career development. Belong-
ing to heavy industry where traditionally male occupations are dominant, a balanced gender structure of 
employees is a major challenge. In total, we employ 83% men and 17% women. The share of female employ-
ees has been increasing in middle management where 29% of managers are female. The top management 
consists of (Management Board and Executive Directors) consists of six men and one woman (women 
accounting for 17%). In the Impol Code of Business Conduct, the Group committed to equal treatment 
of the employees whereas the policy of diversity in the management and supervisory bodies has not been 
drafted yet.

Responsible to the employees

Activities of the 
Impol Group

Ensuring 
Diversity
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Country Company 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Slovenia

Impol 2000 d.d. 34 33 32 32 32 33 41

Impol d.o.o. 23 32 12 12 12 11 18

Impol FT d.o.o. 282 285 296 295 276 290 294

Impol PCP d.o.o. 344 336 374 422 382 455 451

Impol LLT d.o.o. 93 92 101 101 101 133 138

Impol R in R d.o.o. 24 23 23 26 24 32 34

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o. 25 25 26 26 27 24 23

Stampal SB d.o.o. 33 32 33 37 37 41 41

Rondal d.o.o. 53 55 60 61

Impol Stanovanja d.o.o. 3 2 2 2 2 2 2

Unidel d.o.o. 42 39 36 34 35 35 37

Kadring d.o.o. 10 11 11 13 16 15 14

– Work at the user 54 97 97 59 119 0 0

– Work at the user 3 23 9 10 10 0 0

Impol Servis d.o.o. 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Impol-Montal d.o.o. 1 1 1 0

Total Slovenian companies 974 1,015 1,051 1,104 1,125 1,138 1,161

Serbia

Impol Seval a.d. 581 580 576 587 598 569 553

Impol Seval Finalizacija d.o.o.

Impol Seval PKC d.o.o. 11 12 11 11 11 12 12

Impol Seval Tehnika d.o.o. 97 92 92 92 87 86 85

Impol Seval Final d.o.o. 29 24 26 26 24 26 25

Impol Seval President d.o.o. 10 10 10 9 9

Total Serbian companies 718 708 715 726 722 702 684

USA Impol Aluminum Corporation 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Hungary Impol Hungary Kft. 2 2 2

Impol Group Total number of employees 1,695 1,726 1,769 1,833 1,852 1,845 1,850

Table 25: Employees by Group company

 Table 26: Staff turnover at the Group level

Arrivals Departures % of total turnover % of turnover due to consensual  
termination of employment

Slovenia 64 41 3.53% 0.69%

Serbia 3 21 3.03% 0.29%

USA 0 0 0 0

Hungary 0 0 0 0

Impol Group 67 62 3.35% 0.49%

Statistical Data on 
the Employees

Statistical data on the employees is presented in Tables 25 - 32. The data is managed on the basis of the 
personnel information system which has not been fully integrated. Its integration between companies at 
various locations will form a development project in 2016.



Sustainable Development

67ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

Table 27: Employee gender structure at the Impol Group

Table 29: Education and qualification structure 

Table 30: Share of sheltered employees and the disabled

Table 31: Utilisation of working time

Table 28: Age structure of the employees

Slovenia Serbia USA Hungary Impol Group

Men 968 (83%) 542 (79%) 2 (66%) 0 1,512 (81.73%)

Women 193 (17%) 142 (21%) 1 (34%) 2 (100%) 338 (18.27%)

Total 1,161 684 3 2 1,850

PhD MSc University Higher 
education College Secondary Qualified Semi-qualified Non- 

qualified

Slovenia 0.3% 0.3% 7.5% 6.2% 6.3% 32.7% 35% 6.5% 5.2%

Serbia 0% 1% 11.6% 3.8% 4.2% 25.3% 45.2% 3.4% 5.6%

Impol Group 0.2% 0.6% 9.6% 5% 5.2% 29% 40% 5% 5.4%

Share of sheltered employees (age) Share of the disabled

Slovenia 10% 6.2%

Serbia 24% 10.7%

Utilisation of working time % absence due to sickness, paid by the company 

Slovenia 80.74% 3.18%

Serbia 82.33% 3.67%

Less than 25 
years of age

From 26 to 35 
years of age

From 36 to 45 
years of age

From 46 to 55 
years of age

Above 56 years 
of age Average age

Slovenia 6% 25% 28% 33% 8% 41.5

Serbia 5% 21% 14% 32% 28% 46.19

Total 5.5% 23% 21% 32.5% 18% 43.85
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 Table 32: Training and education of the employees

 Table 33: Projects planned for 2016

Slovenia Serbia Impol Group

Number of hours of training per employee 10.4 hours 9.6 hours 10.1

Costs of training per employee EUR 159.35 EUR 70.3 EUR 102 

Number of employees – part-time students 6 0 6

Number of beneficiaries of grants 9 5 14

Field Projects

Air Construct an additional air treatment plant for new sources and the sources from the production of cast 
strips.

Hazardous substances, waste To reduce specific quantities of certain types of waste.

Energy products Gradual renewal of the electricity system infrastructure and the introduction of the methods of efficient 
energy product management.

Water Prudent management of water which circulates in the system in all production processes. To maintain 
water quality and prolong the cycles of changing water by controlling industrial water processing.

Noise To continue the projects which reduce the generation of noise in the vicinity.

Planned activities:
• prepare standards of leadership,
• measure the organisational climate and the employee satisfaction,
• run activities to increase the number of useful proposals and innovation of the employees,
• introduce line supervision in all production processes,
• introduce a pilot project of lean production into one part of an individual production process,
• prepare a new manual for the employees,
• develop additional IT support for the staff development activities.

Our lasting commitment to environmental protection is reflected in the efficient implementation of envi-
ronmental programmes aimed at the reduction of negative impacts on the environment. Our environmental 
protection efforts are reflected mainly in the prevention of pollution in the Bistrica stream, reduction of emis-
sions into the atmosphere as well as limited, controlled and prudent use of hazardous substances, the use of 
alternative energy sources and contribution to global energy efficiency, all of which we achieve by using and 
processing our own and external sources of secondary aluminium. The investments were planned within the 
Environmental Management Programme. Within water protection activities, the cooling system was reno-
vated and the pumping station in Impol LLT was renewed. In the field of air protection, the most important 
investments aimed at fire protection of the purification plant in LLT.

Further Guide-
lines in the 

Field of Human 
Resources for 

2016

Environmental 
Management 

Programme and 
New Objectives

Fire Protection

Responsible to nature

Impol Group companies strive for the attainment of the basic objective of fire protection, especially pro-
tection of employees and assets. In 2015, the works on the extension of the fire detection and alarm system 
continued. The main substation and the new plant for the homogenisation of bars in the foundry production 
process were connected to the system. The system extension is will continue also in the future until all the 
facilities in the industrial zone offering this type of technical protection are covered. A practical firefighting 
drill was carried out last year which included the evacuation of the employees from the administrative build-
ing and a demonstration of fighting a fire in a solar power plant. In this drill, our firefighting unit cooperated 
with external firefighting units, emergency services and the employees in the administrative building and 
in the Foil B facility.
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Impol seeks to make its operations as transparent as possible and for them to be carried out in synergy with 
other stakeholders in the local environment. The Impol Group is the largest employer and the most import-
ant company in the Slovenska Bistrica Municipality. It is the sixth largest Slovenian exporter. Impol Seval 
and its subsidiaries together are also one of the most important exporters in Serbia.

We contribute to the development of the local environment through numerous activities:
• support for sporting, cultural and other societies from the local environment through sponsorships and 

donations in Slovenia and Serbia,
• sponsorship of important local events,
• cooperation with local companies and the search for synergies,
• search for new business opportunities and the creation of new jobs. 

On the occasion of the 190th anniversary, the following activities were carried out:
• renovation of a hiking trail to Bistriški vintgar,
• building awareness about the importance of recycling – in cooperation with Oton Župančič Kinder-

garten,
• production of a documentary on the history of the Impol Group,
• production of a publication providing the overview of the history of the Impol Group.

Activities planned for 2016 include:
• continuation of the support to high-potential sports, cultural and other societies through sponsorships,
• building awareness of the importance of recycling at kindergartens and primary schools,
• maintaining cooperation with the local media,
• investment in the restoration of the hiking trail along the Bistriški vintgar gorge.

Responsible to local environment
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The Executive Directors are responsible for drawing up an Annual Report of the Impol Group so that it 
gives a true and fair view of the financial situation of the Impol Group as well as of its operating results for 
2015.

The Executive Directors hereby confirm to have diligently applied the appropriate accounting policies and 
that accounting estimates have been prepared following the principle of prudence and good management. 
The Executive Directors also confirm that the Financial Statements including notes are drawn up based on 
the assumption of future operations of the Company and in compliance with the legislation in force and the 
International Financial Reporting Standards. 

The Executive Directors are also responsible for managing accounting appropriately, to take appropriate 
measures to safeguard the property, to continuously monitor other operating risks and to adopt measures 
intended to minimise them as well as to prevent and detect any fraud and any other irregularities or unlaw-
ful undertakings. 

Slovenska Bistrica, 8 April 2016

The Management Board hereby confirms the Group Financial Statements and Financial statements for 
Impol 2000 d.d. for the year ending on 31 December 2015 and for the accounting policies applied. This 
Annual Report was adopted by the Board at its session held on 20 April 2016.

Slovenska Bistrica, 20 April 2016

Executive  
Directors' 

Liability 
Declaration 

Management 
Boards' Liability 

Declaration 
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The accounting policies and notes are an integral part of the financial statements presented below and 
should be read in conjunction with them.

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Impol Group

Table 34: Cumulative Income Statement for 2015 in EUR

Item                                               Note 2015 2014

1.  Net revenue from sales 1 546,146,705 486,290,565

 a) Net revenue from sales in the domestic market 34,947,271 31,378,501

 b) Net revenue from sales in the foreign market 511,199,434 454,912,064

2.  Change in the value of product inventories and unfinished production 1,347,967 270,832

3.  Capitalised own products and services 247,960 873

4.  Other operating revenue (including operating revenue from revaluation) 4,099,165 2,998,933

5.  Costs of goods, materials and services 2 450,117,088 403,793,935

 a) Cost of sold goods and materials and costs of materials used 413,787,562 371,856,006

 b) Costs of services 36,329,526 31,937,929

6.  Labour costs 2 46,412,251 42,755,264

 a) Costs of salaries 32,011,539 30,277,196

 b) Costs of social insurance (separately disclosed costs of pension insurance) 7,612,872 7,323,180

 c) Other labour costs 6,787,840 5,154,888

7.  Write-downs 2 20,770,680 18,587,135

 a) Depreciation 15,116,688 16,243,337

 b) Operating expenses from revaluation of intangible and tangible fixed assets 261,080 14,972

 c) Operating expenses from revaluation of current assets 5,392,912 2,328,826

8.  Other operating expenses 2 1,275,768 1,239,349

9.  Financial revenue from participating interests 3 183,025 65,291

 a) Income from investments in associated companies 31,083 14,483

 b) Income from investments in other companies 32,702 50,808

 c) Income from other investments 119,240 0

10. Financial revenue from loans granted 3 11.720 27,665

 a) Financial revenue from loans granted to Group companies 0 0

 b) Financial revenue from loans to others 11,720 27,665

11. Financial revenue from operating receivables 3 2.053.289 2,674,715

 a) Financial revenue from operating receivables due from others 2,053,289 2,674,715

12. Financial expenses from the impairment and write-offs of investments 3 105.066 1,165

13. Financial expenses from financial liabilities 3 6.659.163 9,862,439

 a) Financial expenses from loans received from banks 5,253,653 6,089,868

 b) Financial expenses from issued bonds 385,205 0

 c) Financial expenses from other financial liabilities 1,020,305 3,772,571

14. Financial expenses from operating liabilities 3 2.744.452 1,326,724

 a) Financial expenses for trade payables and bills payable 18,637 13,827

 b) Financial expenses from other operating liabilities 2,725,815 1,312,897

15. Income tax  4 2.975.456 1,838,522

16. Deferred taxes 5 496.275 457,665

17. Net profit for the period 22.533.632 12,466,676

  a) Of this profit / loss attributable to non-controlling interest 2,439,035 199,645

 b) Profit / loss attributable to owners of the parent company 20,094,597 12,267,031

  Result of continuing operations 22,533,632 12,466,676

  Result of discontinued operations 0 0
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Table 35: Group statement of other comprehensive income in EUR

Table 36: Balance Sheet of the Group in EUR

Note 2015 2014

Net profit/loss for the financial year 22,533,632 12,466,676

Changes in surplus from revaluation of intangible and tangible fixed assets (+ / -)  0

Changes in the fair value of hedging against risk (interest rate swaps) (+ / -) 19 -73,355 0

Gains and losses arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign operations (impact of 
changes in exchange rates) (+ / -) 14 33,708 -1,106,990

Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans (employee benefits) (+/-) 15 -90,667 -7,721

Other items of total comprehensive income (+/-)  0

Total comprehensive income in the financial year 22,403,318 11,351,965

• Of which total comprehensive income of minority equity 2,405,170 -171,356

• Of which total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent company 19,998,148 11,523,321

Note 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

A.   Non-current assets 133,040,860 137,050,627

 I.   Intangible assets and non-current deferred costs and accrued 
revenue 6 1,786,630 2,338,571

  1. Non-current property rights 1,467,401 1,972,719

  2. Goodwill 319,229 319,229

  3. Other non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue 0 46,623

 II.  Tangible fixed assets 7 125,043,592 129,684,051

  1. Land and buildings 36,795,864 39,111,609

   a) Land 3,740,137 3,723,907

   b) Buildings 33,055,727 35,387,702

  2. Production equipment and machinery 72,068,086 76,519,479

  3. Other machinery and equipment 3,599,838 4,080,208

  4. Fixed assets being acquired 12,579,804 9,972,755

   a) Tangible fixed assets under construction and manufacture 11,502,974 8,933,289

   b) Advances to acquire tangible fixed assets 1,076,830 1,039,466

 III.  Investment property 8 3,696,605 2,450,752

 IV.  Non-current investments 9 1,554,417 1,316,187

  1. Non-current investments, excluding loans 1,169,046 1,054,882

   a) Shares and participating interests in associate companies 656,633 665,012

   b) Other shares and participating interests 512,413 389,870

  2. Non-current loans 385,371 261,305

   a) Non-current loans to others 385,371 261,305

 V.  Non-current operating receivables 1,250 0

  1. Non-current operating receivables due by others 1,250 0

 VI.  Deferred tax receivables 958,366 1,261,066

B.   Current assets 229,328,199 189,082,187

 I.  Assets (groups for disposal) for sale 0 235,947

 II.  Inventories 10 97,858,243 108,914,530

  1. Material 72,182,684 85,214,988

  2. Work in process 9,830,248 6,844,456

  3. Products and merchandise 14,521,829 16,245,367

  4. Advances for inventories 1,323,482 609,719

 III.  Current financial investments 11 6,179,902 612,648

  1. Current financial investments, excluding loans 0 333,808

   a) Other current financial investments 0 333,808
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Note 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

  2. Current loans 6,179,902 278,840

   a) Current loans to others 6,179,902 278,840

 IV.   Current operating receivables 12 54,452,700 66,823,853

  1. Current operating receivables due from Group companies 47,453,396 51,631,520

  2. Current operating receivables due from customers 6,999,304 15,192,333

 V.  Cash and cash equivalents 13 70,837,354 12,495,209

C.   Current deferred costs and accrued revenue 109,974 1,093,157

   TOTAL ASSETS 362,479,033 327,225,971

A.   Equity 14 127,562,535 106,177,138

   Minority equity 11,742,184 9,427,165

 I.  Called-up capital 4,451,540 4,451,540

  1. Share capital 4,451,540 4,451,540

 II.  Capital reserves 10,751,254 10,751,254

 III.  Reserves from profit 6,906,327 6,427,553

  1. Reserves for treasury shares and own participating interests 506,406 506,406

  2. Treasury shares and own participating interests (as deductions) -506,406 -506,406

  3. Statutory reserves 1,173,746 694,972

  4. Other reserves from profit 5,732,581 5,732,581

 IV.  Revaluation surplus -169,318 -7,721

 V.  Consolidated adjustment of capital -670,221 -735,989

 VI.  Net profit brought forward 74,934,946 63,914,120

 VII.  Net profit/loss for the financial year 19,615,823 11,949,216

B.   Provisions and non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue 15 2,414,420 1,747,281

  1. Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 1,752,717 977,091

  2. Other provisions 1,251 2,134

  3. Non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue 660,452 768,056

C.   Non-current liabilities 16 117,899,807 78,921,833

 I,  Non-current financial liabilities 116,274,737 77,579,438

  1. Non-current financial liabilities to banks 75,616,919 76,695,107

  2. Non-current financial liabilities from bonds payable 40,000,000 0

  3. Other non-current financial liabilities 657,818 884,331

 II.  Non-current operating liabilities 294,767 198,659

  1. Other non-current operating liabilities 294,767 198,659

 III.  Deferred tax liabilities 1,330,303 1,143,736

D.   Current liabilities 17 113,687,948 139,537,525

 I.  Current financial liabilities 78,704,151 92,232,252

  1. Current financial liabilities to banks 63,074,607 69,421,725

  2. Current financial liabilities from bonds payable 10,000,000 0

  3. Other current financial liabilities 5,629,544 22,810,527

 II.  Current operating liabilities 34,983,797 47,305,273

  1. Current trade payables 26,711,391 38,367,426

  2. Current operating liabilities from advance payments 1,834,256 1,140,967

  3. Other current operating liabilities 6,438,150 7,796,880

E.   Current accrued costs and deferred revenue 17 914,323 842,194

   TOTAL LIABILITIES 362,479,033 327,225,971
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Table 37: Group Statement of Changes in Equity in 2015 in EUR 

Table 38: Group Statement of Changes in Equity in 2014 in EUR

 Called-up capital Minority equity Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Currency translation 
adjustment

Net profit brought 
forward

Net profit/loss for 
the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V IV VII VIII IX

Share 
capital  

Reserves for treasury 
shares and own par-

ticipating interests

Treasury shares and 
own participating 

interests (as deduc-
tions)

Statutory reserves Other reserves from 
profit   Net profit brought 

forward
Net loss brought 

forward
TOTAL

EQUITY

  I/1 II III IV/2 IV/3 IV/4 IV/5 V IV VII/1 VIII/1 IX

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous financial year at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 9,427,165 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 694,972 5,732,581 -7,721 -735,989 63,914,120 11,949,216 106,177,138

A.2 Opening balance of the financial year at 01 Jan 2015 4,451,540 9,427,165 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 694,972 5,732,581 -7,721 -735,989 63,914,120 11,949,216 106,177,138

B.1 Changes in equity – transactions with owners  -90,151        -927,770  -1,017,921

 Disbursement of dividends  -88,837        -925,580  -1,014,417

 Disbursement of bonuses to the management and supervisory boards  -1,314        -2,190  -3,504

B.2 Total comprehensive income in the financial year  2,405,170      -161,597 65,768 -620 20,094,597 22,403,318

 Entry of net profit/loss in the financial year  2,439,035         20,094,597 22,533,632

 Changes in the surplus from revaluation of investments  -1,805      -71,550    -73,355

 Other items of the total comprehensive income in the financial year  -32,060      -90,047 65,768 -620  -56,959

B.3 Changes in equity      478,774    11,949,216 -12,427,990 0

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the comparative financial year to 
other equity items          11,949,216 -11,949,216 0

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the financial year to other equity 
items following decisions of the management and supervisory boards      478,774     -478,774 0

C. Closing balance of the financial year at 31 Dec 2015 4,451,540 11,742,184 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 1,173,746 5,732,581 -169,318 -670,221 74,934,946 19,615,823 127,562,535

  Called-up capital Minority equity Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Currency translation 
adjustment

Net profit brought 
forward

Net profit/loss for 
the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V IV VII VIII IX

Share 
capital  

Reserves for treasury 
shares and own par-

ticipating interests

Treasury shares and 
own participating 

interests (as deduc-
tions)

Statutory reserves Other reserves from 
profit   Net profit brought 

forward
Net loss brought 

forward
TOTAL

EQUITY

  I/1 II III IV/2 IV/3 IV/4 IV/5 V IV VII/1 VIII/1 IX

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous financial year at 31 Dec 2013 4,451,540 9,682,262 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 377,157 5,732,581 537,225 -3,735,040 56,170,060 11,630,939 95,597,978

a) Retrospective restatement            0

b) Transition to IFRS        -537,225 3,735,040 -3,577,399 7,631 -371,953

A.2 Opening balance of the financial year at 01 Jan 2014 4,451,540 9,682,262 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 377,157 5,732,581   52,592,661 11,638,570 95,226,025

B.1 Changes in equity – transactions with owners  -83,497        -307,432  -390,929

 Disbursement of dividends  -82,185        -305,244  -387,429

 Disbursement of bonuses to the management and supervisory boards  -1,312        -2,188  -3,500

B.2 Total comprehensive income in the financial year  -171,356      -7,721 -735,989  12,267,031 11,351,965

 Entry of net profit/loss in the financial year  199,645         12,267,031 12,466,676

 Other items of the total comprehensive income in the financial year  -371,001      -7,721 -735,989   -1,114,711

B.3 Changes in equity  -244    317,815    11,628,891 -11,956,385 -9,923

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the comparative financial year to 
other equity items          11,638,570 -11,638,570 0

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the financial year for setting up 
additional reserves following a decision of the General Meeting      317,815     -317,815 0

 Other changes in equity  -244        -9,679  -9,923

C. Closing balance of the financial year at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 9,427,165 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 694,972 5,732,581 -7,721 -735,989 63,914,120 11,949,216 106,177,138
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 Called-up capital Minority equity Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Currency translation 
adjustment

Net profit brought 
forward

Net profit/loss for 
the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V IV VII VIII IX

Share 
capital  

Reserves for treasury 
shares and own par-

ticipating interests

Treasury shares and 
own participating 

interests (as deduc-
tions)

Statutory reserves Other reserves from 
profit   Net profit brought 

forward
Net loss brought 

forward
TOTAL

EQUITY

  I/1 II III IV/2 IV/3 IV/4 IV/5 V IV VII/1 VIII/1 IX

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous financial year at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 9,427,165 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 694,972 5,732,581 -7,721 -735,989 63,914,120 11,949,216 106,177,138

A.2 Opening balance of the financial year at 01 Jan 2015 4,451,540 9,427,165 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 694,972 5,732,581 -7,721 -735,989 63,914,120 11,949,216 106,177,138

B.1 Changes in equity – transactions with owners  -90,151        -927,770  -1,017,921

 Disbursement of dividends  -88,837        -925,580  -1,014,417

 Disbursement of bonuses to the management and supervisory boards  -1,314        -2,190  -3,504

B.2 Total comprehensive income in the financial year  2,405,170      -161,597 65,768 -620 20,094,597 22,403,318

 Entry of net profit/loss in the financial year  2,439,035         20,094,597 22,533,632

 Changes in the surplus from revaluation of investments  -1,805      -71,550    -73,355

 Other items of the total comprehensive income in the financial year  -32,060      -90,047 65,768 -620  -56,959

B.3 Changes in equity      478,774    11,949,216 -12,427,990 0

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the comparative financial year to 
other equity items          11,949,216 -11,949,216 0

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the financial year to other equity 
items following decisions of the management and supervisory boards      478,774     -478,774 0

C. Closing balance of the financial year at 31 Dec 2015 4,451,540 11,742,184 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 1,173,746 5,732,581 -169,318 -670,221 74,934,946 19,615,823 127,562,535

  Called-up capital Minority equity Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Currency translation 
adjustment

Net profit brought 
forward

Net profit/loss for 
the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V IV VII VIII IX

Share 
capital  

Reserves for treasury 
shares and own par-

ticipating interests

Treasury shares and 
own participating 

interests (as deduc-
tions)

Statutory reserves Other reserves from 
profit   Net profit brought 

forward
Net loss brought 

forward
TOTAL

EQUITY

  I/1 II III IV/2 IV/3 IV/4 IV/5 V IV VII/1 VIII/1 IX

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous financial year at 31 Dec 2013 4,451,540 9,682,262 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 377,157 5,732,581 537,225 -3,735,040 56,170,060 11,630,939 95,597,978

a) Retrospective restatement            0

b) Transition to IFRS        -537,225 3,735,040 -3,577,399 7,631 -371,953

A.2 Opening balance of the financial year at 01 Jan 2014 4,451,540 9,682,262 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 377,157 5,732,581   52,592,661 11,638,570 95,226,025

B.1 Changes in equity – transactions with owners  -83,497        -307,432  -390,929

 Disbursement of dividends  -82,185        -305,244  -387,429

 Disbursement of bonuses to the management and supervisory boards  -1,312        -2,188  -3,500

B.2 Total comprehensive income in the financial year  -171,356      -7,721 -735,989  12,267,031 11,351,965

 Entry of net profit/loss in the financial year  199,645         12,267,031 12,466,676

 Other items of the total comprehensive income in the financial year  -371,001      -7,721 -735,989   -1,114,711

B.3 Changes in equity  -244    317,815    11,628,891 -11,956,385 -9,923

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the comparative financial year to 
other equity items          11,638,570 -11,638,570 0

 Reallocation of a part of the net profit from the financial year for setting up 
additional reserves following a decision of the General Meeting      317,815     -317,815 0

 Other changes in equity  -244        -9,679  -9,923

C. Closing balance of the financial year at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 9,427,165 10,751,254 506,406 -506,406 694,972 5,732,581 -7,721 -735,989 63,914,120 11,949,216 106,177,138
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Table 39: Group Cash Flow Statement in EUR 

Item Notes 2015 2014

A.  Cash flows from operating activities   

 a) Items of the Income Statement 49,397,703 40,468,744

  Operating revenue (except from revaluation) and financial revenue from operating receiv-
ables 1 551,840,168 491,637,444

  Operating revenue excluding depreciation (except from revaluation) and financial expenses 
from operating liabilities 2 -498,970,734 -448,872,513

  Income and other tax not included in operating expenses 4 -3,471,731 -2,296,187

 b) Changes to net operating current assets (and accruals and deferrals, provisions and deferred 
tax receivables and liabilities) of the Balance Sheet operating items 8,466,596 -21,341,519

  Opening less closing operating receivables 12 6,982,314 -6,193,581

  Opening less closing deferred costs and accrued revenue 12 983,183 1,601,646

  Opening less closing deferred tax receivables 5 302,700 79,649

  Opening less closing assets (groups for disposal) for sale 1,226 0

  Opening less closing inventories 10 11,053,048 -18,801,809

  Closing less opening operating liabilities 17 -12,089,661 2,417,876

  Closing less opening accrued costs and deferred revenue and provisions 17 1,047,219 -767,649

  Closing less opening deferred tax liabilities 5 186,567 322,349

 c) Net cash from operating activities (a + b) 57,864,299 19,127,225

B.  Cash flows from investing activities   

 a) Cash receipts from investing activities 7,201,119 2,659,861

  Inflows from interest and participation in others` profits relating to investing activities 3 44,906 78,848

  Cash receipts from the disposal of tangible fixed assets 1 1,550,860 5,559

  Cash receipts from the disposal of non-current investments 3 144,345 11,785

  Cash receipts from the disposal of current investments 3 5,461,008 2,563,669

 b) Cash disbursements from investing activities -24,247,279 -15,400,638

  Cash disbursements to acquire intangible assets 6 -216,143 -683,126

  Cash disbursements to acquire tangible fixed assets 7 -12,665,274 -13,293,607

  Cash disbursements to acquire non-current financial investments 9 -266,834 -30,953

  Cash disbursements to acquire current financial investments 11 -11,099,028 -1,392,952

 c) Net cash from investing activities (a + b) -17,046,160 -12,740,777

C.  Cash flows from financing activities   

 a) Cash receipts from financing activities 145,445,237 130,682,966

  Cash receipts from increase in non-current financial liabilities 16 98,937,787 51,268,595

  Cash receipts from increase in current financial liabilities 17 46,507,450 79,414,371

 b) Cash payments from financing activities -127,921,231 -133,579,151

  Interest paid on financing activities 3 -6,600,195 -11,563,413

  Cash repayments of equity 0 -9,923

  Cash repayments of non-current financial liabilities 16 -6,334,025 -217,036

  Cash repayments of current financial liabilities 17 -113,969,090 -121,380,138

  Dividends and other profit shares paid 14 -1,017,921 -408,641

 c) Net cash from financing activities (a + b) 17,524,006 -2,896,185

D.  Closing balance of cash 70,837,354 12,495,209

 a) Net cash flow for the period 58,342,145 3,490,263

 b) Opening balance of cash 12,495,209 9,004,946

Controlling undertaking
In compliance with the Companies Act, Impol 2000 d.d. headquartered in Slovenska Bistrica, Partizanska 
38, and being a large public limited company, is obliged have its operations audited. The Company is clas-
sified under the activity code 70.100, i.e., the management of companies. The share capital of the Company 
amounted to EUR 4,451,540 and was divided into 1,066,767 ordinary registered no-par value shares. The 
shares are held by 948 shareholders. 

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year that ended on 31 December 2015 are presented 
hereafter. The consolidated financial statements include the company Impol 2000 d.d. and its subsidiaries 
and participations in associates. 

Notes to the 
Financial  

Statements
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Introductory note on reporting standards 
For the financial year 2015, the Impol Group for the first time prepared its financial statement in accordance 
with the International Financial Reporting Standards as they were adopted by the European Union. The 
transition to IFRS, as they were adopted by the European Union, was implemented based on IFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and using the allowed transitional excep-
tions. The effective transition date was 1 January 2014, after which the Group prepared the opening state-
ment of financial position according to IFRS. Until 2015, the Group prepared group financial statements in 
accordance with the Slovenian Accounting Standards (2006) and the notes of the Slovenian Audit Institute.
The explanation of the impact of the transition to IFRS to the financial situation, economic outcome and 
the amount of group equity is presented in detail in the chapter Comparable data and the impact of the 
transition to IFRS.

Statement of compliance with IFRS
The Management Board confirmed the financial statements and the consolidated financial statements on 20 
April 2016. Financial statements of the company Impol 2000 d. d. and the consolidated financial statements 
of the group were prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
as they were adopted by the European Union, including the notes that were adopted by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and that were also adopted by the European 
Union, and in accordance with the Slovenian Companies Act (ZGD). All companies of the group (except 
the company IAC, USA) also changed their financial reporting in 2015 according to the IFRS requirements 
that apply in the European Union. 

At the balance sheet date, regarding the standard-setting process in the European Union and the financial 
reporting guidelines of the company Impol 2000 d.d. and the Impol Group, there are no differences be-
tween the IFRS used and the IFRS adopted by the European Union.

New standards and notes that do not yet apply
Standards and notes presented hereafter did not yet apply on the date of the consolidated/separate financial 
statements. The Group will use these standards and notes for preparing financial statements after their 
implementation.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board published the final version of the IFRS 9 stan-
dard Financial Instruments that includes the requirements of all individual phases of the IFRS 9 renewal 
project and replaces the IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous 
versions of IFRS 9. The renewed standard introduces new requirements regarding the classification and 
measurement of financial assets and liabilities, the recognition of their impairment, and financial hedging. 
The renewed IFRS 9 applies to financial years starting on 1 January 2018 or later. An early use of the stan-
dard is allowed. Changes of the standard shall be used by companies retrospectively, whereby a presentation 
of comparable data is not obligatory. An early use of previous versions of IFRS 9 that were published in 
years 2009, 2010 and 2013 is allowed under the condition that the company performed the transition to 
IFRS any time before 1 February 2015. The standard was not yet confirmed by the European Union. The 
Group assumes that this change will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

IFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 14 is an optional standard that enables companies during their first implementation of International 
Financial Reporting Standards to largely continue with their deferral accounts based on regulatory services 
in accordance to previously generally accepted accounting principles. Companies that decide to use the new 
standard have to separately recognise regulatory deferrals in the statement of financial situation, and to 
show all changes on these accounts in separate items in the profit-and-loss statement and the other com-
prehensive income statement. The standard requires companies to disclose regulatory characteristics, their 
connected risks, and their impact on financial statement of companies. IFRS 14 applies to all financial years 
starting on 1 January 2016 or later. The standard was not yet confirmed by the European Union. The Group 
assumes that this change will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board published a new version of IFRS 15 that intro-
duces a new five-stage model for recognising revenue from contracts with customers. According to the IFRS 
15 provisions, a company recognises revenue in the amount that reflects the amount of the purchase that the 
company expects from the transition of goods or the provision of services to the buyer. Financial principles 
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from IFRS 15 thus offer a more structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new stan-
dard applies to all companies and replaces the existing requirements of the International Financial Reporting 
Standards regarding recognising revenue. Full usage of the new standard applies to financial years starting on 
1 January 2017 or later, but an adjusted version of the standard shall be used by the companies retrospectively. 
AN early use of the standard is allowed. The standard was not yet confirmed by the European Union. The 
Group is currently reviewing the impact of the new standard and will start to use it after its implementation.

IFRS 11 amendment, Joint Arrangements: Acquisition of Shares
According to the IFRS 11 amendment, a company that takes part in joint arrangements has to apply the 
accounting principles of the IFRS 3 standard that apply to acquisitions of shares in case of acquisition 
of shares of joint ventures of which activity represents conducting business. The amendment additionally 
explains that in case of acquisition of additional shares in the same joint venture, the existing shares may 
not be measured again until the joint arrangement still exists. The Board also included exceptions in IFRS 
11, which stipulate that the amendment does not apply in cases where parties that are included in the joint 
arrangement (including the reporting company) control the parent undertaking. 
 
The amendment thus applies to both acquiring original shares in the joint venture and additional shares in 
the same joint venture. The amendment applies to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An 
early use of the standard is allowed. The amendment of the standard was not yet confirmed by the European 
Union. The Group assumes that this change will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Note on acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation 
With these amendments, the Board explains the accounting principles of IAS 16 and IAS 38, which stipu-
late that revenue represents the generation of expected economic benefits (part of which is also the means) 
rather than the consumption of economic benefits. Therefore, a company cannot use revenue-based meth-
ods for the amortisation of fixed tangible assets, but in some limited circumstances a company can use them 
for the amortisation of intangible assets. 

These changes apply to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An early use is allowed. The 
changes were not yet confirmed by the European Union. The Group assumes that these changes will not 
have a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer Plants
The amendments change the requirements of accounting biological assets that fulfil the definition of bearer 
plants. According to these amendments, biological assets that fulfil the definition of bearer plants no longer 
fall under the requirements of IAS 41, but under IAS 16. Thus, according to the requirements of IAS 16, a 
company has to measure the recognised total cost of bearer plants (before maturity) after their first recog-
nition, and by using the cost model or the revaluation model (after maturity). 
 
The amendments of IAS 16 and IAS 41 also require companies to measure the produce growing on bearer 
plants at fair value, reduced by sales costs, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 41. Government grants 
related to bearer plants need to be accounted for under IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and 
Disclosure of Government Assistance. The amendments are applicable to annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016, and companies shall use them retrospectively. An early use is allowed. The changes 
were not yet confirmed by the European Union. The Group assumes that these changes will not have a 
significant impact on financial statements. 

Changes of IAS 27: Equity method in separate financial statements
The amendments of IAS 27 enable companies to use the equity method for recognising investments in 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in separate financial statements. Companies that already prepare 
their financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
want to move to using the equity method, have to consider these amendments also in financial statements 
during the transitional period. The amendments also explain that companies that move to using IFRS 
standards and the equity method, have to start using the equity method from the date of moving to IFRS. 
These amendments apply to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An early use is allowed. These 
changes do not affect consolidated financial reports of the group. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sales or contributions of assets between an investor and its asso-
ciate or joint venture 
The amendments address conflicts between the requirements of IFRS 10 and IAS 28 regarding recognising 
the loss of control over a subsidiary after selling or transferring the subsidiary to an associate or joint ven-
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ture. The amendments explain that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution to an associate or 
a joint venture of assets that constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 is recognised in full. The gain or loss 
resulting from the sale or contribution of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 
3 to an associate or joint venture is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the asso-
ciate or joint venture. Amendments apply to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An early use 
is allowed. The Group assumes that these changes will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendments to standards and notes adopted in the 2012–2014 period
In the 2012–2014 period, the International Accounting Standards Board published a set of changes of 
standards listed hereafter, which apply to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An early use of 
the changed and amended standards is allowed.

Amendments to IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: Changes in 
methods of disposal
The amendment explains that the changes in the method of disposal (held for sale or distribution) do not 
represent a new sales plan but a continuation of the original sales plan without discontinuing to comply with 
the requirements of IFRS 5. The changed standard applies to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later.
 
The amendments include specific guidance for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset from held for 
sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is discontin-
ued. The amendments specify that: 
• Such reclassifications do not constitute a new held-for-sale or distribution plan and that companies 

have to meet all the requirements regarding reclassification, presentation an measuring that apply to 
the new method of disposal.

• Assets that do not meet the requirements for being recognised as assets held for distribution (and also 
do not meet the criteria for being recognised as assets held for sale) shall be treated equally as assets 
that discontinue to meet the criteria for being recognised as assets held for sale. 

The Group assumes that these changes will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures in connection with servicing contracts 
and using the amendments in separate financial statements of the company with a consequential impact 
on the amendments to IFRS 1
The amendments add additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement 
in a transferred asset. The amendments also explain that in condensed interim financial statements, recog-
nitions in accordance with IFRS 7 regarding offsetting disclosures are not required.

The amendments also add additional guidance regarding disclosures that are required in connection with 
the transfer of assets and clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a transferred 
asset. Article 42C(c) of IFRS 7 states that an indirect arrangement within a servicing contract does not 
constitute continuing involvement from the prospective of disclosures at the transfer of financial assets.

Using changes of and amendments to IFRS 7 for preparing financial statements
The amendments explain the usage of amendments to and changes of IFRS 7 regarding offsetting disclo-
sures to condensed interim financial statements. Amendments to and changes of IFRS 7 were adopted by 
the International Accounting Standards Board with the intention to eliminate the uncertainty regarding 
whether companies need to include disclosures based on the requirements that were published in Decem-
ber 2011, and apply to financial years starting on 1 January 2013 or later, in offsetting disclosures in their 
condensed interim financial statements. 

Changes and amendments of the standard apply to future periods in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The Group assumes that these changes will not have 
a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits: Discount rate – regional market issue
The amendments clarify Clarifies that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate 
for post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid (thus, 
the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds should be assessed at currency level). 

The amendments of the standard apply from the beginning of the first comparative period which is present-
ed in the first financial statements prepared based on the renewed and amended standard. All initial adjust-
ments have to be recognised within retained earnings in the opening balance of this period. The amended 



Financial report of the Impol Group for 2015

84 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

standard applies to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. The Group assumes that these changes 
will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendment to IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting: disclosure of information 'elsewhere in the inter-
im financial report'
The amendment explains that disclosures in accordance with IAS 34 have to be included in interim finan-
cial reports and not in interim financial statements, and that interim financial statements have to include 
references to the corresponding chapters of interim financial reports. Additionally, companies have to sub-
mit interim financial reports to users on the same grounds as interim financial statements.

The amended standard applies to future periods in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The Group assumes that these changes will not have a significant impact on financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify but not significantly change the 
existing requirements of the standard. The amendments clarify:
• The requirements of IAS 1 regarding importance.
• An entity may disregard certain items in the statement of financial position and the statement of profit 

or loss and other comprehensive income.
• An entity may freely choose the order of presenting notes to financial statements.
• An entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures should be presented in ag-

gregate as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.
 
The amendments also clarify the requirements regarding an additional presentation of interim amounts in 
the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The 
amendments apply to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An early use of the amendments is 
permitted. The Group assumes that these changes will not have a significant impact on financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Ex-
ception
The amendments clarify the issues that entities face regarding the exemption from consolidation for in-
vestment entities based on the provisions of IFRS 10. The amendments clarify that the exemptions from 
presenting consolidated financial statements apply to an entity parent that is a subsidiary of an investment 
entity, if the investment entity measures its shares in all subsidiaries at fair value. 
 
The amendments also explain that the consolidation only includes subsidiaries that are not investment en-
tities and that provide supporting services to an investment entity. All other subsidiaries of the investment 
entity have to be measured at fair value. The amendments of IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures enable investors when using the equity method to keep the fair value method used by associates 
and joint ventures of an investment entity for measuring their shares in subsidiaries. The amendments apply 
to financial years starting on 1 January 2016 or later. An early use of the amendments is permitted. The 
Group assumes that these changes will not have a significant impact on financial statements.

New adopted standards and notes that entered into force on 1 January 2015
The accounting policies used for consolidated financial statements are the same as the accounting policies 
used for the consolidated financial statements for the financial years ending on 31 December 2014, with the 
exception of newly adopted or changed notes that entered into force on 1 January 2015 and are presented 
hereafter.  

Amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
The amendments clarify the contributions from employees or third parties within defined benefit plans. If 
the amount of the contributions depends on the number of years of service, those contributions must be 
attributed to periods of service and be recognised as negative benefits. If the amount of the contributions is 
independent of the number of years of service, contributions may be recognised as a reduction in the service 
cost in the period in which the related service is rendered, and not distributed over the whole period of 
service. . The amendments apply to financial years starting on 1 July 2014 or later. These changes did not 
significantly impact the statements of the group.
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Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment
The amendments clarify different definition of the requirements in connection with performance or re-
quirements that require employees to stay employed by the entity. The amendments apply to future periods.
These changes did not significantly impact the statements of the group.

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations
The amendments that apply to future periods clarify that after initial recognition, all contingent payments 
classified as liabilities (or assets), originating from business combinations, shall be measured at fair value at 
each reporting date, regardless if they fall under the requirements of IAS 39 Financial Instruments. These 
changes did not significantly impact the statements of the group.

Amendments to IFRS 8, Operating Segments
The amendments that apply to future periods clarify that entities are required to: 
• Disclose the judgements made by management in applying the criteria from IFRS 8 and add a short 

description of group operating segments and economic indicators like sales and gross margin, based on 
which the entity decided whether operating segments are similar or not.

• The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation 
is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required disclosures for segment lia-
bilities.

These changes did not significantly impact the statements of the group.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
The amendments that apply to future periods clarify in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by 
reference to observable data by either adjusting the gross carrying amount of the asset to market value or by 
determining the market value of the carrying value and adjusting the gross carrying amount proportionately 
so that the resulting carrying amount equals the market value. In addition, the accumulated depreciation 
or amortisation is the difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset. These changes did 
not significantly impact the statements of the group since its assets are not revalued under the revaluation 
model.

Amendments to MRS 24, Related Party Disclosures
The amendments that apply to future periods clarify that a management entity (an entity that provides key 
management personnel services) is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an 
entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services. 
In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses of management 
services. These changes did not significantly impact the statements of the group.

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations
The amendments that apply to future periods clarify that: 
• Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3.
• This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint arrange-

ment itself.
These changes did not significantly impact the statements of the group.

Amendments to IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement
The amendments that apply to future periods clarify that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied 
not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of IAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement. These changes did not significantly impact the 
statements of the group.

Amendments to IAS 40, Investment Properties
The description of ancillary services in IAS 40 differentiates between investment property and owner-oc-
cupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment). The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies 
that IFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in IAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction 
is the purchase of an asset or a business combination. These changes did not significantly impact the state-
ments of the group.

Basis and estimates for preparing financial statements 
Financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the company Impol 2000 d.d. were prepared 
at historical cost basis, except in case of derivatives. 

Amendments 
to Standards 
and Notes 
Adopted in 
the 2010−2012 
period

Amendments to 
Standards and 
Notes Adopted 
in the 2011−2013 
period 
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In accordance with the legislation, the company Impol 2000 d.d. shall ensure independent auditing of these 
financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in EUR (without cents), and EUR is also the functional 
currency of the Group. 

Use of estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the controlling company to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the 
Group as well as the reported income and expenses. Estimates and assumptions are based on previous 
experiences and many other factors which are considered in given circumstances as justified and based on 
which we can determine the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not clearly evident from other 
sources. Actual results can differ from these estimates. Estimates and assumptions have to be regularly re-
viewed. Changes in accounting estimates may only be recognised for the period in which the estimates were 
changed, if the changes apply only to this period, or both for the current and future periods, if the changes 
affect both the current and future periods.

Assessments and assumptions are mostly present in the following estimates:

• Estimate of useful life of depreciable assets
For estimating the useful life of assets, the company considers the expected physical wear, technical ageing, 
economical ageing, and the expected legal and other restrictions of use. The company annually reviews the 
useful life of more significant assets. If the expected pattern of using future economic gains based on de-
preciable assets changes significantly, the depreciation method shall also change to meet the changes of the 
pattern. These changes are regarded as changes in accounting estimates.

• Impairment testing of assets
Impairment testing of assets is performed by the management to ensure that the carrying amount does not 
exceed the replacement value. On every reporting date, the management estimates if there are any signs of 
impairment. Critical estimates were used for the following assessments of value:

• investment property (Note 8),
• goodwill (Note 6),
• investments in associates (Note 9),
• financial claims (Notes 9, 11, 19).

• Estimate of fair value of assets (Note 19)
Fair value is used in case of financial assets measured by fair value through profit or loss, and in case of 
derivatives. All other items in financial statements represent the purchase or the amortised value. All assets 
and liabilities that are measured by fair value in financial statements are classified in a hierarchy of fair value 
based on the lowest level of inputs that are important for measuring the total fair value: 

• Level one includes quoted prices (unadjusted) on functioning markets for the same assets and 
liabilities.

• Level two includes inputs that besides quoted prices from level one is also noted directly (i.e. 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) as assets or liabilities.

• Level three includes inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

Quoted prices are used as the basis for determining fair value of financial instruments. If a financial instru-
ment is placed on an organised marked or if the market is estimated as not functioning, inputs from levels 
two and three are used for determining the fair value.
 
• Estimate of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial investments are presented at fair value or at purchase value if fair value cannot 
be reliably determined. Profit or loss is recognised in equity as net unrealised gains from available-for-sale 
financial investments until the investment is sold or disposed of. Purchase and sale of available-for-sale 
investments are recognised on the day of purchase.
Equity investment in subsidiaries, associates and other companies are measured at fair value. 

• Estimate of net recoverable value of inventories
At least at the end of the financial year, the net recoverable value of inventories and the need for inventories 
to be written down is assessed. Partial write-down of inventories under their original value or costs to their 
net recoverable value is in accordance with the policy that assets cannot be carried at a value higher that 
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the value expected at their sale or use. Inventories are usually partially written down to the net recoverable 
value of individual line items. 

• Estimate of recoverable value of claims
At least once annually, namely before preparing the annual statement of account, the suitability of rec-
ognised amounts of individual claims is assessed. Claims that are not settled within the agreed period are 
recognised as ‘doubtful’ and ‘at issue’, and a correction of their value is recognised to debit of the revaluated 
operating charges, and usually legal proceedings are brought about (lawsuit or enforcement).  

• Estimate of the possibility of utilising deferred tax assets and tax liabilities
The Group forms deferred tax assets for provisions for jubilee and retirement benefits, impairments of fi-
nancial investments, impairment of claims, and tax losses. Deferred tax liabilities are formed as temporary 
deductible differences between the carrying value and the tax value of fixed assets.

At the end of a financial year, the amount of the recognised deferred tax assets and tax liabilities is estimated. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised in case of a probable available future profit against which the deferred tax 
assets can be utilised. 

• Assessment of provisioning
Within the requirements regarding certain post-employment and other benefits, the present value of retire-
ment and jubilee benefits is recognised based on the actuarial assessment. The actuarial assessment is based 
on the assumptions and estimates valid at the time of the assessment and can differ from actual assumptions 
in the future due to certain changes (discount levels, assessment of turnover of staff, assessment of mortality, 
and assessment of wage growth). The Group had no other provisioning.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted to the respective functional currencies of Group entities 
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the prevailing exchange rate 
at that date. Positive or negative foreign currency differences are differences between the purchase value 
in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted by the amount of effective interest and 
payments during the period, and the purchase value in foreign currency converted at the exchange rate at 
the end of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are mea-
sured at fair value are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Non-cash items measured at historical costs in foreign currency are translated into 
the functional currency by applying the exchange rate valid at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency 
differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial statements of companies in the Group
The consolidated financial statements are presented in EUR. Items of every company in the Group that are 
included in financial statements are converted into the reporting currency for the purpose of the consoli-
dated financial statements as follows: 
• Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are converted according to ECB exchange rates on the date 

of reporting.
For converting balance sheet items from national currencies into EUR, the following reference ECB ex-
change rates were used:

Important  
Accounting 
Policies of the 
Group  

Table 40: Reference ECB exchange rates for converting balance sheet items

Currency 31 Dec 2015 

USD 1.0887

HUF 315.98

RSD 121.23

HK 7.638
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• Revenue and expenditure of foreign companies are converted into EUR according to average annual 
exchange rates of the financial year.

For converting balance sheet items from national currencies into EUR, the following exchange rates were 
used:

Currency differences are recognised under other comprehensive income and reported under the item ex-
change differences in equity. If a foreign entity is disposed of in a way that there is no longer a controlling 
or significant influence, the corresponding cumulative amount in the exchange difference in equity is trans-
lated into gains and losses on disposal. If the Group disposes of only part of its share in a subsidiary that 
includes a foreign company, while maintaining a controlling influence, the corresponding share of the cu-
mulative amount is reclassified as non-controlling share. If the Group disposes of only part of its investment 
in a subsidiary of joint venture that includes a foreign company, while maintaining a controlling influence, 
the corresponding share of the cumulative amount is reclassified as profit or loss.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the parent company Impol 2000 d.d. Control exists when the con-
trolling company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are 
taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial state-
ments from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Accounting policies of 
subsidiaries are harmonised with the accounting policies of the company Impol 2000 d.d.

After loss of control, the Group recognises assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, non-controlling shares 
and other components of equity in connection with the subsidiary. Any surpluses or deficits that arise at 
the loss of control are recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains a share in a previous subsidiary, this 
share is measured at fair value at the date of the loss of control. Later, this share is recognised in equity as an 
investment in a subsidiary (using the equity method) or as available-for-sale financial assets, depending on 
the level of control. Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. Costs that can be connected with pur-
chasing a subsidiary increase the value at cost of the equity investment. Sharing in profit of the subsidiary 
is recognised in profit or loss after the subsidiary acquires the right to profit-sharing. Consolidated financial 
statements do not include revenue/expenditure and loss based on transaction within the Group.

Investments in associates 
Associates are entities where the Group has a significant influence but does not control their financial 
and business policies. A significant influence exists if an entity owns 20 to 50 percent of voting rights in 
another entity. Investments in associates are recognised in individual statements at cost and in consolidated 
statements using the equity method. Consolidated financial statements include the share of the entity in 
profit or loss, using the equity method, from the date of the beginning ant until the date of the end of the 
significant influence. Accounting policies of associates are harmonised with the accounting policies of the 
company Impol 2000 d.d.

If the share of the company in the loss of the associate is bigger than its share, the carrying value of the share 
in the associate is reduced to zero, and it is no longer recognised in future losses. Costs that can be connected 
with the purchase increase the value at cost of the equity investment.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include: 
• Investments in licences and other non-current property rights (IT, software).
• Goodwill. 

Table 41:Exchange rates for converting profit or loss

Currency Average annual in 2015 

USD 1.1095

HUF 310.00

RSD 120.56

HK 7.6137
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At initial recognition, intangible assets are valued at cost. The carrying value of intangible assets with a 
finite useful life is reduced with amortisation. Later expenditure in connection with intangible assets are 
only capitalised if they increase future economic gain. All other costs are recognised in profit and loss as 
expenditure at the moment they arise.

Among intangible assets with a finite useful life, the Group recognises software and licences. For the ac-
quired software, the value at cost also includes the costs of acquisition and training for use, and for material 
rights, only the costs of acquisition. Within the whole useful life of individual intangible assets, the company 
consistently allocates its depreciable amount to individual financial periods as the current amortisation. 
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method, while considering the useful life of the intangible 
asset. Amortisation starts at the value of cost, after the asset is made available for use. Amortisation meth-
ods, useful life and other values are reviewed and, when necessary, adjusted at the end of every financial year. 
Depreciation rates based on the estimated useful life of individual types of intangible assets:

Goodwill, which occurred at consolidation, represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the enti-
ty’s share in fair value of the acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of subsidiaries 
at the date of acquisition. Negative goodwill is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss 
account. Goodwill is considered as an asset with a finite useful life and is tasted at least once a year regarding 
possible impairment.

Every impairment is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account and is not removed 
later. At a disposal of a subsidiary, the corresponding amount of goodwill is included in profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recognised using the cost model. At initial recognition, they are measured 
at cost, reduced by amortisation and impairment loss, except land, which is not subject to amortisation and 
are recognised at cost, reduced by all impairments. Value at cost includes costs that can be directly attributed 
to individual assets.

Important parts of fixed assets that have different useful lives are recognised as individual tangible fixed 
assets.

Borrowing costs that are directly connected with purchasing, building or creating an asset in acquisition are 
recognised within the value at cost of this asset. 

Value at cost of assets created in the Group includes material costs, direct costs of labour, indirect produc-
tion costs, and (it required) the initial assessment of costs of decommissioning, removal and restoring the 
site where the asset is held. Immovable property that was built for future use as investment property are 
considered as tangible fixed assets and are recognised at cost at the date of completion of construction when 
immovable property becomes investment immovable property.

Positive or negative differences between the net recoverable value and the carrying value of the disposed 
asset are recognised in profit or loss. The costs of replacing a part of a tangible fixed asset are recognised at 
the carrying value of this asset, if it is probable that future economic gains of this part of the asset will flow 
into the Group and if the value at cost can be reliably measured.

All other costs (repairs, maintenance) for preserving or renewing future economic gain are recognised in the 
profit and loss account as expenditures immediately after they occur. Amortisation is calculated using the 
straight-line method, considering the useful life of individual tangible fixed assets and the residual value, 

Table 42: Depreciation rates used for intangible fixed assets

Depreciation rates used in the Group Depreciation rate in %

Lowest Highest

Intangible assets

Software 20.00% 50.00%

Intangible investments 20.00% 20.00%
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while residual value is only determined for significant assets. Land is not subject to amortisation. Amorti-
sation starts after the asset is made available for use.
Depreciation rates based on the estimated useful life of individual types of tangible fixed assets:

Table 43: Depreciation rates used for intangible and tangible fixed assets

Depreciation rates used in the Group Depreciation rate in %

Lowest Highest 

Intangible assets   

Software 20.00% 50.00%

Intangible investment 20.00% 20.00%

Tangible fixed assets   

Immovable property   

Buildings 1.30% 3.00%

Other constructions 1.30% 2.50%

Equipment   

Production equipment 1.50% 20.00%

Equipment until 2003  33.00%

Equipment until 2007 20.00% 25.00%

Other equipment after 01 Jan 2007 5.50% 20.00%

Computer equipment 50.00% 50.00%

Motor vehicles   

Transport vehicles 6.20% 20.00%

Personal vehicles 12.50% 15.50%

Other tangible fixed assets 10.00% 10.00%

Investment property (cost model) 1.30% 3.00%

Investment property
Investment property is property that is owned with the intention to collect rent (land, buildings or parts of 
buildings or both). They are recognised at cost, reduced by amortisation and impairment loss. Amortisation 
is calculated using the straight-line method, considering the useful life of the investment property. Depre-
ciation rates are between 1.3 and 3 percent.

For reporting and disclosure in annual statements fair value of investment property is valued using the cash 
flow capitalisation method, where cash flow mostly consists of rent received from renting investment prop-
erty. Investment property that is rented within the Group is reclassified as tangible fixed assets, except in 
cases where ancillary services are so insignificant that the property does not meet the reclassification criteria.

Financial instruments 
Financial instruments include:
• Non-derivative financial assets, 
• Non-derivative financial liabilities, 
• Derivative financial instruments.

At initial recognition, financial instruments are recognised at fair value. Fair value is the amount that can 
be obtained by selling the asset or exchanging the liability well-informed and willing parties in an arm's 
length transaction. After the initial recognition, they are measured according to value as described hereafter.

After determining the fair value of financial instruments, the following hierarchy of determining fair value 
is taken into account:
• Level one includes quoted prices (unadjusted) on functioning markets for the same assets and liabil-

ities.
• Level two includes inputs that besides quoted prices from level one are also noted directly (i.e. prices) 

or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) as assets or liabilities.
• Level three includes inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.
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Quoted prices are used as the basis for determining fair value of financial instruments. If a financial instru-
ment is placed on an organised marked or if the market is estimated as not functioning, inputs from levels 
two and three are used for determining the fair value.

Non-derivative financial assets
Non-derivative financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, claims and loans, and investments. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets intended for trade are classified as assets at fair value through profit or loss. At initial recog-
nition, assets are valued at fair value, which is the same as the paid amount. Changes in fair value of assets 
are recognised directly in profit or loss. The Group has no such assets recognised in its financial statements.

Financial assets held to maturity
If the Group has the intention and possibility to hold debit securities to maturity, these are classified as 
financial assets held to maturity, which are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 
Group has no such assets recognised in its financial statements.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that are not quoted in an active market. They 
are included in current assets, except with maturity longer than 12 months after the date of the financial 
statement, in which case they are classified as non-current assets. In the balance sheet, loans and receivables 
are recognised under business, financial and other receivables at amortised value, considering the current 
interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are classified as available-
for-sale or are not classified as loans and receivables or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 
Available-for-sale financial investments are presented at fair value or at purchase value if fair value cannot 
be reliably determined. Profit or loss is recognised in equity as net unrealised gains from available-for-sale 
financial investments until the investment is sold or disposed of. Purchase and sale of available-for-sale 
investments are recognised on the day of purchase.

Equity investment in subsidiaries, associates and other companies are measured at fair value. 

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash, bank deposits up to three months, and other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with initial maturity of three months or less. They are carried at cost. Overdrafts are 
included under current financial liabilities.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities include business, financial and other liabilities. Financial liabilities are 
initially recognised at fair value, increased by costs directly attributable to the transaction. After initial rec-
ognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised value using the effective interest method. Financial 
liabilities are classified under non-current liabilities, except with maturity shorter that 12 months after the 
date of the consolidated statement of financial position, in which case liabilities are classified as current 
liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Costs connected with the transaction 
are recognised in profit or loss after they arise. After initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are 
measured at fair value, while changes are recognised as described hereafter. 

When a derivative financial instrument is used as a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that 
is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction and could affect profit or loss, the effective part of changes in fair value of derivative financial in-
struments is recognised under the comprehensive income of the period and disclosed under the revaluation 
surplus. The ineffective part of changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments is recognised directly 
in profit or loss. The Group usually stops using the instrument as a hedge of the exposure to variability in 
cash flows if the financial instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedging or if the financial instru-
ment is sold, terminated or exercised. The accumulated profit or loss recognised under other comprehensive 
income remains recognised under the revaluation surplus, until the forecasted transaction does not affect 
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profit or loss. If the forecasted transaction can no longer be expected, the amount in other comprehensive 
income has to be recognised directly in profit or loss. In other cases, the amount recognised under other 
comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss of the same period in which the hedged item affects 
profit or loss. 

The effects of other derivative financial instruments that are not used as a hedge of the exposure to vari-
ability in cash flows or that cannot be attributed to individual risks in connection with a recognised asset or 
liability are recognised in profit or loss. 

The Group uses the following derivative financial instruments: 

• Forwards 
Effective management of the whole raw material field of the Impol Group is focused on two areas: currency 
risk management and management of risks regarding changes in aluminium prices. Both areas are closely 
linked and are managed by the Group with forwards and futures.

In case of aluminium raw materials or hedging of LME risks, the Impol Group follow the principle that 
profit or loss from a forward is recognised in profit or loss at liquidation or after settling individual forwards 
on the stock market on the day of maturity, which is usually the same as the period of the realisation of the 
sale transaction on the physical market, or after realising the actual processing margin, which is the subject 
of hedging. In the presented manner, possible fluctuations in the achieved processing margin of sales on the 
physical market due to changes in prices of aluminium raw material at the time of sale, which are used as 
the base for determining the sales price (LME + sales premium), are balanced or neutralised by the effects 
of the realised forward, both being recognised in profit or loss of the same period. With this principle, the 
Impol Group provides profitability, which mostly depends on the difference between the purchase premium 
and the achieved sales premium and not on the fluctuations of aluminium prices. Profit or loss from these 
forwards is recognised in profit and loss under other financial income and revenue. 

Currency risk management through forward currency contracts is also directly connected with managing 
aluminium prices and fluctuations of LME prices of aluminium. The Group purchases aluminium in US 
dollars and realises most of sales in EUR. Purchasing and selling in different currencies leads to inconsisten-
cies between purchase and sales prices, which is harmonised by the Group by using forwards. Profit or loss 
from  forward currency transactions is recognised in profit or loss under other financial income and revenue. 

Forwards include fair value of open transactions on the date of the statement of financial position, which is 
determined based on publically available information on the value of forwards on the organised market on 
the date of reporting for all open transactions. 

• Interest rate swaps
Interests of received loans bear the interest rate change risk, against which the Group uses interest rate 
swaps. Interest rate swaps value the fair value of open swaps on the date of the balance sheet with dis-
counting of future cash flows in connection with variable interest (receipt of interest from swaps) and fixed 
interest (payment of interest from swaps). When interest rate swaps are defined as a safety instrument 
against the variability of cash flows of recognised assets or liabilities or the intended transaction, profit or 
loss resulting from the instrument that is defined as an successful safety against risk is recognised directly 
under other comprehensive income and the revaluation surplus item in the balance sheet. Profit or loss 
resulting from the instrument that is defined as unsuccessful is recognised in profit or loss under other 
financial expenditure.

Inventories
The Group follows the following inventories:
• inventory of raw materials,
• inventory of materials,
• inventory of incomplete production,
• inventory of finished goods and merchandise.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net recoverable value. Net recoverable value is the estimat-
ed selling price at the reporting date less sales expenses and other possible administrative expenses, which 
are usually connected with the sale.
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Inventories of materials and merchandise are valued at cost including the purchase price, import duties and 
other non-refundable purchase taxes, and the direct costs of purchase. For valuing inventories of merchan-
dise and measuring use, the FIFO method is used.

Inventories of incomplete production are valued at cost of production depending on the percentage of 
completion. 

In consolidation, unrealised profit or loss in inventories purchased within the Group are excluded by reduc-
ing the corresponding part of inventories and increasing operational expenditure. The calculation of profit 
is performed based on the achieved EBIT margin of the financial year.

Impairment of inventories is described in detail under in chapter on impairment

Called-up capital
Called-up capital of the controlling company is present as share capital, which is nominally defined in the 
statute of the company registered with the court and paid-in by the company’s owners.

Initial share capital of the company Impol 2000 d.d. as of 31 December 2015 is EUR 4,451,540 and is 
divided into 1,066,767 registered pro rata shares. Dividends are paid in accordance with the decisions of 
the General Meeting.

Capital reserves
Capital reserves include all amounts of payments that exceed the lowest emission amounts of shares, and the 
amounts based on eliminating the general revaluation adjustment. Capital reserves of the company Impol 
2000 d.d. include paid-in capital surplus and the general revaluation adjustment.

Own shares
If the controlling company or its subsidiaries buy shares of the controlling company, the paid amounts, in-
cluding transaction costs and excluding taxes, are deducted from the total capital as own shares, until these 
shares are cancelled, reissued or sold. If own shares are reissued or sold, all the received payments excluding 
transaction costs and connected tax affects are included in capital reserves.

Statutory reserves
Statutory reserves of the controlling company are formed based on the statute of the company in the 
amount of 15 percent of net profit of the financial year.

Revaluation surplus and capital revaluation adjustment
Revaluation surplus includes actuarial gains or losses based on provisions for retirement allowances and the 
effects of fair value changes of derivative financial instruments that are classified as hedging instruments 
(currency swaps). Capital revaluation adjustment includes the effects based on revaluations of financial 
statements of foreign companies. 

Provisions and non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue
Provisions are formed for present obligations that are the outcome of past events and that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for jubilee and retirement benefits
In accordance with legal requirements and its internal rules, the Group is bound to pay jubilee and retire-
ment benefits to its employees, for which it formed long term provisions. There are no other retirement 
obligations. Provisions are formed in the amount of the expected future payments of jubilee and retirement 
benefits discounted on the date of the statement of financial position. Calculations are made for individual 
employees by including the costs of all expected retirement and jubilee benefits.

Actuarial calculation is based on assumptions and assessments applicable at the time of the calculation that 
due to changes in the following year may differ from actual assumptions that will apply at that time. This 
mostly considers the discount rate, assessment of turnover of staff, assessment of mortality, and assessment 
of wage growth. 

Non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue
Non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue consider received grants for cofinancing equipment for 

Capital
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improving the working conditions for the disabled. Grants related to assets are recognised as income in the 
statement of comprehensive income and in the useful life of the asset.

Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had 
a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows from that asset. A financial asset is impaired if its carrying 
value is higher than the estimated replacement value. The financial asset is revaluated if there is an objective 
evidence of impairment. The replacement value represents the present value of the estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate of this instrument. All impairment losses are recognised in 
profit or loss.

A financial investment is assessed at each reporting date by the accounting department to determine its suit-
ability. If a financial investment is losing value (e.g. due to unsuccessful operations of the entity where the 
company has its equity participation, insufficient solvency etc.), what kind of corrections have to be made to 
the initially recognised value of cost and debited to revaluation financial expenditures. The person responsible 
also has to order a partial or total cancellation of the financial investment as soon as reasons for this occur. 

Impairment of receivables and loans granted
Impairments of receivables are formed based on the assessment of recoverability time analysis.
If it is assessed that the carrying value of a receivable exceeds its fair value, which is its recoverable value, the 
receivable is impaired. Receivables that are assessed not to be collected within the regular deadline or in the 
whole amount are considered as doubtful. If proceedings were already brought before the court, receivables 
are considered as disputed. Impairment of loans granted is valuated for every individual loan. Impairment 
loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective 
interest rate. All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 
An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognised by transferring the pos-
sible cumulative loss, previously recognised under other comprehensive income of the financial period and 
carried under reserves at fair value, to profit or loss. A later increase of fair value of impaired available-for-
sale equity securities is recognised under other comprehensive income or fair value reserves. An impairment 
loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was 
recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost and available-for-sale financial assets that are 
debt securities, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Tangible and intangible assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to deter-
mine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recover-
able amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest group of assets that generate financial 
income that are significantly independent from financial income from other assets and groups of assets. Im-
pairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 
is the higher of its value in use and its fair value, less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value by using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment loss of goodwill is 
not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the 
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the esti-
mates used to determine the assets' recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in the previous periods.

Inventories
Inventories are impaired if their carrying amount exceeds their estimated recoverable amount. Additionally, 
individual types of inventories are also analysed regarding their time structure. Depending on the group of 

Impairments

Non-financial 
Assets
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inventories, the amount of impairment loss according to their age is determined as a percentage of their 
value. Impairment also includes expert judgement on possible utilisation or sale of such inventories. At least 
at the end of every financial period, the company measures the net recoverable amount of inventories and 
the need for write-offs. Costs of inventories are not reversible if inventories are damaged, partially or com-
pletely obsolete, or if their sales price is reduced. Costs of inventories are also not reversible if the estimated 
costs of completion or costs in connection with sales increase. Partial write-offs of inventories under their 
original value or costs up to the net recoverable value is in accordance with the policy that assets cannot 
be recognised at values higher than expected from their sale or utilisation. Inventories are usually partially 
written off to their net recoverable value under individual items.

Recognition of income and expenses
Income is recognised if the increase of economic gain in the financial year is connected with an increase of 
an asset or a decrease of a liability, and if this increase can be reliably measured. 

Operating income includes:
• Income from sale of products, merchandise and material is measured based on sales prices stated on 

invoices or other documents, reduced by discounts given at sale or later, also due to early payments. 
Income from sale of products is recognised in profit or loss after the company transfers significant risks 
and gains in connection with the ownership of products to the buyer.

• Income from sale of services, except services that lead to financial income, are measured according to 
sales prices of completed services. They are recognised in the period in which the service is performed. 

• Incomplete production and complete products at warehouse are valued at production costs. The degree 
of completion of performed services in case of incomplete production is assessed with an inventory.

• Other operating income occurs in case of disposal of property, devices, equipment and intangible 
assets, compensations received, subventions, removal of provisions, payment of previously written off 
receivables, liability write offs and other.

Operating expenses in a financial period are in principle the same as costs increased by costs of initial inven-
tories of uncompleted production and complete products, and reduced by accrued charges of final invento-
ries. Costs of sales and costs of general activities are immediately after their occurrence included in income.
For calculating consumption, the Group uses the FIFO method.

Financial income and expenses
Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, gains on the disposal of 
available-for-sale financial assets, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss, and foreign exchange gains and gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in profit or loss, 
interest from receivables not paid on time and positive currency differences. Interest income is recognised as 
it accrues in profit or loss by using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised on the date 
that the shareholder's right to receive payment is established. 

Financial expenses comprise interest expenses on borrowings (part of borrowing costs can be capitalised 
under property, devices and equipment), foreign exchange losses, changes in the fair value of financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses recognised on financial assets, losses on hedging in-
struments that are recognised in profit or loss.

Taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year. 

Deferred tax is recognised by using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of tax values of assets and liabilities and their values in individual financial 
statements. Deferred tax is determined by using tax rates that are valid on the date the balance sheet and 
that are expected to be used when the deferred tax receivable is realised or the deferred tax liability is set-
tled. Deferred tax receivables are recognised in the extent of the probability that there will be taxable profit 
available in the future that can be used to cover the deferred tax receivable.
Deferred tax due to insignificant amounts are not additionally recognised in consolidated financial state-
ments.

Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement for the part regarding operations is composed using the indirect method from the 
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data of the balance sheet on 31 December of the previous financial year and additional data necessary for 
adjusting inflows and outflows, and for a suitable breakdown of significant items. The part regarding invest-
ing and financing is composed using the indirect method. Paid and received interest from trade receivables 
are distributed between cash flows from operating activities. Interest from loans and paid and received 
dividends are distributed between cash flows from financing.

Segment reporting
Because the nature of product groups, the production procedure and distribution are very similar, the Group 
defined only one operating segment. At segment reporting, it is considered that the main operating section 
of the Group is the aluminium business activities. Other activities have an insignificant effect on presenting 
financial information.

The group reports on sales by geographical area. The defined geographical areas are Slovenia, European 
Union, other European countries and the rest of the world.

Comparable information and effects of transition to IFRS
The transition to the International Financial Reporting Standards had no significant effect on the financial 
statements of the Impol Group. The following balance sheet of the Impol Group shows comparable data 
from the balance sheet of 31 December 2014 and of 31 December 2013 using SRS (2006) and of 1 January 
2014 and 31 December 2014 using IFRS as adopted by the European Union, including the effect of the 
transition. The transition to the International Financial Reporting Standards caused a difference between 
the closing balance of 2013 and the opening balance of 2014. The total effect of the transition showed as a 
decrease of capital or in the economic outturn carried from previous years as of 1 January 2014, which was 
EUR -371.953.
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Table 44: Group balance sheet at the transition to IFRS as of 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 in EUR

Effect of 
transition on 

31 Dec 2014

Effect of tran-
sition on  

1 Jan 2014

31 Dec 2014  
– IFRS

01 Jan 2014  
– IFRS

31 Dec 2014  
– SRS

31 Dec 2013  
– SRS

A.   Fixed assets -371,953 -371,953 137,050,627 142,030,638 137,422,580 142,402,591

 I.  Intangible assets and non-current accrued costs and 
deferred revenue -371,953 -371,953 2,338,571 2,373,785 2,710,524 2,745,738

  1. Non-current property rights 1,256,088 1,144,603 1,972,719 1,992,768 716,631 848,165

  2. Goodwill -371,953 -371,953 319,229 319,229 691,182 691,182

  3. Non-current deferred development costs -3,219 -3,879 0 0 3,219 3,879

  4. Other non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue -1,252,869 -1,140,724 46,623 61,788 1,299,492 1,202,512

 II.  Tangible fixed assets 1,923,587 1,800,447 129,684,051 134,247,330 127,760,464 132,446,883

  1. Land and buildings 1,923,587 1,800,447 39,111,609 35,510,330 37,188,022 33,709,883

  a) Land 0 0 3,723,907 3,766,843 3,723,907 3,766,843

  b) Buildings 1,923,587 1,800,447 35,387,702 31,743,487 33,464,115 29,943,040

  2. Production equipment and machinery 0 0 76,519,479 66,490,271 76,519,479 66,490,271

  3. Other machinery and equipment 0 0 4,080,208 4,363,850 4,080,208 4,363,850

  4. Fixed assets being acquired 0 0 9,972,755 27,882,879 9,972,755 27,882,879

  a) Tangible fixed assets under construction and manu-
facture 0 0 8,933,289 26,113,400 8,933,289 26,113,400

  b) Advances to acquire tangible fixed assets 0 0 1,039,466 1,769,479 1,039,466 1,769,479

 III.  Investment property -1,923,587 -1,800,447 2,450,752 2,775,693 4,374,339 4,576,140

 IV.  Non-current investments 0 0 1,316,187 1,293,115 1,316,187 1,293,115

  1. Non-current investments, excluding loans 0 0 1,054,882 1,040,575 1,054,882 1,040,575

  a) Shares and participating interests in associate 
companies 0 0 665,012 650,576 665,012 650,576

  b) Other shares and participating interests 0 0 389,870 389,999 389,870 389,999

  2. Non-current loans 0 0 261,305 252,540 261,305 252,540

  a) Non-current loans to others 0 0 261,305 252,540 261,305 252,540

 V.  Deferred tax receivables 0 0 1,261,066 1,340,715 1,261,066 1,340,715

B.   Current assets 0 0 189,082,187 162,465,424 189,082,187 162,465,424

 I.  Assets (groups for disposal) for sale 0 0 235,947 0 235,947 0

 II.  Inventories 0 0 108,914,530 90,120,127 108,914,530 90,120,127

  1. Material 0 0 85,214,988 61,244,456 85,214,988 61,244,456

  2. Inventories 0 0 6,844,456 7,940,103 6,844,456 7,940,103

  3. Products and merchandise 0 0 16,245,367 15,419,982 16,245,367 15,419,982

  4. Advances for inventories 0 0 609,719 5,515,586 609,719 5,515,586

 III.  Current financial investments 0 0 612,648 1,789,971 612,648 1,789,971

  1. Current financial investments, excluding loans 0 0 333,808 912,230 333,808 912,230

  a) Other current financial investments 0 0 333,808 912,230 333,808 912,230

  2. Current loans 0 0 278,840 877,741 278,840 877,741

  b) Current loans to others 0 0 278,840 877,741 278,840 877,741

 IV.  Current operating receivables 0 0 66,823,853 61,550,380 66,823,853 61,550,380

  1. Current operating receivables due from customers 0 0 51,631,520 45,452,319 51,631,520 45,452,319

  2. Current operating receivables due from others 0 0 15,192,333 16,098,061 15,192,333 16,098,061

 V.  Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 12,495,209 9,004,946 12,495,209 9,004,946

C.   Current accrued costs and deferred revenue 0 0 1,093,157 2,694,803 1,093,157 2,694,803

   TOTAL ASSETS -371,953 -371.953 327,225,971 307,190,865 327,597,924 307,562,818

A.   Equity -371,953 -371.953 106,177,138 95,226,025 106,549,091 95,597,978

   Minority equity 0 0 9,427,165 9,682,262 9,427,165 9,682,262

 I.  Called-up capital 0 0 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540

  1. Share capital 0 0 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540

  2. Uncalled-up capital (as deductions) 0 0 0 0 0 0

 II.  Capital reserves 0 0 10,751,254 10,751,254 10,751,254 10,751,254

 III.  Reserves from profit 0 0 6,427,553 6,109,738 6,427,553 6,109,738

  1. Legal reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

  2. Reserves for treasury shares and own participating 
interests 0 0 506,406 506,406 506,406 506,406
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  3. Treasury shares and own participating interests (as 
deductions) 0 0 -506,406 -506,406 -506,406 -506,406

  4. Statutory reserves 0 0 694,972 377,157 694,972 377,157

  5. Other reserves from profit 0 0 5,732,581 5,732,581 5,732,581 5.732,581

 IV.  Revaluation surplus -551,708 -537,225 -7,721 0 543,987 537,225

 V.  Consolidated adjustment of capital 3,735,040 3,735,040 -735,989 0 -4,471,029 -3,735,040

 VI.  Net profit brought forward -3,569,768 -3,577,399 63,914,120 52,592,661 67,483,888 56,170,060

 VII.  Net profit/loss for the financial year 14,483 7,631 11,949,216 11,638,570 11,934,733 11,630,939

B.   Provisions and non-current accrued costs and deferred 
revenue 0 0 1,747,281 1,548,921 1,747,281 1,548,921

  1. Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities 0 0 977,091 882,563 977,091 882,563

  2. Other provisions 0 0 2,134 2,213 2,134 2,213

  3. Non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue 0 0 768,056 664,145 768,056 664,145

C.   Non-current liabilities 0 0 78,921,833 70,628,551 78,921,833 70,628,551

 I.  Non-current financial liabilities 0 0 77,579,438 69,648,133 77,579,438 69,648,133

  1. Non-current financial liabilities to banks 0 0 76,695,107 69,170,257 76,695,107 69,170,257

  2. Other non-current financial liabilities 0 0 884,331 477,876 884,331 477,876

 II.  Non-current operating liabilities 0 0 198,659 159,031 198,659 159,031

  1. Other non-current operating liabilities 0 0 198,659 159,031 198,659 159,031

 III.  Deferred tax liabilities 0 0 1,143,736 821,387 1,143,736 821,387

D.   Current liabilities 0 0 139,537,525 137,667,255 139,537,525 137,667,255

 I.  Liabilities included in groups for disposal 0 0 0 0 0 0

 II.  Current financial liabilities 0 0 92,232,252 92,757,685 92,232,252 92,757,685

  1. Current financial liabilities to banks 0 0 69,421,725 85,605,616 69,421,725 85,605,616

  2. Other current financial liabilities 0 0 22,810,527 7,152,069 22,810,527 7,152,069

 III.  Current operating liabilities 0 0 47,305,273 44,909,570 47,305,273 44,909,570

  1. Current trade payables 0 0 38,367,426 33,027,960 38,367,426 33,027,960

  2. Current operating liabilities from advance payments 0 0 1,140,967 2,996,011 1,140,967 2,996,011

  3. Other current operating liabilities 0 0 7,796,880 8,885,599 7,796,880 8,885,599

E.   Current accrued costs and deferred revenue 0 0 842,194 2,120,113 842,194 2,120,113

   TOTAL LIABILITIES -371,953 -371,953 327,225,971 307,190,865 327,597,924 307,562,818

Notes on changes in the balance on 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 at the transition to IFRS:
a) At the transition to IFRS on 01 January 2014, the Impol Group reclassified certain non-current items of 
non-current accrued costs of development that correspond to the nature of property rights from the item 
Non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue to Non-current property rights. The carrying amount of 
the reclassified non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue on 01 January 2014 was EUR 1,140,724 
and on 31 December 2014 it was EUR 1,252,869, and the carrying value of reclassified accrued costs of 
development on 01 January 2014 was EUR 3,879, and on 31 December 2014 it was EUR 3,219. The regular 
transfer had no effect on the disclosed equity, because the carrying amount of non-current property rights 
increased by EUR 1,144,603 on 01 January 2014, and by EUR 1,256,088 on 31 December 2014.

b) At the transition to IFRS, the Impol Group removed previously recognised goodwill in the purchase of 
additional shares in the company Impol d.o.o. that no longer met the conditions for further recognition. 
This removal of goodwill in the amount of EUR 371,953 caused a reduction of the economic outturn car-
ried forward in the same amount.

c) At the transition to IFRS on 01 January 2014, the Impol Group reevaluated individual investment 
property items that are partially rented to other companies in the Group. Based on the conducted analysis, 
the Group reclassified investment property in the amount of EUR 1,800,447 on 01 January 2014, while 
the carrying amount of the reclassified investment property was EUR 1,923,587 on 31 December 2014. 
The regular transfer had no effect on the disclosed equity, because the carrying amount of buildings under 
tangible fixed assets was increased by EUR 1,800,447 on 01 January 2014, and by EUR 1,923,587 on 31 
December 2014.

d) At the transition to IFRS on 01 January 2014, the Impol Group used the option offered by IFRS 1 in 
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connection with the first-time transition to IFRS – the accumulated consolidated correction of capital 
on 31 December 2013 based on the conversion of financial statements of foreign companies, which was, 
according to the state on 01 January 2014, debited in total to the net profit brought forward. The state of 
the consolidated correction of capital on 31 December 2013 was EUR -3,735,040. The total balance of the 
consolidated correction of capital on 01 January 2014 was thus debited to net profit brought forward, which 
caused no changes on the whole amount of capital.

e) At the transition to IFRS on 01 January 2014, the Impol Group transferred the effects of the equity 
method of financial investments in subsidiaries, which was according to SRS (2006) disclosed under the 
revaluation surplus, in the amount of EUR 537,225 to net profit brought forward (EUR 529,594) and the 
net profit/loss of the financial year 2013 in the amount of EUR 7,631. On 31 January 2014, the state of the 
transferred revaluation surplus in question was EUR 543,987, of which, due to the transition to IFRS, the 
net profit carried forward on 31 December 2014 increased by EUR 537,225 and the net profit/loss of the 
financial year 2014 increased by EUR 14,483.
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Table 45: Group Income Statement at the transition to IFRS for 2014 in EUR

Item Effect of 
transition 2014 – IFRS 2014 – SRS

1.  Net revenue from sales 0 486,290,565 486,290,565

 a) Net revenue from sales in the domestic market 0 31,378,501 31,378,501

 b) Net revenue from sales in the foreign market 0 454,912,064 454,912,064

2.  Change in the value of product inventories and unfinished production 0 270,832 270,832

3.  Capitalised own products and services 0 873 873

4.  Other operating revenue (including operating revenue from revaluation) 538,427 2,998,933 2,460,506

5.  Costs of goods, materials and services 0 403,793,935 403,793,935

 a) Cost of sold goods and materials and costs of materials used 0 371,856,006 371,856,006

 b) Costs of services 0 31,937,929 31,937,929

6.  Labour costs 0 42,755,264 42,755,264

 a) Costs of salaries 0 30,277,196 30,277,196

 b) Social security costs (pension insurance costs are shown separately) 0 7,323,180 7,323,180

 c) Other labour costs 0 5,154,888 5,154,888

7.  Write-downs 0 18,587,135 18,587,135

 a) Depreciation 0 16,243,337 16,243,337

 b) Operating expenses from revaluation of intangible assets and tangible fixed assets 0 14,972 14,972

 c) Operating expenses from revaluation associated with current operating assets 0 2,328,826 2,328,826

8.  Other operating expenses 147,889 1,239,349 1,091,460

9.  Financial revenue from participating interests 14,483 65,291 50,808

 a) Financial revenue from participating interests in associate companies 14,483 14,483 0

 b) Financial revenue from participating interests in other companies 0 50,808 50,808

10.  Financial revenue from loans granted 0 27,665 27,665

 a) Financial revenue from loans granted to Group companies 0 0 0

 b) Financial revenue from loans to others 0 27,665 27,665

11. Financial revenue from operating receivables 0 2,674,715 2,674,715

 a) Financial revenue from operating receivables due from Group companies 0 0 0

 b) Financial revenue from operating receivables due from others 0 2,674,715 2,674,715

12. Financial expenses from the impairment and write-offs of financial investments 0 1,165 1,165

13. Financial expenses from financial liabilities 0 9,862,439 9,862,439

 a) Financial expenses from loans received from Group companies 0 0 0

 b) Financial expenses from loans from banks 0 6,089,868 6,089,868

 c) Financial expenses from bonds issued 0 0 0

 d) Financial expenses incurred in connection with other financial liabilities 0 3,772,571 3,772,571

14. Financial expenses from operating liabilities 0 1,326,724 1,326,724

 a) Financial expenses from operating liabilities to Group companies 0 0 0

 b) Financial expenses from trade payables and bills of exchange payable 0 13,827 13,827

 c) Financial expenses from other operating liabilities 0 1,312,897 1,312,897

15. Other revenue -538,427 0 538,427

16. Other expenses -147,889 0 147,889

17. Income tax  0 1,838,522 1,838,522

18. Deferred taxes 0 457,665 457,665

19. Net profit/loss for the financial year 14,483 12,466,676 12,452,193

  Of which minority equity profit/loss 0 199,645 199,645

  Profit/loss of Group companies 14,483 12,267,031 12,252,548

  Result from continuing operations 14,483 12,466,676 12,452,193

  Result from discontinued operations 0 0 0

Notes on changes in the income statements at the transition to IFRS:
a) At the transition to IFRS, the Impol Group reclassified the disclosed items of other revenue and other 
revenue according to SRS (2006) to Other operating revenue and Other operating income. 

b) Because the Impol Group disclosed the effects of financial investments in subsidiaries using the equity 
method under the revaluation surplus, the Group, at the transition to IFRS and in the same comparative 
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amount of the financial year 2014, the effects of using the equity method in the amount of 14,483 were 
added to Financial revenue from participating interests in associate companies, and on the other hand, 
reduced the revaluation surplus disclosed under equity in the same amount. This had no effect on the total 
comprehensive income of the Group for 2014.

Table 46: Group Statement of Total Comprehensive Income at the transition to IFRS for 2014 in EUR

Effect of transition 2014 – IFRS 2014 – SRS

Net profit/loss for the financial year 14,483 12,466,676 12,452,193

Changes in the surplus from revaluation of intangible assets and tangible fixed assets (+/-) 0   

Changes in the surplus from revaluation of financial assets available for sale (+/-) – investments in 
associates -14,483 0 14,483

Gains and losses resulting from the conversion of Financial Statements of foreign companies (effects 
of changes to the exchange rate) (+/-) 0 -1,106,990 -1,106,990

Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans (employee benefits) (+/-) 0 -7,721 -7,721

Total comprehensive income in the financial year 0 11,351,965 11,351,965

• Of which total comprehensive income of minority equity 0 -171,356 -171,356

• Of which total comprehensive income of Group companies 0 11,523,321 11,523,321
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1. Operating revenue

Net sales revenue from the sale of aluminium products (per state) is specified in detail under Market and 
Customers.

Table 48: Net sales revenue by business segment in EUR

2015 2014

Revenue from sales in Slovenia 34,947,271 31,378,501

•   Associates 81,068 82,621

•   Other companies 34,866,203 31,295,880

Revenue from sales in the EU 459,707,674 405,635,473

•   Other companies 459,707,674 405,635,473

Revenue from sales in other European countries 14,756,878 17,768,273

•   Other companies 14,756,878 17,768,273

Revenue from sales on other markets 36,734,882 31,508,318

•   Other companies 36,734,882 31,508,318

TOTAL 546,146,705 486,290,565

Table 47: Operating revenue in EUR

Operating revenue in EUR
Operating revenue generated by

2015 2014
associates others

Net sales revenue* 81,068 546,065,637 546,146,705 486,290,565

Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress  1,347,967 1,347,967 270,832

Capitalised own products and services  247,960 247,960 873

Other operating revenue 0 4,099,165 4,099,165 2,998,933

TOTAL 81,068 551,760,729 551,841,797 489,561,203

Net sales revenue in EUR 2015 2014

From sales of products 481,429,147 426,916,298 

From sales of services 3,201,201 2,634,380 

From sales of goods and materials 61,516,357 56,739,887 

TOTAL net sales revenue 546,146,705 486,290,565 

Other operating revenue in EUR 2015 2014

Revenues from the reversal of provisions 368,101 330,835

Other revenues associated with products and services (subsidies, 
grants, reimbursements, compensations, premiums, etc.) 2,304,181 2,378,197

Revaluation operating revenue 1,426,883 289,901

TOTAL 4,099,165 2,998,933

Revaluation operating revenue in EUR 2015 2014

From disposal of tangible fixed assets 30,765 13,833

From operating receivables 1,335,993 273,430

From operating liabilities 60,125 2,638

TOTAL 1,426,883 289,901

Disclosures to individual items of group financial 
statements
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2. Operating expenses

Other operating expenses represent expenditure on environmental protection, donations and costs that are 
re-invoiced.

Table 49: Operating expenses in EUR

Table 50: Revaluation operating expenses in EUR

Table 51: Labour costs in EUR

2015 2014

From disposal of intangible fixed assets 0 500

From disposal of tangible fixed assets 261,080 14,472

From inventories 5,807 6,485

From operating liabilities 5,387,105 2,322,341

TOTAL 5,653,992 2,343,798

2015 2014

Costs of salaries 32,011,539 30,277,196

Pension insurance costs 5,717,491 5,500,826

Other insurance costs 1,895,381 1,822,354

Other labour costs 6,787,840 5,154,888

Total 46,412,251 42,755,264

Production 
costs Sales costs

General and 
administrative 

costs
TOTAL 2015

TOTAL purchases in 2015 in:
TOTAL 2014

associates other 
companies

Cost of merchandise and materials sold 0 52,828,324 0 52,828,324 0 52,828,324 42,549,504

Cost of materials 354,969,211 4,059,235 1,930,792 360,959,238 0 360,959,238 329,306,502

Costs of services 11,442,079 16,812,180 8,075,267 36,329,526 2,323,928 34,005,598 31,937,929

Labour costs 31,232,982 2,220,644 12,958,625 46,412,251 0 46,412,251 42,755,264

Depreciation 12,962,995 57,619 2,096,074 15,116,688 0 15,116,688 16,243,337

Revaluation operating expenses 290,932 2,050,182 3,312,878 5,653,992 34,647 5,619,345 2,343,798

Other operating expenses 268,688 5,148 1,001,932 1,275,768 0 1,275,768 1,239,349

TOTAL 411,166,887 78,033,332 29,375,568 518,575,787 2,358,575 516,217,212 466,375,683
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3. Financial revenue and expenses 

Financial revenue from shares of profits or losses of associates represent shares in the amount of EUR 
31,083, accounted for in consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

In 2015, the Group impaired the financial investments in the associate Impol Brazil Aluminium Ltda, 
because it was estimated that the carrying amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. its 
present value of future cash flows). After the decision of the Management Board of the controlling com-
pany, the investment was revaluated due to impairment to the value 0, i.e. in the amount of EUR 34,647.

Table 52: Financial revenue from financial investments in EUR

Table 53: Financial expenses from financial investments in EUR

TOTAL 2015
Of which from

TOTAL 2014
associates other companies

Financial revenue from participating interests – in profits, dividends 63,785 31,083 32,702 65,291

Financial revenue from other investments – revenue from disposal of non-current finan-
cial investments 119,240 0 119,240 0

Financial revenue from loans - interest 11,720 0 11,720 27,665

Financial revenue from operating receivables - interest 756,063 0 756,063 29,884

Financial revenue from forwards 233,744 0  233,744 856,768

Financial revenue from operating receivables - exchange rate differences 1,063,482 0 1,063,482 1,788,063

TOTAL 2,248,034 31,083 2,216,951 2,767,671

TOTAL 2015
Of which from

TOTAL 2014
associates other companies

Financial expenses from (excluding bank loans) – interest 176,888 0 176,888 190,140

Financial expenses from loans from banks – interest 5,253,653 0 5,253,653 6,089,868

Financial expenses from bonds – interest 385,205 0 385,205 0

Financial expenses from bonds – exchange rate differences 0 0 0 0

Financial expenses from other financial liabilities – interest 668,660 0 668,660 143,006

Financial expenses from other financial liabilities – exchange rate differences 174,757 0 174,757 3,439,425

Financial expenses from operating liabilities – interest 9,132 0 9,132 31,817

Financial expenses from forwards 891,627  0  891,627 480,200

Financial expenses from operating liabilities – exchange rate differences 1,843,693 0 1,843,693 814,707

Financial expenses from disposal of non-current financial investments 0 0 0 1,165

Financial expenses from impairment 105,066 34,647 70,419 0

TOTAL 9,508,681 34,647 9,474,034 11,190,328



Financial report of the Impol Group for 2015

105ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

4. Income tax

Income tax is accounted for in accordance with laws that apply in individual countries where the Group 
has its subsidiaries. The applicable income tax rate in Slovenia in 2015 was 17 percent (in 2014: 17 percent), 
while the applicable income tax rate in Croatia is 20 percent, in Serbia 15 percent, in the USA between 25 
to 39 percent, and in Hungary 10 percent.

Table 54: Income tax in EUR

Table 55: Overview of current income tax by companies in EUR

2015 2014

Revenues determined under accounting regulations* 967,503,635 876,398,154

Taxable revenues 963,383,544 768,343,870

Expenses determined under accounting regulations* 940,031,202 861,597,856

Expenses recognised for tax purposes 935,399,966 751,650,409

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN EXPENSES AND REVENUES RECOGNISED FOR TAX PURPOSES 27,983,578 16,693,461

TAXABLE BASE 24,953,916 11,127,074

TAX 2,975,456 1,838,522

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE IN % 11.44 12.45

*This is the sum of unconsolidated revenue and expenditure items, without deferred taxes, of individual companies of the Impol Group.

2015 2014

Impol 2000 d.d. 132,694 453,640

Impol d.o.o. 1,265,750 730,524

Impol LLT d.o.o. 152,985 15,137

Impol FT d.o.o. 208,442 17,805

Impol PCP d.o.o. 622,563 127,451

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o. 29,304 23,957

Impol R in R d.o.o. 0 0

Rondal d.o.o. 147,398 155,805

Impol-Montal d.o.o. 18,850 9,860

Impol Servis d.o.o. 12,533 18,282

Impol Stanovanja d.o.o. 2,966 3,278

Kadring d.o.o. 30,017 14,571

Stampal SB d.o.o. 192,739 181,961

Štatenberg d.o.o. 108 196

Unidel d.o.o. 24,927 15,447

Impol Aluminum Corporation 105,702 37,736

Impol Seval a.d. 0 0

Impol Seval Tehnika d.o.o. 7,988 31,510

Impol Seval Final d.o.o. 774 557

Impol Seval President d.o.o. 321 159

Impol Hungary KFT. 0 646

Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o. 19,395 0

Total income tax 2,975,456 1,838,522
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5. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax receivables are formed for written off receivables, provisions for retirement and jubilee bene-
fits, and for tax losses; deferred tax liabilities are formed as deductible temporary differences between the 
carrying amount and the tax base of fixed assets in the company Impol Seval a.d. The consolidated balance 
sheet still includes deferred taxes that arise in different states and are unsettled both as receivables and as 
liabilities. 

Table 56: Deferred tax assets and liabilities in EUR

Table 57: Changes in deferred-tax assets and liabilities in EUR

Table 58: Fluctuation of deferred tax receivables – consolidated in EUR

Table 59: Fluctuation of deferred tax liabilities – consolidated in EUR

 Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets as at 31 Dec 2014 (+) 1,261,066 1,143,736

Deductible temporary differences (+) 156,662  

Taxable temporary differences (+)  192,511

Utilisation of deductible temporary differences (-) -459,358  

Change of unused opening-balance amounts due to change in the tax rate -4 -5,944

Deferred tax assets as at 31 Dec 2015 958,366 1,330,303

Changes in deferred-tax assets and liabilities were recognised in: 2015 2014

• Profit or loss account (+ / -) -496,275 -457,665

• Capital – retained profit or loss brought forward (+ / -) 7,008 55,667

TOTAL -489,267 -401,998

Carrying depreci-
ation exceeds the 

depreciation for tax 
purposes 

Impairments (re-
valuation operating 

expenses)
Provisioning Tax loss TOTAL

Deferred tax liabilities as at 31 Dec 2014 (+) 708 387,878 65,671 806,809 1,261,066

Deferred tax liabilities as at 01 Jan 2015 708 387,878 65,671 806,809 1,261,066

Occurrence of deductible temporary differences (+) 187 103,548 53,710 0 157,445

Use of deductible temporary differences (-) 0 -180,099 -2,209 -277,833 -460,141

Exchange rate differences -4 0 0 0 -4

Deferred tax liabilities as at 31 Dec 2015 891 311,327 117,172 528,976 958,366

Carrying amount of fixed assets less tax base of fixed assets

Deferred tax liabilities as at 31 Dec 2014 (+) 1,143,736

Deferred tax liabilities as at 01 Jan 2015 1,143,736

Occurrence of deductible temporary differences (+) 192,511

Exchange rate differences -5,944

Deferred tax liabilities as at 31 Dec 2015 1,330,303
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6. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings attributable to shareholders by the weighted 
average of the number of regular shares during the year, excluding the average number of own shares.

Because the Impol Group has no preference shares or bonds that could be converted to shares, the diluted 
earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share.

7. Changes in other comprehensive income
Changes in other comprehensive income in 2015 include:
• Change of fair value of hedges (interest swaps) in the amount of EUR -73,355, while the derivatives 

were intended for hedging the cash flow from loans received.
• Exchange rate differences from converting financial statements of foreign companies included in con-

solidation in the amount of EUR 33,708.
• Actuary losses based on the re-calculation of provisions for retirement benefits for the financial year 

2015 in the amount of EUR -90,667.

Table 60: Earnings per share in EUR

Table 61: Weighted average of the number of regular shares as at 31 December 2015 in EUR

2015 2014

Profit or loss attributable to owners of the controlling company 20,094,597 12,267,031

Weighted average of the number of regular shares 984,659 984,659

Basic earnings per share (in EUR) 20,41 12,46

2015 2014

Regular shares as at 01 Jan 1,066,767 1,066,767

Effect of own shares* -82,108 -82,108

Weighted average of the number of regular shares as at 31 Dec 984,659 984,659

*These are shares of the controlling company Impol 2000 d.d., owned by companies in the Group, which are Impol-Montal d.o.o. (80,482 shares) and Kadring d.o.o. (1,626 shares).
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8. Intangible assets and non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue

The disclosed intangible assets are owned by the Group and are free of debts. 
More than half of all intangible assets that were used on 31 December 2015 were fully depreciated.

9. Goodwill
Structure of goodwill according to business combinations that generated it:

Table 62: Intangible assets in 2015 in EUR

Table 63: Intangible assets in 2014 in EUR

Description Non-current property 
rights Goodwill

Other non-current 
deferred costs and 

accrued revenue
TOTAL

Cost at 31 Dec 2014 7,620,816 319,229 46,623 7,986,668

Cost at 01 Jan 2015 7,620,816 319,229 46,623 7,986,668

Direct increases – acquisitions 216,143   216,143

Transfer from investments in progress 14,420   14,420

Exchange rate differences -1,503   -1,503

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases -89,163  -46,623 -135,786

Cost at 31 Dec 2015 7,760,713 319,229 0 8,079,942

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2014 5,648,097   5,648,097

Value adjustment at 01 Jan 2015 5,648,097 0 0 5,648,097

Depreciation during the year 705,150   705,150

Exchange rate differences -1,289   -1,289

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases -58,646   -58,646

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2015 6,293,312 0 0 6,293,312

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2015 1,467,401 319,229 0 1,786,630

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2014 1,972,719 319,229 46,623 2,338,571

Description Non-current property 
rights Goodwill

Other non-current 
deferred costs and 

accrued revenue
TOTAL

Cost at 01 Jan 2014 6,981,597 319,229 61,788 7,362,614

Direct increases – acquisitions 682,983   682,983

Transfer from investments in progress 9,451   9,451

Exchange rate differences -16,205   -16,205

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases -37,010  -15,165 -52,175

Cost at 31 Dec 2014 7,620,816 319,229 46,623 7,986,668

Value adjustment at 01 Jan 2014 4,988,829 0 0 4,988,829

Depreciation during the year 680,047   680,047

Exchange rate differences -12,504   -12,504

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases -8,275   -8,275

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2014 5,648,097 0 0 5,648,097

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2014 1,972,719 319,229 46,623 2,338,571

Carrying amount at 01 Jan 2014 1,992,768 319,229 61,788 2,373,785
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Table 64: Structure of goodwill in EUR

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Stampal SB d.o.o. 319,229 319,229

On 31 December 2015, goodwill was tested for possible impairment and no need for impairment was 
determined.
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9. Tangible fixed assets

Table 65: Tangible fixed assets in 2015 in EUR

Table 66: Tangible fixed assets in 2014 in EUR

Description Land Buildings Property being 
acquired

Advances for 
property Total property Production equipment and 

machinery
Other machinery and 

equipment

Equipment and other 
tangible fixed assets being 

acquired

Advances to acquire tangi-
ble fixed assets Total equipment TOTAL

Cost at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 78,249,195 274,017 15,000 82,262,119 289,811,858 17,218,838 8,659,272 1,024,466 316,714,434 398,976,553

Adjustments after the opening balance     0     0 0

Cost at 01 Jan 2015 3,723,907 78,249,195 274,017 15,000 82,262,119 289,811,858 17,218,838 8,659,272 1,024,466 316,714,434 398,976,553

Direct increases – acquisitions 22,319 216,543 1,846,391  2,085,253 1,864,995 19,413 7,279,090 1,416,523 10,580,021 12,665,274

Transfer from investments in progress  460,426 -460,426  0 5,368,819 696,407 -6,079,646  -14,420 -14,420

Transfer to investment property  -1,581,598   -1,581,598     0 -1,581,598

Exchange rate differences -6,089 -77,353 -161  -83,603 -249,891 14,029 -15,563 -568 -251,993 -335,596

Decreases – sales     0 -218,398 -16,399   -234,797 -234,797

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -647  -15,000 -15,647 -1,696,919 -143,416  -1,363,591 -3,203,926 -3,219,573

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 1,500 -1,500   0 0

Cost at 31 Dec 2015 3,740,137 77,266,566 1,659,821 0 82,666,524 294,881,964 17,787,372 9,843,153 1,076,830 323,589,319 406,255,843

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2014  42,861,493   42,861,493 213,292,379 13,138,630   226,431,009 269,292,502

Adjustments after the opening balance     0     0 0

Value adjustment at 01 Jan 2015 0 42,861,493 0 0 42,861,493 213,292,379 13,138,630 0 0 226,431,009 269,292,502

Depreciation  1,810,292   1,810,292 11,246,243 1,193,316   12,439,559 14,249,851

Transfer to investment property  -423,313   -423,313     0 -423,313

Exchange rate differences  -36,986   -36,986 -68,176 12,345   -55,831 -92,817

Decreases – sales     0 -217,195 -16,399   -233,594 -233,594

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -647   -647 -1,440,723 -139,008   -1,579,731 -1,580,378

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 1,350 -1,350   0 0

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2015 0 44,210,839 0 0 44,210,839 222,813,878 14,187,534 0 0 237,001,412 281,212,251

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2015 3,740,137 33,055,727 1,659,821 0 38,455,685 72,068,086 3,599,838 9,843,153 1,076,830 86,587,907 125,043,592

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 35,387,702 274,017 15,000 39,400,626 76,519,479 4,080,208 8,659,272 1,024,466 90,283,425 129,684,051

Description Land Buildings Property being 
acquired

Advances for 
property Total property Production equipment and 

machinery
Other machinery and 

equipment

Equipment and other 
tangible fixed assets being 

acquired

Advances to acquire tangi-
ble fixed assets Total equipment TOTAL

Cost at 01 Jan 2014 3,766,843 73,428,988 2,625,668 0 79,821,499 298,728,591 16,384,241 23,487,732 1,769,479 340,370,043 420,191,542

Direct increases – acquisitions  1,853,733 1,657,833 15,000 3,526,566 1,306,675 11,864 8,129,787 1,916,331 11,364,657 14,891,223

Direct increases – finance lease     0   1,061,059  1,061,059 1,061,059

Transfer from investments in progress 21,522 3,901,023 -3,922,545  0 22,089,798 958,491 -23,057,740  -9,451 -9,451

Transfer between companies in the Group – acquisitions 810,108 1,276,476   2,086,584 3,073,484    3,073,484 5,160,068

Transfer between companies in the Group – sales -812,527 -1,469,304   -2,281,831 -20,212,008    -20,212,008 -22,493,839

Transfer to investment property   -82,281  -82,281     0 -82,281

Exchange rate differences -62,039 -740,147 -2,609  -804,795 -1,665,245 7,209 -961,566 -10,128 -2,629,730 -3,434,525

Decreases – sales   -2,049  -2,049 -28,473 -13,196   -41,669 -43,718

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -1,574   -1,574 -13,490,764 -127,747  -2,651,216 -16,269,727 -16,271,301

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 9,800 -2,024   7,776 7,776

Cost at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 78,249,195 274,017 15,000 82,262,119 289,811,858 17,218,838 8,659,272 1,024,466 316,714,434 398,976,553

Value adjustment at 01 Jan 2014 0 41,685,501 0 0 41,685,501 232,238,320 12,020,391 0 0 244,258,711 285,944,212

Depreciation  1,761,472   1,761,472 12,353,881 1,249,368   13,603,249 15,364,721

Transfer between companies in the Group – sales  -190,949   -190,949 -17,157,621    -17,157,621 -17,348,570

Exchange rate differences  -392,957   -392,957 -642,804 7,403   -635,401 -1,028,358

Decreases – sales     0 -28,473 -13,196   -41,669 -41,669

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -1,574   -1,574 -13,478,700 -125,336   -13,604,036 -13,605,610

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 7,776    7,776 7,776

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2014 0 42,861,493 0 0 42,861,493 213,292,379 13,138,630 0 0 226,431,009 269,292,502

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 35,387,702 274,017 15,000 39,400,626 76,519,479 4,080,208 8,659,272 1,024,466 90,283,425 129,684,051

Carrying amount at 01 Jan 2014 3,766,843 31,743,487 2,625,668 0 38,135,998 66,490,271 4,363,850 23,487,732 1,769,479 96,111,332 134,247,330
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Description Land Buildings Property being 
acquired

Advances for 
property Total property Production equipment and 

machinery
Other machinery and 

equipment

Equipment and other 
tangible fixed assets being 

acquired

Advances to acquire tangi-
ble fixed assets Total equipment TOTAL

Cost at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 78,249,195 274,017 15,000 82,262,119 289,811,858 17,218,838 8,659,272 1,024,466 316,714,434 398,976,553

Adjustments after the opening balance     0     0 0

Cost at 01 Jan 2015 3,723,907 78,249,195 274,017 15,000 82,262,119 289,811,858 17,218,838 8,659,272 1,024,466 316,714,434 398,976,553

Direct increases – acquisitions 22,319 216,543 1,846,391  2,085,253 1,864,995 19,413 7,279,090 1,416,523 10,580,021 12,665,274

Transfer from investments in progress  460,426 -460,426  0 5,368,819 696,407 -6,079,646  -14,420 -14,420

Transfer to investment property  -1,581,598   -1,581,598     0 -1,581,598

Exchange rate differences -6,089 -77,353 -161  -83,603 -249,891 14,029 -15,563 -568 -251,993 -335,596

Decreases – sales     0 -218,398 -16,399   -234,797 -234,797

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -647  -15,000 -15,647 -1,696,919 -143,416  -1,363,591 -3,203,926 -3,219,573

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 1,500 -1,500   0 0

Cost at 31 Dec 2015 3,740,137 77,266,566 1,659,821 0 82,666,524 294,881,964 17,787,372 9,843,153 1,076,830 323,589,319 406,255,843

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2014  42,861,493   42,861,493 213,292,379 13,138,630   226,431,009 269,292,502

Adjustments after the opening balance     0     0 0

Value adjustment at 01 Jan 2015 0 42,861,493 0 0 42,861,493 213,292,379 13,138,630 0 0 226,431,009 269,292,502

Depreciation  1,810,292   1,810,292 11,246,243 1,193,316   12,439,559 14,249,851

Transfer to investment property  -423,313   -423,313     0 -423,313

Exchange rate differences  -36,986   -36,986 -68,176 12,345   -55,831 -92,817

Decreases – sales     0 -217,195 -16,399   -233,594 -233,594

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -647   -647 -1,440,723 -139,008   -1,579,731 -1,580,378

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 1,350 -1,350   0 0

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2015 0 44,210,839 0 0 44,210,839 222,813,878 14,187,534 0 0 237,001,412 281,212,251

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2015 3,740,137 33,055,727 1,659,821 0 38,455,685 72,068,086 3,599,838 9,843,153 1,076,830 86,587,907 125,043,592

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 35,387,702 274,017 15,000 39,400,626 76,519,479 4,080,208 8,659,272 1,024,466 90,283,425 129,684,051

Description Land Buildings Property being 
acquired

Advances for 
property Total property Production equipment and 

machinery
Other machinery and 

equipment

Equipment and other 
tangible fixed assets being 

acquired

Advances to acquire tangi-
ble fixed assets Total equipment TOTAL

Cost at 01 Jan 2014 3,766,843 73,428,988 2,625,668 0 79,821,499 298,728,591 16,384,241 23,487,732 1,769,479 340,370,043 420,191,542

Direct increases – acquisitions  1,853,733 1,657,833 15,000 3,526,566 1,306,675 11,864 8,129,787 1,916,331 11,364,657 14,891,223

Direct increases – finance lease     0   1,061,059  1,061,059 1,061,059

Transfer from investments in progress 21,522 3,901,023 -3,922,545  0 22,089,798 958,491 -23,057,740  -9,451 -9,451

Transfer between companies in the Group – acquisitions 810,108 1,276,476   2,086,584 3,073,484    3,073,484 5,160,068

Transfer between companies in the Group – sales -812,527 -1,469,304   -2,281,831 -20,212,008    -20,212,008 -22,493,839

Transfer to investment property   -82,281  -82,281     0 -82,281

Exchange rate differences -62,039 -740,147 -2,609  -804,795 -1,665,245 7,209 -961,566 -10,128 -2,629,730 -3,434,525

Decreases – sales   -2,049  -2,049 -28,473 -13,196   -41,669 -43,718

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -1,574   -1,574 -13,490,764 -127,747  -2,651,216 -16,269,727 -16,271,301

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 9,800 -2,024   7,776 7,776

Cost at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 78,249,195 274,017 15,000 82,262,119 289,811,858 17,218,838 8,659,272 1,024,466 316,714,434 398,976,553

Value adjustment at 01 Jan 2014 0 41,685,501 0 0 41,685,501 232,238,320 12,020,391 0 0 244,258,711 285,944,212

Depreciation  1,761,472   1,761,472 12,353,881 1,249,368   13,603,249 15,364,721

Transfer between companies in the Group – sales  -190,949   -190,949 -17,157,621    -17,157,621 -17,348,570

Exchange rate differences  -392,957   -392,957 -642,804 7,403   -635,401 -1,028,358

Decreases – sales     0 -28,473 -13,196   -41,669 -41,669

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -1,574   -1,574 -13,478,700 -125,336   -13,604,036 -13,605,610

Transfers between categories of tangible fixed assets     0 7,776    7,776 7,776

Value adjustment at 31 Dec 2014 0 42,861,493 0 0 42,861,493 213,292,379 13,138,630 0 0 226,431,009 269,292,502

Carrying amount at 31 Dec 2014 3,723,907 35,387,702 274,017 15,000 39,400,626 76,519,479 4,080,208 8,659,272 1,024,466 90,283,425 129,684,051

Carrying amount at 01 Jan 2014 3,766,843 31,743,487 2,625,668 0 38,135,998 66,490,271 4,363,850 23,487,732 1,769,479 96,111,332 134,247,330
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More than half of all intangible assets that were used on 31 December 2015 were fully depreciated.

Assets under finance lease
The carrying amount of equipment under finance lease on 31 December 2015 was EUR 1,011,709 (31 
December 2014: EUR 1,134,002). 

Pledged tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets of the Group are pledged as security for settlement of liabilities in the amount pre-
sented in the following table:

Assets are pledged as security for the settlement of liabilities by the following companies: Impol d. o. o., 
Impol Seval a.d., Stampal SB d.o.o. and Impol-Montal d.o.o.

10. Investment property
In the period under observation the investment property only includes buildings and associated land held 
to earn rentals. 

Table 67: Value of assets under finance lease in EUR

Table 68: Assets pledged as security for settlement of liabilities (without asserts under finance lease) in EUR

Table 69: Investment property in 2015 in EUR

 Cost (+) Value adjustment (+) Carrying amount (=)

Equipment 1,221,970 210,261 1,011,709

TOTAL 1,221,970 210,261 1,011,709

Value by type of assets Cost (+) Value adjustment (+) Carrying amount (=)

1 Immovable property 63,933,797 35,225,662 28,708,135

2 Equipment 133,768,782 78,767,655 55,001,127

TOTAL 197,702,579 113,993,317 83,709,262

Description Land Buildings TOTAL

Cost as at 31 Dec 2014 138,929 5,652,866 5,791,795

Transfer from tangible fixed assets (+)  1,581,598 1,581,598

Transfer from non-current assets (+) 234,721  234,721

Exchange rate differences -722 -2,205 -2,927

Cost as at 31 Dec 2015 372,928 7,232,259 7,605,187

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2014  3,341,043 3,341,043

Depreciation (+)  144,585 144,585

Transfer from tangible fixed assets (+)  423,313 423,313

Exchange rate differences  -359 -359

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2015 0 3,908,582 3,908,582

Carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2015 372,928 3,323,677 3,696,605

Carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2014 138,929 2,311,823 2,450,752
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We estimate that the book value of investment property qualifies as fair value. The carrying amount of in-
vestment property pledged as security for settlement of liabilities is presented in the following table.

In 2015, the Group generated income with investment property in the amount of EUR 308,426 (EUR 
371,393 in 2014). Connected depreciation costs in 2015 were EUR 144,585 (EUR 206.610 in 2014).

Pledged investment property of the Impol Group as at 31 December 2015:

Table 70: Investment property in 2014 in EUR

Table 71: Pledged investment property as at 31 December 2015 in EUR

Description Land Buildings TOTAL

Cost as at 01 Jan 2014 396,093 5,594,582 5,990,675

Transfer from tangible fixed assets (+)  82,281 82,281

Decreases (-) -21,217 -23,997 -45,214

Transfer to non-current assets (-) -235,947  -235,947

Cost as at 31 Dec 2014 138,929 5,652,866 5,791,795

Value adjustment as at 01 Jan 2014 0 3,214,982 3,214,982

Depreciation (+)  129,474 129,474

Decreases (-)  -3,413 -3,413

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2014 0 3,341,043 3,341,043

Carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2014 138,929 2,311,823 2,450,752

Carrying amount as at 01 Jan 2014 396,093 2,379,600 2,775,693

Cost (+) Value adjustment (+) Carrying amount (=)

1 Investment property 5,025,621 3,288,748 1,736,873

TOTAL 5,025,621 3,288,748 1,736,873
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Table 72: Non-current financial investments in EUR

Table 73: Development of non-current financial investments excluding loans in EUR

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS Cost as at  
31 Dec

Non-current financial investments in: Value adjustment 
as at  31 Dec Carrying value

associates other comp. Impairment 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec  2014

 = + + - =  

Non-current financial investments (+) 1,724,772 691,281 1,033,491 -170,355 1,554,417 1,316,187

TOTAL NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 1,724,772 691,281 1,033,491 -170,355 1,554,417 1,316,187

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS Cost as at  
31 Dec

Non-current financial investments in: Value adjustment 
as at  31 Dec Carrying value

associates other comp. Impairment 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec  2014

= + + - =

Investments in shares and participating interest 1,072,256 691,281 380,975 -34,648 1,037,608 1,045,987

Other non-current financial investment in equity 131,438 0 131,438 0 131,438 8,895

TOTAL non-current financial investments excluding loans 1,203,694 691,281 512,413 -34,648 1,169,046 1,054,882

Non-current loans to companies 416,550 0 416,550 -135,707 280,843 261,305

Non-current deposits 104,528 0 104,528 0 104,528 0

TOTAL non-current loans 521,078 0 521,078 -135,707 385,371 261,305

TOTAL NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 1,724,772 691,281 1,033,491 -170,355 1,554,417 1,316,187

11. Non-current financial investments

Non-current financial investments as at 31 December 2015 are not are pledged as security for liabilities, 
except in the amount of EUR 104,528 which is subject to warranty insurance with a 100% deposit for the 
period until 7 February 2017.

In 2015, the Group impaired the investment in the company Impol Brazil Aluminium Ltda in the 
amount of EUR 34.648.

Cost Value adjustment Carrying amount

Cost as at  
01 Jan 2015 Purchases Equity method 

for associates Sales Exchange rate 
differences

Cost as at  
31 Dec 2015

Value adjust-
ment due to 
impairment

Value adjust-
ment as at 31 

Dec 2015
31 Dec 2015 01 Jan 2015

1,054,882 127,768 31,083 -11,061 1,021 1,203,693 -34,647 -34,647 1,169,046 1,054,882

Table 74: Investments in associates in EUR

Associate
Participating interests 

of the Group in the 
associate

Investment as at 31 Dec 
2015 – equity method

Value adjustment as at 
31 Dec 2015

Investment as at 31 Dec 
2015

Investment as at 31 Dec 
2014

Simfin d.o.o. 49.51% 343,407 0 343,407 319,242

Alcad d.o.o. 32.07% 307,923 0 307,923 306,678

Brezcarinska cona RS 33.33% 5,303 0 5,303 4,444

Impol Brazil 50.00% 34,648 -34,648 0 34,648

TOTAL  691,281 -34,648 656,633 665,012
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Non-current loans mostly include long-term bank deposits and loans granted to other companies.

The amount of EUR 235.947 represents a part of the land of the company Impol Seval a.d. in Serbia. 

Non-current available-for sale assets consider land that was reclassified as investment property. The decision 
for reclassification was adopted by the Management Board in 2015. Reclassification was performed accord-
ing to the carrying amount of assets.

12. Inventories

Table 75: Development of non-current financial investments – loans in EUR

Table 77: Inventories in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Table 78: Write-offs of inventories due to a change in their quality or value in EUR

Cost Value adjustment Carrying amount

Cost as at 01 Jan 
2015 New loans Reimbursements Exchange rate 

differences
Cost as at 31 Dec 

2015 01 Jan 2015 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2015 01 Jan 2015

+ + - + / -  = - = = =

397,012 139,066 -14,044 -956  521,078 -135,707 -135,707 385,371 261,305

31 Dec 2015 Of which inventories as at  
31 Dec: are pledged as security 

for liabilities
31 Dec 2014

Cost (+) Carrying amount

Raw material and material 72,182,684 72,182,684 8,470,588 85,214,988

Small tools 0 0 0 0

Work in progress and services 9,830,248 9,830,248 0 6,844,456

Products 12,416,936 12,416,936 0 14,200,937

Merchandise 2,104,893 2,104,893 0 2,044,430

Advances for inventories 1,323,482 1,323,482 0 609,719

TOTAL 97,858,243 97,858,243 8,470,588 108,914,530

Type of inventory 2015

Merchandise 5,807

TOTAL 5,807

Table 76: Non-current available-for sale assets in EUR

Asset: Land TOTAL

Carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2014 235,947 235,947

Transfer to investment property (-) -234,721 -234,721

Exchange rate differences -1,226 -1,226

Carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2015 0  0
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Inventories were pledged as security for liabilities based on received loans in the amount of EUR 8,470,588. 
Received goods and material to be processed are recorded as foreign goods and only their quantity is mon-
itored. At the end of 2015, the Group’s inventories of goods given on consignment amounted to EUR 
333,566.

13. Current financial investments

Table 79: Inventory surpluses and deficits in EUR

Table 80: Current financial investments in EUR

Type of inventory 2015 Surpluses (+) Deficits (-)

Raw material and material 1,941 1,941 0

Merchandise -1,034 933 -1,967

TOTAL 907 2,874 -1,967

Cost as at 31 Dec
Current financial investments in: Value adjustment 

due to  
impairment

Carrying amount

associates other companies 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

 = + + - =  

Current financial investments (+) 6,517,841 0 6,517,841 -337,939 6,179,902 603,651

Current par of non-current investments (+) 0 0 0 0 0 8,997

TOTAL CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 6,517,841 0 6,517,841 -337,939 6,179,902 612,648

Cost as at 31 Dec
Current financial investments in: Value adjustment 

due to  
impairment

Carrying amount 

other companies 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

= + - =

Receivables acquired for sale 0 0 0 0 333,808

TOTAL current financial investments excluding loans 0 0 0 0 333,808

Current loans granted (including bonds) 413,562 413,562 -337,939 75,623 151,222

Current deposits 6,104,279 6,104,279 0 6,104,279 127,618

TOTAL current loans granted 6,517,841 6,517,841 -337,939 6,179,902 278,840

TOTAL CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 6,517,841 6,517,841 -337,939 6,179,902 612,648

Table 81: Development of current financial investments excluding loans in EUR

Cost Value adjustment Carrying amount

Cost as at 01 Jan 2015 Sales Cost as at 31 Dec 2015 Value adjustment as at 
01 Jan 2015

Value adjustment as at 
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2015 01 Jan 2015

+ - = - = = =

347,134 -333,808 13,326 -13,326 -13,326 0 333,808

Table 82: Development of current financial investments – loans in EUR 

Cost Value adjustment Carrying amount

Cost as at  
01 Jan 2015 New loans Reimburse-

ments
Exchange rate 

differences
Cost as at 31 

Dec 2015

Value  
adjustment as 

at 01 Jan 2015

Adjustment 
due to  

impairment

Value  
adjustment as 
at 31 Dec 2015

31 Dec 2015 01 Jan 2015

+ + - + / - = - - = = =

546,363 11,099,028 -5,127,199 -350 6,517,842 -267,523 -70,417 -337,940 6,179,902 278,840

Current financial investments are not pledged as security for liabilities.
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14. Current operating receivables 

Carrying amounts of all trade receivables and other receivables in significant amounts correspond to their 
fair value.

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Table 83: Current operating receivables in EUR

Table 84: Value adjustment of current operating receivables due to impairment in EUR

Current operating 
receivables

Current operating receivables
 from different companies:

Value adjustment 
due to  

impairment *
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Associates Other companies

 = + + - = +

Current trade receivables 54,721,576 9,134 54,712,442 -7,267,965 47,453,611 51,641,665

• Of which overdue as at 31 Dec 17,014,153 305 17,013,848 0 17,014,153 18,520,156

Given current advances and collaterals 321,768 0 321,768 0 321,768 173,806

Current receivables associated with financial revenues 322,198 0 322,198 -269,542 52,656 247,249

Current receivables due from central government 6,495,134 0 6,495,134 0 6,495,134 10,983,410

Other current operating receivables 3,933,033 0 3,933,033 -3,803,502 129,531 3,777,723

TOTAL current operating receivables 65,793,709 9,134 65,784,575 -11,341,009 54,452,700 66,823,853

Current trade receivables 47,453,611

• Local market 3,466,908 

• Foreign markets 43,986,703 

2015 Value adjustment of current 
receivables from: 2014

Balance as at 01 Jan (+) 7,447,274 7,447,274 5,598,797

Decrease in value due to settlement of receivables (-) -1,501,225 -1,501,225 -292,074

Decrease in value due to write-offs of receivables (-) -79,657 -79,657 -48,667

Value adjustment due to impairment (+) 5,474,617 5,474,617 2,189,218

Balance as at 31 Dec 11,341,009 11,341,009 7,447,274

Analysis of outstanding trade receivables

Due in 2015 10,122,443

Due in 2014 698,081

Due in 2013 422,256

Due in 2012 688,799

Due in 2011 and earlier 5,082,574

TOTAL 17,014,153

Table 85: Cash and cash equivalents in EUR 

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Cash in hand 5,478 26,521

Cash in banks 70,831,876 12,468,688

TOTAL 70,837,354 12,495,209
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The Group has no cash deposits of under three months. Daily deposits are included under Cash in banks.

16. Equity 

Share capital
The share capital of Impol 2000 d.d. equals EUR 4,451,549 and is divided into 1,066,767 ordinary no-par 
value shares.

Reserves
Group reserves include capital reserves, reserves from profit and the revaluation adjustment of capital. None 
of these reserves can be used to pay dividends or other participating interests.

Capital reserves
Capital reserves as at 31 December 2015 equal EUR 10,751,254, of which EUR 9,586,803 are paid in 
surplus of capital and EUR 1,164,451 are the general revaluation adjustment of capital.

Reserves from profit
Reserves from profit as at 31 December 2015 equal EUR 6,906,327, which include own shares (as deduc-
tion) and the corresponding reserves for own shares, statutory reserves and other reserves from profit.

As at 31 December 2015, the Impol Group owned 82,108 own shares in the total amount of EUR 506,406 
(as deduction of capital). These are shares of the controlling company Impol 2000 d.d. owned by the fol-
lowing companies in the Group: Impol-Montal d.o.o. (80,482 shares) and Kadring d.o.o. (1.626 shares). 
Reserves for own shares are disclosed in the same amount under Reserves from profit.

                                                                                                          

Table 86: Current deferred costs and accrued revenues in EUR

Table 87: Equity in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current deferred costs or expenses 86,460 213,060

VAT from received advances 23,514 880,097

TOTAL 109,974 1,093,157

2015 2014

Equity 127,562,535 106,177,138

Minority shareholders’ equity 11,742,184 9,427,165

Called-up capital 4,451,540 4,451,540

Share capital 4,451,540 4,451,540

Capital reserves 10,751,254 10,751,254

Reserves from profit 6,906,327 6,427,553

Reserves for own shares and own participating interests 506,406 506,406

Own shares and own participating interests (as deduction) -506,406 -506,406

Statutory reserves 1,173,746 694,972

Other reserves from profit 5,732,581 5,732,581

Revaluation surplus -169,318 -7,721

Revaluation adjustment of capital -670,221 -735,989

Retained earnings 74,934,946 63,914,120

Net profit for the financial year 19,615,823 11,949,216
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Statutory reserves in the amount of EUR 1,173,746 represent the amount of reserves formed based on the 
statute of the controlling company. In 2015, these reserves increased by EUR 478,774 that were debited to 
the annual profit.
Other reserves from profit as at 31 December 2015 equal to EUR 5,732,581 and include the rest of the 
retained earnings of previous years. 

Revaluation adjustment of capital
Revaluation adjustment of capital as at 31 December 2015 equals to EUR -670,221 and increased in 2015 
by EUR 65,768, which corresponds to an increased due to exchange rate differences that occurred when 
including financial reports of foreign subsidiaries into consolidated financial statements.

Revaluation surplus 
Revaluation surplus includes changes of value of effective hedges of cash flow (interest rate swaps) in the 
amount of EUR -73.355 and actuarial gains/losses based on retirement benefits as shown below:

Payment of dividends 
In 2015, based on the resolution of the general meeting of shareholders, the controlling company Impol 
2000 d.d. paid dividends in the gross amount of EUR 0.94 per share or a total of EUR 1,002,761. Because 
the receivers of dividends are also the companies Impol-Montal d.o.o. that owns 80.482 shares of the com-
pany Impol 2000 d.d. and Kadring d.o.o. that owns 1,626 shares of the company Impol 2000 d.d., the actual 
payment of dividends outside the group was EUR 925,580, while Impol-Montal d.o.o. received dividends 
in the amount of EUR 75,653 and Kadring d.o.o. in the amount of EUR 1,528.

Table 88: Repurchased own shares in EUR

Table 89: Revaluation surplus in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Balance as at 01 Jan 2015 Balance as at 31 Dec 2015

No. % Value No. % Value

Own shares acquired 82,108 7.70% 506,406 82,108 7.70% 506,406

TOTAL  7.70% 506,406  7.70% 506,406

Balance as at 01 Jan 2015 Formed Removed Total as at 31 Dec 2015

Revaluation surplus: + / - + / - + / - =

Adjustment of value of effective cash flow hedges (interest swaps) 0 -73,355 0 -73,355

Actuarial gains/losses, recognised under reservations for retirement benefits -7,721 -90,667 620 -97,768

TOTAL -7,721 -164,022 620 -171,123

Of which revaluation surplus that belongs to minority shares 0 -1,805 0 -1,805

Revaluation surplus that belongs to owners of the controlling company -7,721 -162,217 620 -169,318
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17. Provisions and non-current accrued expenses and deferred revenue

It is estimated that, with the exception of the previously stated provisions, no other provisions need to be 
formed. The provisions refer to the business entities outside the Group. Provisions for post-employment and 
other long-term benefits of the employees are created in the amount of the estimated future payments for 
termination benefits and jubilee benefits, discounted to the end of the reporting period. Labour costs and 
interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss, while the conversion of post-employment benefits and/or 
unrealised actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income as equity.

The calculation of provisions for retirement and jubilee benefits is based on the following conditions:
• Discount rate based on information on the return of long-term government bonds of the Republic of 

Slovenia and the Republic of Serbia.
• Currently valid amounts of retirement and jubilee benefits from internal rules.
• Fluctuation of employees mostly depending on their age
• Mortality based on last available mortality tables of the local population. 

Received government grants include assets from disposed of contributions of disabled persons and subsi-
dies for improving the working conditions for disabled persons in the total amount of EUR 523,846. Their 
balance and development in 2015 was as follows:

Table 90: Provisions and non-current accrued expenses and deferred revenue in EUR                                

Provisions Non-current accrued expenses and deferred income

Provisions for pensions 
and jubilee and 

 retirement benefits

Other provisions for 
non-current accrued 

costs

Received government 
grants

Other non-current 
accrued expenses and 

deferred income
TOTAL in EUR

Balance as at 31 Dec 2014 977,091 2,134 600,933 167,123 1,747,281

Opening balance adjustment 0 0 0 0 0

Balance as at 31 Dec 2015 977,091 2,134 600,933 167,123 1,747,281

Formation (+) 816,412 22,008 238,879 0 1,077,299

Other increase (+) 19,030 0 1,025 0 20,055

Utilisation (-) -44,743 0 -311,107 0 -355,850

Reversal (-) -6,829 -22,891 -5,884 -30,517 -66,121

Other decreases (-) -8,244 0 0 0 -8,244

Balance as at 31 Dec 2015 1,752,717 1,251 523,846 136,606 2,414,420

Table 91: Received government grants in EUR

 Disposed of 
contributions

Assets from disposed of 
contributions for covering 

depreciation costs 

Calculated interest from 
unutilised contributions

Total government grants 
in EUR

Balance as at 31 Dec 2014 389,344 205,705 5,884 600,933

Adjustment after opening balance    0

Balance as at 01 Jan 2015 389,344 205,705 5,884 600,933

Formation – disposed of contributions (+) 225,041   225,041

Formation – subsidies 13,838   13,838

Other increases (+)   1,025 1,025

Utilisation (75% of pays of disabled persons) -241,925   -241,925

Utilisation (professional employees) -23,610   -23,610

Utilisation (acquisition of fixed assets from disposed of contributions) -163,561 163,561  0

Utilisation (covering depreciation costs)  -45,522  -45,522

Utilisation (covering the residual value of fixed assets at disposal)  -50  -50

Annulment of interest from previous years   -5,884 -5,884

Balance as at 31 Dec 2015 199,127 323,694 1,025 523,846
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18. Non-current financial and operating liabilities

In 2015, the Impol Group issued 5-year bonds in the amount of EUR 50,000,000 with the intention to 
finance the investment cycle for additional long-term growth and development. Bonds are traded at the 
Ljubljana Stock Exchange since 26 December 2015. The annual interest rate is 3.8 percent. Coupons are 
paid annually. The final maturity date is 19 October 2020. The principal amount including interest is due on 
19 October 2016, 19 October 2017, 19 October 2018, 19 October 2019, and 19 October 2020, each time in 
the principal amount of EUR 10,000,000 plus interest. The current proportion of liabilities based on bonds, 
which is due on 19 October 2016, is disclosed under current financial obligations.

The maturity of non-current financial obligations is disclosed under chapter 19. Financial instruments and 
risks.

Table 92: Non-current financial and operating liabilities in EUR

Table 94: Development of non-current financial liabilities in EUR

Table 93: Future minimum lease payments and their present value in EUR

 Total debt as at 31 
Dec 2015

The part falling due 
in 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

 + - =  

Non-current financial liabilities in connection with bonds 50,000,000 -10,000,000 40,000,000 0

Non-current financial liabilities to banks 114,360,991 -38,744,072 75,616,919 76,695,107

Non-current financial liabilities to others (excluding liabilities from finance lease) 5,264,283 -5,045,575 218,708 322,402

Non-current financial liabilities arising from finance lease – other companies * 561,625 -122,515 439,110 561,929

Other non-current operating liabilities – other companies 294,767 0 294,767 198,659

TOTAL non-current financial and operating liabilities 170,481,666 -53,912,162 116,569,504 77,778,097

Non-current financial liabilities 170,186,899 -53,912,162 116,274,737 77,579,438

Non-current operating liabilities 294,767 0 294,767 198,659

TOTAL non-current financial and operating liabilities 170,481,666 -53,912,162 116,569,504 77,778,097

Type of financial liability Total debt as at 
01 Jan 2015 New loans Capitalisation 

of interest

Reimburse-
ments in the 
current year

Exchange rate 
differences

Total debt as at 
31 Dec 2015

Of which the proportion falling 
due in:

2016 after  
01 Jan 2017

Bonds 0 50,000,000 0 0 0 50,000,000 -10,000,000 40,000,000

Companies in the state 322,402 5,000,000 0 0 -58,119 5,264,283 -5,045,575 218,708

Banks 76,695,107 44,012,401 0 -6,334,025 -12,492 114,360,991 -38,744,072 75,616,919

Finance lease liabilities 561,929 0 -28 0 -276 561,625 -122,515 439,110

Total 77,579,438 99,012,401 -28 -6,334,025 -70,887 170,186,899 -53,912,162 116,274,737

Future minimum lease payments Present net value of future lease payments

Up to 1 year 143,495 122,515

1 to 5 years 457,095 422,437

Over 5 years 16,885 16,673

*Future minimum lease payments and their present values in connection with finance lease liabilities are as follows in Table 93.
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Interest rates for non-current loans:
• In EUR, ranging from fixed 2.85% to EURIBOR6 + 5.9% (depending on the field, maturity, insurance 

and the range of cooperation with creditors).
• Non-current financial obligations are insured with mortgages, equipment, inventories, receivables 

and bills of exchange. The proportion of non-current financial obligations in the amount of EUR 
64,304,172 is insured, and the part of debt in the amount of EUR 51,970,565 is not insured. Carrying 
amounts of assets given as insurance for non-current financial obligations are disclosed under individ-
ual disclosures of group assets.

19. Current liabilities

Table 95: Current liabilities in EUR

Table 96: Current operating liabilities in EUR                                                                                                       

Current operating and financial liabilities 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current trade payables – associates 328,196 334,028

Current trade payables – other companies 26,383,195 38,033,398

Current operating liabilities based on advances to other companies 1,834,256 1,140,967

Other current operating liabilities to other companies 6,438,150 7,796,880

TOTAL current operating liabilities 34,983,797 47,305,273

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities – banks 38,744,072 34,390,298

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities (excluding liabilities 
from finance lease) – other companies 5,045,575 101,445

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities – bonds 10,000,000 0

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities from finance lease – 
other companies 122,515 118,304

Current financial liabilities – banks 24,330,535 35,031,427

Current financial liabilities (excluding liabilities from finance lease) – 
other companies 454,399 22,581,552

Current financial liabilities from the distribution of profit 7,052 9,226

Current financial liabilities from finance lease – other companies 3 0

TOTAL current financial liabilities 78,704,151 92,232,252

TOTAL current financial and operating liabilities 113,687,948 139,537,525

Current operating liabilities 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current liabilities to associates as suppliers 328,196 334,028

Current liabilities to other companies as suppliers 26,383,195 38,033,398

Total current liabilities to suppliers 26,711,391 38,367,426

Current liabilities for advances 1,834,256 1,140,967

Total current liabilities for advances 1,834,256 1,140,967

Current liabilities to employees 2,955,319 2,491,640

Current liabilities to government 2,993,736 3,222,081

Current debt liabilities – other companies 361,744 437,329

Other current operating liabilities – other companies 127,351 1,645,830

TOTAL other current operating liabilities 6,438,150 7,796,880

TOTAL current operating liabilities 34,983,797 47,305,273
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Interest rates for short-term loans from credit institutions range from fixed 1.25% to EURIBOR6 + 3.20%.
Current liabilities are partly secured with a mortgage and others with equipment, bills of exchange, assign-
ment of receivables and guarantees.

Part of current financial liabilities in the amount of EUR 61,586,806 is insured, while part of current finan-
cial liabilities in the amount of EUR 17,117,345 is not insured. 

Current deferred costs or expenses include accrued costs of provisions for agents for transactions in 2015, 
costs of interest of issued bonds accrued until 31 December 2015, and deferred income based on accruals 
and VAT from given advances as at 31 December 2015.

20. Contingent liabilities

The Group has issued guarantees in the amount EUR 2,764,000, mostly in connection with custom duties 
upon importation of goods and materials, and liabilities in the amount of EUR 92,287 mostly in connection 
with recalculated VAT at bankruptcy.
There is also a lawsuit in progress regarding a guarantee issued to a bank in the amount of EUR 1,738,290.

There are currently lawsuits against the Group in the total amount of EUR 172,922 in connection with 
compensations for monthly annuity in the amount of EUR 1,033. Current lawsuits by suppliers and other 
parties amount to EUR 54,204.  

The Group estimates that these claims are unjustified, which is why the Group did not form current provi-
sions for these purposes. In case of labour law disputes, the Group has insured possible liabilities through an 
insurance company.   

21. Financial instruments and financial risks
Financial risks of the Impol Group have an important role considering their probability and importance, 
which is why special attention is put to these categories of risk. Risks are actively managed by the Finance 
and Business Administration Department, the Risk Management Department (RM) and other all other 
relevant departments at Impol Group companies that operate outside Slovenia. 

Table 97: Itemisation of current debt liabilities in EUR                                                                                                            

Table 98: Current accrued expenses and deferred income

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Interest associated with financial expenses from operating liabilities 3,356 3,359

Interest associated with financial expenses from financial liabilities 358,388 433,970

Total current debt liabilities 361,744 437,329

Analysis of outstanding liabilities to suppliers in EUR

Due in 2015 1,150,407

Due in 2014 87,254

Due in 2013 31,731

Due in 2012 or earlier 243

TOTAL 1,269,635

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Accrued costs and expenses 688,905 116

Current deferred income 37,400 386,287

VAT from given advances 188,018 455,791

TOTAL 914,323 842,194
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Liquidity risks
When it comes to liquidity risk management, the Impol Group examines whether it is able to settle all cur-
rent operating liabilities and whether it is generating a sufficiently large cash flow to settle financing liabili-
ties. Floating weekly and monthly planning of cash flows allows us to establish the liquid asset requirements. 
Potential shortages of cash are covered by bank credit lines, whereas any short-term surpluses are invested 
in liquid current financial assets. The Impol Group is able to cover all matured obligations at any given time. 
Successful performance enables us a long-term ability to pay and capital increases.

Risk of Changes in Aluminium Prices
The risk of changes in aluminium prices constitutes the greatest risk for the operations of the Impol Group 
alongside the sales market risk.  The Impol Group follows the principle stating that as soon as a sales agree-
ment is concluded or a sales order is received that is concluded by referring to a specific aluminium raw 
material price on the LME, aluminium raw materials are secured either physically or by means of forward 
contracts at the same price as that included in the basis for the conclusion of the sales agreement or order. 
The methods for the inclusion of costs and inventory management are established accordingly.

Collateral is usually provided primarily by guaranteeing adequate actual raw material sources with only the 
missing or excess difference being subject to forward purchases or sales on forward markets respectively. As 
regards the management of the price risk arising from changes in quoted aluminium prices, it should be 

Table 99: Non-current financial liabilities in EUR

Table 101: Current operating and financial liabilities in EUR

Table 100: Maturity of non-current financial liabilities by year in EUR

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Non-current financial liabilities regarding bonds 40,000,000 0

Non-current financial liabilities to banks 75,616,919 76,695,107

Current financial liabilities (excluding liabilities from finance lease) to 
other companies 218,708 322,402

Current financial liabilities from finance lease of other companies 439,110 561,929

TOTAL non-current financial liabilities  116,274,737  77,579,438

Current operating and financial liabilities 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current financial liabilities 24,791,989 57,622,205

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities 53,912,162 34,610,047

Total current financial liabilities 78,704,151 92,232,252

Current operating liabilities 34,983,797 47,305,273

Total Current operating liabilities 34,983,797 47,305,273

TOTAL current operating and financial liabilities 113,687,948 139,537,525

31 Dec 2015

Due in 2016 x

Due in 2017 33,644,404

Due in 2018 28,916,844

Due in 2019 25,384,262

Due in 2020 (or later in case of 31 Dec 2014) 20,944,801

Due in 2021 or later  7,384,426

TOTAL non-current financial liabilities  116,274,737
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emphasised that quoted aluminium prices move completely randomly, but they serve as the basis for estab-
lishing daily purchase and sales prices of aluminium and of Impol's aluminium products. 

Given the large share of LME prices in the purchase and sales prices, the movement of quoted aluminium 
prices constitutes one of the greatest risks faced by the Group in its operations. We, therefore, established 
the Futures Trading Department as early as nine years ago and developed an IT system that links sales and 
purchase agreements from the point of view of LME prices which automatically links all “back-to-back” 
transactions, whereby the established difference constitutes the daily risk on the physical market that is 
hedged on the forward market with the help of brokers directly on the London Metal Exchange.  

The fact remains that Impol needs to operate flexibly on the market and provide all pricing alternatives to 
its customers. In doing so, however, we must make sure that the contractually agreed sales margin remains 
unchanged. In 2015, operations involving LME prices were efficient, successful and profitable on the Group 
level, which we achieved through appropriate forward sales of all excess raw material inventories and by 
successfully closing these forward positions.

The activity of forward operations generated the forward balance of EUR -640,396.

Fair value of these financial instruments as at 31 December 2015 is EUR -482,945. 

Foreign exchange risks
The majority of sales and purchasing are performed in the same currency, meaning that changes in foreign 
exchange rates do not bring about difficulties in these areas.

The Group is, however, exposed to such changes in two major areas, i.e. the purchasing of aluminium raw 
materials and when taking out loans denominated in a currency that is different than the currency of the 
company's accounts. A major part of raw materials imported by Impol from outside the European Union is 
purchased in US Dollars, which represents an open FX position of Impol d.o.o.

In 2015, a certain portion of open USD positions was hedged by Impol d.o.o. in compliance with the for-
eign exchange risk management policy by using derivative financial instruments, while the remaining part 
was left unhedged. For hedging, we used simple derivatives like forwards.

Table 102: Forward purchases/sales in 2015

Table 103:  Financial revenue from forward contracts

Table 104: Balance of open forward position as at 31 December 2015

 Quantity in t Average price in EUR/t

Forward purchases 13,500 1,602.55

Forward sales 13,500 1,556.52

Open forward positions 0  

 Quantity in t Average price in EUR/t

Forward purchases 4,500 1,492

Forward sales

Open forward positions 4,500 1,492

in EUR 2015 2014

Financial revenue from forwards – forward purchases/sales of aluminium 193,344 836,774

Financial expenditure from forwards – forward purchases/sales of aluminium 833,740 402,829
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Fair value of these financial instruments as at 31 December 2015 is EUR 41,829. Contracts fall due on 
monthly basis, which is between 31 May 2016 and 30 November 2016.

The other part of the foreign exchange risk takes place in Serbia with the exchange between EUR/RSD.
The measure of the Group for reducing the effects of foreign exchange differences in Serbia is a reduction 
of the need for financing the majority of raw materials by executing the majority of sales in the European 
Union through the company Impol d.o.o. which than has the aluminium processed. This way, the foreign 
exchange risk is eliminated.

In 2015, the Group generated a negative financial result from foreign exchange differences in the amount 
of EUR 954,968.

As at 31 December 2015, the Impol Group has outstanding trade receivables in the following currencies:
• USD: 942,927,
• AUD: 172,878,
• SEK: 84,110.

Table 105: Financial revenue from forwards – foreign exchange swaps

Table 108: Revenue and expenses from foreign exchange differences in EUR

Table 106: Balance of open forward position as at 31 December 2015

Table 107: Overview of USD inflows, outflows and open positions at Impol d. o. o. in millions of USD

2015 2014

Financial revenue from forwards – foreign exchange swaps 40,400 19,994

Financial expenditure from forwards – foreign exchange swaps 57,887 77,371

 Total 2015 Total 2014

Financial revenue from operating receivables – foreign exchange differences 1,063,482 1,788,063

TOTAL revenue from foreign exchange differences 1,063,482 1,788,063

Financial expenses from other financial liabilities – foreign exchange differences 174,757 3,439,425

Financial expenses from operating liabilities – foreign exchange differences 1,843,693 814,707

TOTAL expenses from foreign exchange differences 2,018,450 4,254,132

Foreign exchange forward (FX Forward) – purchase Currency

8,000,000 USD

2012 2013 2014 2015

Inflows 19,0 15,0 16,2 18,5

Outflows 58,0 36,0 45,1 41,5
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Table 108: Revenue and expenses from foreign exchange differences in EUR

As at 31 December 2015, the Impol Group has outstanding trade payables in the following currencies:
• USD: 1,606,159,
• CHF: 1,647,
• CZK: 162,501,
• GBP: 1,656,
• HRK: 3,301.

Interest Rate Risk
At the end of the year, the Impol Group had long-term loans remunerated at the EURIBOR reference 
interest rate. The Impol Group has 33% of non-current liabilities with a fixed interest rate. If the Interbank 
Offered Rate (EURIBOR) is negative (less than 0%), banks charge contractual interest based on the EU-
RIBOR reference interest rate of 0% plus a surcharge. As at 31 December 2015 the Interbank Offered Rate 
(EURIBOR) is negative, which is why an increase by 1% or 0.5% would have no effect on profit or loss. 

The value of financial liabilities insured by interest swaps in 2015 is EUR 26,500,000. On this basis, we 
recognised the effective part of changes at fair value of the derivative under other comprehensive income of 
this period, and disclosed it under revaluation surplus in the amount of EUR -73,355.

The total interest rate for borrowings of the Impol Group was lower than in 2014. In 2015, we changed a 
part of the credit portfolio that was remunerated at a variable interest rate into a fixed rate using interest 
swaps. 

Credit Risk
The credit control process encompasses customer credit rating which is carried out regularly by a chosen 
credit insurance and foreign insurance firms as well as our customer solvency monitoring system. The Group 
has secured the majority of buyers, especially the bigger ones, while the Group’s policy is that individual 
buyers shall not exceed 7 percent of all sales. 

By regularly monitoring open and past due trade receivables, the ageing structure of receivables and aver-
age payment deadlines, the Impol Group maintains its credit exposure within acceptable limits given the 
strained conditions on the market. In 2015, the Group managed to reduce trade receivables comparing to 
2014 at the one hand due to lower prices of aluminium, which is the bases for forming sales prices, and on 
the other hand by using a sophisticated IT system for managing individual trade receivables. In 2015, the 
Group made value adjustment of trade receivables in the amount of EUR 5.4 million and the amount of 
compensations received was EUR 1.3 million. 

Carrying and fair values of financial instruments 
Classification of financial instruments according to their fair value as at 31 December 2015.

Table 109: Carrying and fair values of financial instruments in EUR

 Carrying amount Fair value Fair value level

Investments in associates 656,633 656,633 3

Non-current financial investments – available-for-sale assets 512,413 512,413 3

Non-current loans given 385,371 385,371 3

Non-current operating receivables 1,250 1,250 3

Current loans given 6,179,902 6,179,902 3

Current operating receivables 54,452,700 54,452,700 3

Cash and cash equivalents 70,837,354 70,837,354 3

Non-current finance liabilities 116,274,737 116,274,737 3

Non-current operating liabilities 294,767 294,767 3

Current financial liabilities 78,630,796 78,630,796 3

Current financial liabilities – fair value of IFI 73,355 73,355 2

Current operating liabilities 34,983,797 34,983,797 3
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Events after reporting date
There were no events after the reporting date that would significantly affect the financial statements for 
2015.

Other disclosures
On 1 January 2015, the Impol Group changed the form of management of the parent company Impol 
2000 d.d. from its two-tier structure to one-tier structure.
 
Members of the Management Board:
• Jernej Čokl, President
• Vladimir Leskovar, Vice President
• Janko Žerjav, Member 
• Milan Cerar, Member
• Bojan Gril, Member

The Management Board appointed two executive directors who are not members of the Management 
Board:
• Edvard Slaček, Chief Executive Officer
• Irena Šela, Executive Director of Finance

And the Audit Commission:
• Vladimir Leskovar, President
• Bojan Gril, Member
• Tanja Ahaj, External Member

The company has no claims against members of the management bodies and employees on individual 
contracts.

Table 110: Remuneration of the Management and Supervisory Board members in EUR                                                                                                  

Table 111: The amount (cost) spent for the auditor (according to ZGD-1, point 20, paragraph 1, Article 69)

 2015 2014

Members of the Management Board, executive directors and directors of subsidiaries 2,537,693 2,282,548

Members of the Supervisory Board 62,510 135,570

Employees on individual contracts 3,318,725 2,452,249

TOTAL 5,918,928 4,870,367

 2015 2014

Auditing of the annual report 83,794 78,245

Other auditing services 1,840 0

Tax consultancy services 0 0

Other non-auditing services 18,000 0

TOTAL 103,634 78,245

Signature of the annual report for 2015 and its parts
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The president and members of the Management Board and the executive directors of the company Impol 
2000 d.d. are familiar with the content of all parts of the consolidated annual report of the Group and with 
the whole Annual Report of the Impol Group for 2015. We agree with the content and confirm it with our 
signature. 

Signature of the annual report for 2015 and its parts

	  
	  

Jernej Čokl
(President of the 

Management Board)

Janko Žerjav
(Member of the 

Management Board)

Vladimir Leskovar
(Vice President of the 
Management Board)

Milan Cerar
(Member of the 

Management Board)

Bojan Gril
(Member of the 

Management Board)

	    
 

	  

Irena Šela
(Executive Director of Finance)

Edvard Slaček
(Chief Executive Officer)
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Executive 
Directors’ 

Liability 
Declaration

 Management 
Boards’ Liability 

Declaration

Financial report of Impol 2000 d.d. for 2015

The Management Board hereby confirms the Financial Statements for Impol 2000 d.d. for the year ending on 
31 December 2015, and the accounting policies applied. This Annual Report was adopted by the Board at its 
session held on 20 April 2016.

Slovenska Bistrica, 20 April 2016

The Executive Directors are responsible for drawing up an Annual Report of the Impol Group and Impol 
2000 d.d. so that it gives a true and fair view of the financial situation of the Impol Group and Impol 2000 d.d. 
as well as of its operating results for 2015.

The Executive Directors hereby confirm to have diligently applied the appropriate accounting policies and 
that accounting estimates have been prepared following the principle of prudence and good management. 
The Executive Directors also confirm that the Financial Statements including notes are drawn up based on 
the assumption of future operations of the Company and in compliance with the legislation and Slovenian 
Accounting Standards in force.

The Executive Directors are also responsible for managing accounting appropriately, to take appropriate mea-
sures to safeguard the property, to continuously monitor other operating risks and to adopt measures intended 
to minimise them as well as to prevent and detect any fraud and any other irregularities or unlawful under-
takings.

Slovenska Bistrica, 8 April 2016

	   	  

Jernej Čokl
(President of MB)

Janko Žerjav
(Member of the MB)

Vladimir Leskovar
(Vice President of the 

MB)

Milan Cerar
(Member of the MB)

Bojan Gril
(Member of the MB)

	    
 

	  

Irena Šela
(Executive Director of Finance)

Edvard Slaček
(Chief Executive Officer)
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Independent 
Auditor's Report 
for Impol 2000 
d.d. 
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Accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the financial statements presented below and should 
be read in connection to them.

Income statement

Financial Statements of Impol 2000 d.d.

Item Note 2015 2014

1. Net sales revenue  1 15,944,390 14,150,351

a) Net sales revenue in the domestic market  13,532,200 12,946,142

b) Net sales revenue in the foreign market  2,412,190 1,204,209

2. Other operating revenue (including operating revenue from revaluation)  1 5,176 2,317

3. Costs of goods, materials and services  2 11,188,523 8,935,348

a) Cost of sold goods and materials and costs of materials used  10,051,843 8,220,203

b) Costs of services  1,136,680 715,145

4. Labour costs  2 3,161,773 2,031,702

a) Wages and salaries  2,052,133 1,478,337

b) Social security costs (pension security costs disclosed separately)  389,254 235,054

c) Other labour costs  720,386 318,311

5. Write-offs  2 86,641 68,901

a) Depreciation  49,107 46,882

b) Revaluation operating expenses for intangible and tangible fixed assets  17 0

c) Revaluation operating expenses for working capital  37,517 22,019

6. Other operating expenses  2 123,823 177,955

7. Financial revenue from participating interests  3 2,926,163 0

a) Financial revenue from participating interests in group companies  2,926,163 0

8. Financial revenue from loans granted  3 40,544 3,423

a) Financial revenue from loans granted to Group companies  38,871 1,676

b) Financial revenue from loans to others  1,673 1,747

9. Financial revenue from operating receivables  3 33,845 982

a) Financial revenue from operating receivables due from others  33,845 982

10. Financial expenses from the impairment and write-offs of investments  3 36,371 0

11. Financial expenses from financial liabilities  3 1,027,647 369,634

a) Financial expenses from loans received from Group companies  6,542 190,210

b) Financial expenses from loans from banks  36,605 102,399

c) Financial expenses from issued bonds  385,205 0

d) Financial expenses from other financial liabilities  599,295 77,025

12. Financial expenses from operating liabilities  3 2,245 4,039

a) Financial expenses from operating liabilities to Group companies   10

b) Financial expenses from trade payables and liabilities from bills of 
exchange  2,243 48

c) Financial expenses from other operating liabilities  2 3,981

13. Income tax   4 132,694 453,640

14. Deferred tax  5 -1,423 -2,911

15. Net profit or loss for the period  3,191,824 2,118,765

Table 112: Income statement in EUR
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Table 113: Statement of comprehensive income in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Table 114: Balance sheet in EUR

2015 2014

Net profit or loss for the period 3,191,824 2,118,765

Changes in revaluation surplus of intangible and tangible fixed assets (+/-)  0

Changes in revaluation surplus of available-for-sale assets (+/-)  0

Gains and losses on the conversion of foreign companies' financial statements 
(impact of changes in exchange rates) (+/-)  0

Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit plans (employee benefits) (+/-)  0

Other items of comprehensive income (+/-)  0

Total comprehensive income for the accounting period 3,191,824 2,118,765

Note 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

A Fixed assets  68,126,592 68,183,549

 I.   Intangible fixed assets and non-current deferred costs and accrued 
revenue  6 2,601 3,219

  1. Non-current property rights  2,601 3,219

 II.   Tangible fixed assets  7 160,459 183,595

  1. Production equipment and machinery  115,537 145,324

  2. Other machinery and equipment  44,922 38,271

 III.   Investment property  0 0

 IV.   Non-current investments  8 67,935,645 67,970,271

  1. Non-current investments, excluding loans  67,935,645 67,970,271

   a) Shares and participating interests in Group companies  67,935,645 67,935,624

b) Shares and participating interests in associates 34,647

 V.   Non-current operating receivables  0 0

 VI.   Deferred tax receivables  5 27,887 26,464

B.   Current assets  39,495,794 6,435,040

 I.   Assets (groups for disposal) for sale  0 0

 II.   Inventories  9 74,396 49,506

  1. Products and merchandise  74,396 49,506

 III.   Current financial investments  3,974,518 2,300,000

  1. Current loans  10 3,974,518 2,300,000

   a) Current loans to Group companies  3,974,518 2,300,000

 IV.   Current operating receivables  11 2,461,574 2,477,276

  1. Current operating receivables due from Group companies  464,777 530,230

  2. Current operating receivables due from customers  1,631,510 1,841,953

3. Current operating receivables due from others  365,287 105,093

V. Cash and cash equivalents  12 32,985,306 1,608,258

C. Current deferred costs and accrued revenue  12 14,161 9,323

TOTAL ASSETS  107,636,547 74,627,912
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Note 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

A.   Equity  13 55,107,982 52,918,919

 I.   Called-up capital  4,451,540 4,451,540

  1. Share capital  4,451,540 4,451,540

 II.   Capital reserves  10,751,254 10,751,254

 III.   Reserves from profit  6,906,327 6,427,553

  1. Statutory reserves  1,173,746 694,972

  2. Other reserves from profit  5,732,581 5,732,581

 IV.   Revaluation surplus  0 0

 V.   Net profit brought forward  30,285,811 29,487,622

 VI.   Net profit/loss for the financial year  2,713,050 1,800,950

B.   Provisions and non-current accrued costs and deferred revenue  14 67,117 0

  1. Provisions for pensions and similar liabilities  67,117 0

C.   Non-current liabilities  15 40,861,000 0

 I.   Non-current financial liabilities  40,861,000 0

  1. Non-current financial liabilities to banks  861,000 0

  2. Non-current financial liabilities from bonds payable  40,000,000 0

 II.   Non-current operating liabilities  0 0

 III.   Deferred tax liabilities  0 0

D.   Current liabilities  16 11,182,939 21,664,259

 I.   Liabilities included in groups for disposal  0 0

 II.   Current financial liabilities  16 10,627,052 21,010,931

  1. Current financial liabilities to Group companies  500,000 500,000

  2. Current financial liabilities to banks  120,000 1,101,000

  3. Current financial liabilities from bonds payable  10,000,000 0

  4. Other current financial liabilities  7,052 19,409,931

 III.   Current operating liabilities  16 555,887 653,328

  1. Current operating liabilities to Group companies  14,077 108,116

  2. Current trade payables  148,762 106,089

  3. Current operating liabilities from advance payments  125,338 110,634

  4. Other current operating liabilities  267,710 328,489

E.   Current accrued costs and deferred revenue  16 417,509 44,734

    TOTAL LIABILITIES  107,636,547 74,627,912
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Table 115:  Statement of changes in equity for 2015 in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Table 116: Statement of changes in equity for 2014 in EUR                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

Called-up capital Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Net profit brought forward Net profit/loss for the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V VI VII

Share capital  Statutory reserves Other reserves from profit Net profit brought forward Net profit for the financial year Total equity

I II III/1 III/2 IV V/1 VI/1 VII

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous reporting period as at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 10,751,254 694,972 5.732.581  29,487,622 1,800,950 52,918,919

A.2 Opening balance of the reporting period as at 1 Jan 2015 4,451,540 10,751,254 694,972 5.732.581  29,487,622 1,800,950 52,918,919

B.1 Changes in equity – transactions with owners      -1,002,761  -1,002,761

Payment of dividends      -1,002,761  -1,002,761

B.2 Total comprehensive income for the reporting period       3,191,824 3,191,824

Entry of net profit/loss for the reporting period 3,191,824 3,191,824

B.3 Changes in equity   478,774   1,800,950 -2,279,724 0

Allocation of the remaining portion of net profit for the comparable reporting 
period to other equity components      1,800,950 -1,800,950 0

Allocation of a portion of net profit from the reporting period to other equity 
components based on the resolution of management and supervisory bodies   478,774    -478,774 0

C Closing balance of the reporting period as at 31 Dec 2015 4,451,540 10,751,254 1,173,746 5.732.581  30,285,811 2,713,050 55,107,982

DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT/DISTRIBUTABLE LOSS      30,285,811 2,713,050 32,998,861

Called-up capital Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Net profit brought forward Net profit/loss for the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V VI VII

Share capital  Statutory reserves Other reserves from profit Net profit brought forward Net profit for the financial year Total equity

I II III/1 III/2 IV V/1 VI/1 VII

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous reporting period according to SAS as at 31 
Dec 2013 4,451,540 10,751,254 377,157 5,732,581  27,681,093 2,137,226 51,130,851

Retroactive calculations        0

Transition to IFRS        0

A.2 Opening balance for the reporting period according to IFRS as at 1 Jan 2014 4,451,540 10,751,254 377,157 5,732,581  27,681,093 2,137,226 51,130,851

B.1 Changes in equity – owner transactions      -330,697  -330.697

Payment of dividends      -330,697  -330,697

B.2 Total comprehensive income for the accounting period       2,118,765 2,118,765

Entry of net profit/loss for the reporting period       2,118,765 2,118,765

B.3 Changes in equity   317,815   2,137,226 -2.455.041 0

Allocation of the remaining portion of net profit for the comparable reporting 
period to other equity components      2,137,226 -2,137,226 0

Allocation of a portion of net profit from the reporting period to other equity 
components based on the resolution of management and supervisory bodies   317,815    -317,815 0

C. Closing balance of the reporting period as at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 10,751,254 694,972 5,732,581  29,487,622 1,800,950 52,918,919

DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT/DISTRIBUTABLE LOSS      29,487,622 1,800,950 31,288,572
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Called-up capital Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Net profit brought forward Net profit/loss for the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V VI VII

Share capital  Statutory reserves Other reserves from profit Net profit brought forward Net profit for the financial year Total equity

I II III/1 III/2 IV V/1 VI/1 VII

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous reporting period as at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 10,751,254 694,972 5.732.581  29,487,622 1,800,950 52,918,919

A.2 Opening balance of the reporting period as at 1 Jan 2015 4,451,540 10,751,254 694,972 5.732.581  29,487,622 1,800,950 52,918,919

B.1 Changes in equity – transactions with owners      -1,002,761  -1,002,761

Payment of dividends      -1,002,761  -1,002,761

B.2 Total comprehensive income for the reporting period       3,191,824 3,191,824

Entry of net profit/loss for the reporting period 3,191,824 3,191,824

B.3 Changes in equity   478,774   1,800,950 -2,279,724 0

Allocation of the remaining portion of net profit for the comparable reporting 
period to other equity components      1,800,950 -1,800,950 0

Allocation of a portion of net profit from the reporting period to other equity 
components based on the resolution of management and supervisory bodies   478,774    -478,774 0

C Closing balance of the reporting period as at 31 Dec 2015 4,451,540 10,751,254 1,173,746 5.732.581  30,285,811 2,713,050 55,107,982

DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT/DISTRIBUTABLE LOSS      30,285,811 2,713,050 32,998,861

Called-up capital Capital reserves Reserves from profit Revaluation surplus Net profit brought forward Net profit/loss for the financial year Total EQUITY

I II III IV V VI VII

Share capital  Statutory reserves Other reserves from profit Net profit brought forward Net profit for the financial year Total equity

I II III/1 III/2 IV V/1 VI/1 VII

A.1 Balance at the end of the previous reporting period according to SAS as at 31 
Dec 2013 4,451,540 10,751,254 377,157 5,732,581  27,681,093 2,137,226 51,130,851

Retroactive calculations        0

Transition to IFRS        0

A.2 Opening balance for the reporting period according to IFRS as at 1 Jan 2014 4,451,540 10,751,254 377,157 5,732,581  27,681,093 2,137,226 51,130,851

B.1 Changes in equity – owner transactions      -330,697  -330.697

Payment of dividends      -330,697  -330,697

B.2 Total comprehensive income for the accounting period       2,118,765 2,118,765

Entry of net profit/loss for the reporting period       2,118,765 2,118,765

B.3 Changes in equity   317,815   2,137,226 -2.455.041 0

Allocation of the remaining portion of net profit for the comparable reporting 
period to other equity components      2,137,226 -2,137,226 0

Allocation of a portion of net profit from the reporting period to other equity 
components based on the resolution of management and supervisory bodies   317,815    -317,815 0

C. Closing balance of the reporting period as at 31 Dec 2014 4,451,540 10,751,254 694,972 5,732,581  29,487,622 1,800,950 52,918,919

DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT/DISTRIBUTABLE LOSS      29,487,622 1,800,950 31,288,572
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Table 117: Cash flow statement in EUR  

Item Notes 2015 2014

A.  Cash flows from operating activities   

 a) Income statement items 1,375,777 2,553,876

  Operating revenue (except from revaluation) and financial revenue from operating receivables 1 15,983,411 14,153,650

  Operating revenue excluding depreciation (except from revaluation) and financial expenses 
from operating liabilities 2 -14,476,363 -11,149,045

  Income and other tax not included in operating expenses 4 -131,271 -450,729

 b) Changes to net operating current assets (and accruals and deferrals, provisions and deferred 
tax receivables and liabilities) of the balance sheet operating items -75,029 -739,934

  Opening less closing operating receivables 11 -16,637 125,383

  Opening less closing deferred costs and accrued revenue 12 -4,838 12,050

  Opening less closing deferred tax assets 5 -1,423 -2,911

  Opening less closing inventories 9 -24,890 -29,866

  Closing less opening operating liabilities 16 -81,928 -875,828

  Closing less opening accrued costs and deferred revenue and provisions 16 54,687 31,238

  c) Net cash from operating activities (a+b) 1,300,748 1,813,942

 B.  Cash flows from investing activities   

 a) Cash proceeds from investing activities 5,281,529 545,250

 Inflows from interest and participation in others` profits relating to investing activities 3 2,961,529 1,455

 Cash proceeds from the disposal of current investments 3 2,320,000 543,795

 b) Cash payments from investing activities -4,021,634 -2,836,350

  Cash disbursements to acquire tangible fixed assets 7 -25,371 -6,350

  Cash disbursements to acquire non-current financial investments 8 -1,745 0

  Cash disbursements to acquire current financial investments 10 -3,994,518 -2,830,000

 c) Net cash from investing activities (a+b) 1,259,895 -2,291,100

 C.  Cash flows from financing activities   

 a) Cash proceeds from financing activities 50,500,000 38,511,959

  Cash proceeds from increase in non-current financial liabilities 15 50,000,000 1,151,000

  Cash proceeds from increase in current financial liabilities 16 500,000 37,360,959

 b) Cash payments from financing activities -21,683,595 -36,699,903

 Interest paid on financing activities 3 -657,955 -419,250

 Cash repayments of non-current financial liabilities 16 -100,000 -50,000

  Cash repayments of current financial liabilities 17 -19,920,705 -35,901,196

  Dividends and other profit shares paid 13 -1,004,935 -329,457

 c) Net cash from financing activities (a+b) 28,816,405 1,812,056

 D.  Closing balance of cash 32,985,306 1,608,258

 a) Net cash flow for the period 31,377,048 1,334,898

 b) Opening balance of cash 1,608,258 273,360

Reporting Entity
In accordance with the Companies Act, Impol 2000 d.d. (hereinafter also the company), with the head office 
at Slovenska Bistrica, Partizanska ulica 38, is a large public limited company, and is obliged to undergo regular 
annual audit. The company is classified under the activity code 70.100 – company management. The company’s 
share capital in the amount of EUR 4,451,540 is divided into 1,066,767 registered pro rata shares that are not 
traded in the organized securities market. The shares are owned by 948 shareholders. 

Below is the presentation of financial statements of Impol 2000 d.d. for the financial year that ended on 31 
December 2015. 

Introductory Note to the Reporting Standards 
All financial statements of the company Impol 2000 d.d. and the notes for 2015 were prepared for the first 
time in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter also IFRS), as adopted 
by the European Union. 1 January 2014 is the day of transition to IFRS, on the basis of which the company 
prepared the opening statement of financial position. By 2015, the company has prepared financial statements 
in compliance with the Slovenian Accounting Standards and the notes of the Slovenian Institute of Auditors. 

Notes to the 
Financial 

Statements
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Due to the issue of bonds, which are traded in the organized securities market, and on the basis of the require-
ments of the Companies Act (ZGD-1), the company Impol 2000 d.d. is obliged to prepare a consolidated 
annual report for the financial year 2015 in accordance with IFRS, which conditions the introduction of IFRS 
instead of SAS. Therefore, the preparation of individual financial statements in compliance with IFRS as ad-
opted by the European Union has been (voluntarily) introduced also by Impol 2000 d.d.

Statement of Compliance with IFRS
The Board of Directors and Executive Directors hereby confirm the financial statement for the financial year 
2015. Financial statements of Impol 2000 d.d. are composed in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union, and with the notes adopted by the IFRS 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and by the European Union, and in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act (ZGD). 

On the balance sheet date, there are no differences between the applied IFRS and the IFRS adopted by the 
European Union in accounting guidelines of Impol d.d. as regards the process of confirming standards in the 
European Union.

New Standards and Notes not yet Valid
Standards and notes, which are introduced below, have not entered info force by the date of consolidated/
separate financial statements. The company shall apply the appropriate standards and notes in the preparation 
of their financial statements upon their entry into force.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Committee published the final version of the standard 
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which contains the requirements of all individual phases of the renewal project 
of IAS 9 and replaces the standard IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, as well as 
all previous versions of the IFRS 9 standard. The renewed standard introduces new requirements for classifying 
and measuring financial assets and liabilities, recognition of their impairment and general hedge accounting. 
The renewed IFRS 9 standard is effective for business periods starting on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier ap-
plication of the standard is permitted. Companies shall use changes to the standarda retrospectively, whereby 
the presentation of comparative data is not mandatory. Earlier application of previous versions of the IFRS 9 
standard, which were published in 2009, 2010 and 2013, is permitted providing the company transitioned to 
IFRS anytime in the period before 1 February 2015. The standard has not yet been confirmed by the European 
Union. The company expects the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

IFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 14 is an optional standard, which permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards to continue to account for regulatory deferral account balances, with some limited 
changes, in accordance with previous generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The entities which 
decide to apply a new standard must recognize the regulatory deferral account balances separately in the 
Statement of Financial Position, but specific disclosures as to the changes on these accounts are required in 
separate items of income statement and statement of other comprehensive income. The standard defines that 
entities must disclose regulatory features and related risks and its effect on accounting statements of entities. 
The IFRS 14 standard applies to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The standard has not 
yet been confirmed by the European Union. The company expects the amendment shall not significantly affect 
the financial statements. 

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Committee, published the IFRS 15 standard, which 
introduces a new five-step model of recognizing revenue the entity achieves on the basis of contracts with 
customers. In accordance with the provisions of the IFRS 15, the entity shall recognize revenue in the amount, 
which reflects the amount of consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transfer-
ring promised goods or services to a customer. Therefore, the financial principles set forth in IFRS 15 offer a 
more structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue. The new standard applies to all companies 
and replaces the existing requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards relating to revenue 
recognition. Complete applicability of the new standard applies to annual period starting on or after 1 January 
2017, the adjusted form of the standard shall be applied by the companies retrospectively. Earlier application 
of the standard is permitted. The standard has not yet been confirmed by the European Union. The company 
is reviewing the effect of the new standard and will apply it upon its entry into force.
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Amendments to IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Opera-
tions
In accordance with the amendments to IFRS 11, the entity, which is a client in a joint establishment, in 
accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint enterprise, the activity of which represents operations, shall 
apply appropriate accounting princples of the IFRS 3 standard, which apply to the accounting of business 
combinations. Amendments additionally explain that upon acquisition of additional interest in the same joint 
operation, the entity shall not remeasure its previously held interests in a joint operation, whilst retaining joint 
control. In addition, the Committee included exceptions within the scope of the IFRS 11 standard, which 
define that amendments do not apply, when the parties sharing joint control (including the reporting entity), 
are under the control of the same ulimate controlling party. 

The amendments apply to the accounting for acquisitions of primary interests in joint operation as well as 
additional interests in the same joint operation. The amendments apply to annual period starting on or after 1 
January 2016. Earlier application of the standard is permitted. The amendments to the standard have not yet 
been confirmed by the European Union. The company expects the amendment shall not significantly affect 
the financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amorti-
sation 
With these amendments the Committee clarifies the accounting principles of IAS 16 and IAS 38 standards, 
which provide that revenue reflect the generation of expected economic benefits, rather than the consumption 
of economic benefits. Accordingly, the entity cannot apply the revenue-based method for the amortization of 
tangible fixed assets, however it may be applied in very limited circumstances for amortization of intangible 
non-current assets. 

The amendments apply to annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. 
The amendments to the standards have not yet been confirmed by the European Union. The company expects 
the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Amendments to standards change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the definition 
of bearer plants. In accordance with these amendments, the biological assets, which meet the definition of 
bearer plants, no longer fit within the scope of requirements of IAS 41, instead, IAS 16 will apply. Hence, in 
accordance with the requirements of IAS 16, after initial recognition of bearer plants the entity shall measure 
such plants by common costs (before maturity) and by applying the cost model and the revaluation model 
(after maturity). 

Further, the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS demand that companies measure the crop growing on bearer 
plants at fair value reduced by the costs of disposal, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 41. Government 
grants for bearer plants shall be accounted for by the companies in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for 
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. Amendments, which are valid for annual pe-
riods starting on or after 1 January 2016 shall be applied by the companies retrospectively. Earlier application 
of standards is permitted. Amendments to standards have not yet been confirmed by the European Union. The 
company expects the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
The amendments to the IAS 27 standard reinstate the equity method as an accounting option for investments 
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial statements. The entites, which 
already compile their financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards IFRS and want to transition to the equity method, must observe these amendments also in financial 
statements of the previous period. At the same time the amendment clarifies that when transitioning to IFRS 
and applying the equity method entites, shall apply this method as of the day of the transition to IFRS. The 
amendments shall apply to annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2016, whereby earlier application is 
permitted. The amendments have no effect on consolidated financial accounts of the Group. 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sales or Contributions of Assets between an Investor and its Asso-
ciate/Joint Venture 
The amendments discuss the conflict between the provisions of IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in the calculation of loss 
of control of a subsidiary upon its sale or transfer to an associate/joint venture. The amendments also clarify 
that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution to an associate or a joint venture of assets that 
constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 is recognised in full. All profits or losses resulting from the sale or 
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contribution of assets that do not constitute a business shall only be recognized only to the extent of unrelated 
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The amendments shall apply to annual period starting on 
or after 1 January 2016, whereby earlier application is permitted. The company expects the amendment shall 
not significantly affect the financial statements. 

In the period 2012–2014, the International Accounting Standards Board published a set of amendments of 
the below standards, which apply for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application of 
the amended and complemented standards is permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: Change of 
Disposal Method
The amendment clarifies that the change of disposal method (by sale or by distribution to owners) does not consitute 
a new sales plan, but only a continuation of the original plan, whereby the compliance with the IFRS 5 requirements 
is not discountinued. The amended standard applies to annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2016.

The amendments contain special instructions regarding reclassification of assets or groups for assets held for 
sale from the group held for sale to the group for distribution to owners (or vice versa) or in the event of dis-
countinuation of accounting to groups of assets for distribution to owners. The amendments thus provide that: 
• Such reclassification of assets does not constitue a new plan of sale or distribution to assets and that the 

entity must observe all requirements relating to the reclassification, presentation and measurement, which 
apply to the new disposal method;

• The entity shall treat the assets, which do not meet the criteria for recognition within the group of assets 
for distribution to owners (and also do not meet the criteria for recognition in the group of assets held 
for sale), the same as the assets, which cease meeting the criteria for recognition in the group of assets 
held for sale.

The company expects the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures related to Servicing Contracts and Applica-
bility of Amendments in Separate Financial Statements of the Entity with Effect on the Amendments of 
the International Accounting Standard IFRS 1
The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract, which defines the price of services, may represent continut-
ing involvement in financial assets. Further, the amendment also set forth that the disclosures are not required 
in condensed interim financial statements of entities, in accordance with the IFRS 7 relating to the offset of 
financial assets and financial liabilities.

The amendments of the standard also provide an additional instruction regarding the disclosures, which are required 
in relation to the transferred asset, and clarify when a servicing contract constitutes continuing involvement in finan-
cial assets. Article 42C(c) of IFRS 7 set forth that a pass-through arangement within a servicing contract does not 
contitute continuing involvement from the aspect of disclosures in the transfer of financial assets.

Applicability of Amendments to the International Standard IFRS 7 in the Preparation of Interim Finan-
cial Statements
The amendment clarifies the applicability of amendments to the IFRS 7 standard in the disclosure of offset of 
financial assets and liabilities in condensed interim financial statements.

The International Accounting Standards Board adopted the amendments to the international standard IFRS 
7 with the purpose of eliminating uncertainties about whether the additional offsetting disclosures regarding 
financial assets and liabilities should be included in condensed interim financial statements, on the basis of the 
requirements published in December 2011 and apply for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2013. 
The amendments to the standard shall apply to future periods in accordance with the international accounting 
standard IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The company expects the 
amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

Amendments to MRS 19, Employee Benefits: Discount Rate – Regional Market Issue
The amendments clarify that in determining the discount rate for the calculation of post-employee benefits an 
entity shall disclose high quality corporate bonds in the same currency as their liabilities relating to employee 
benefits. This means that the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds should be assessed at the 
currency level. 
The amendments to the standard shall apply from the beginning of the first comparative period, which is 
represented in the first financial statements, which are prepared on the basis of the renewed and amended 

Amendments to 
Standards and 
Notes Adopted 
in the 2012–2014 
Period
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New Adopted  
Standards and 

Notes, which  
Entered into Force  

on 1 January 2015

standard. All original adjustments must be recognized by an entity in retained profit in the opening balance of 
the period. The amended standard applies to annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2016. The company 
expects the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting: Disclosure of information “elsewhere in the inter-
im financial report”
The amendment clarifies that an entity shall include disclosures according to the IAS 34 standard into the 
content of the interim report and not into interim financial statements, and make a reference of appropriate 
chapter of the interim report in interim financial statements. Further, an entity shall send the interim report to 
the users on the same basis as and simultaneously with interim financial statements.

An amended standard applies to future periods in accordance with the provisions of the international account-
ing standard IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The company expects 
the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 1: Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to the standard IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation clarify, but do not significantly 
amend the existing standard requirements. Among other things, the amendments clarify:
• Requirements of IAS 1 regarding materiality.
• An entity may disregard individual items in the income statement, the statement of comprehensive in-

come and the statement of financial position.
• An entity may freely choose the order of presentation of notes to financial statements.
• An entity shall present the recognition of interest in comprehensive income in affiliate/joint venture 

according to the equity method in an aggregated amount in a single line item and split it between those 
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Further, the amendments clarify the requirements in additional presentation of interim amounts in the state-
ment of financial position, the income statement, or the statement of comprehensive income. The amendments 
apply to annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2016, whereby earlier application is permitted. The com-
pany expects the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial statements.

Amendments to standards IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, Investment Entity: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception
The amendments address the issue that have arisen in the context of applying the consolidation exception for 
investment entities, on the basis of the provisions of IFRS 10. The amendments clarify that exemptions from 
preparing consolidated financial statements apply to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, 
when the investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. 

Further, the amendments also clarify that a subsidiary that provides services related to the parent's investment 
activities should not be consolidated if the subsidiary itself is an investment entity. All other subsidiaries of 
the investment entity shall be measured at fair value. Amendments to the standard IAS 28 Investments in 
Associates and Joint Ventures define that when applying the equity method to an associate or a joint venture 
an investor may retain the fair value measurement method applied by the associates and joint ventures to its 
interests in subsidiaries. The amendments apply to annual period starting on or after 1 January 2016, whereby 
early application is permitted. The company expects the amendment shall not significantly affect the financial 
statements.

New Adopted Standards and Notes, which Entered into Force on 1 January 2015
Accounting guidelines applied in the preparation of financial statements are the same as in the preparation 
of financial statements for the financial year that ended on 31 December 2014, with the exception of newly 
adopted or amended notes, which entered into force on 1 January 2015, and are presented below.  

Amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
The amendment discusses employee or third persons contributions in a defined benefit plan. If the contri-
butions depend on the period of service, the entity shall attribute them to the period of service as a negative 
benefit. The amendment, therefore, clarifies that an entity may recognize employee contributions, which do 
not depend on the period of service, as a reduction in labour costs in the period in which the service has been 
rendered and will not be distributed throughout the entire period of employment. The amendment applies to 
annual periods starting on or after 1 July 2014. The amendment had no significant effect on financial accounts 
of the company.
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Amendments 
to the Stan-
dards and Notes 
Adopted in 
the 2010−2012 
Period 

Amendments to 
Standards and 
Note Adopted 
in the 2011−2013 
Period 

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-Based Payment
Entities shall apply the amendment, which clarifies various definitions of the set requirements relating to 
performance or a specific requirement that provides an employee must remain working for the company, for 
future periods. The amendment had no significant effect on financial accounts of the company.
 
Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations
The amendment that must be observed by the entities for future periods outlines that after initial recognition 
all contingent liabilities, which are recognized within liabilities (or assets) arising from business combinations, 
shall be measured at fair value throughout the income statement, irrespective of whether they fit within the 
requirements of IAS 39 Financial Instruments, or not. The amendment had no significant effect on financial 
accounts of the company.

Amendments to IFRS 8, Operating Segments
The amendments the entities must observe for future periods clarify an entity shall: 
• Disclose the judgements made by the Management in defining common criteria referred to in Paragraph 

12 of the International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 8 and enclose a short description of operat-
ing segments in the group as well as economic indicators, such as sales and gross margin, on the basis of 
which the company concluded whether operating segments have similar economic characteristics or not. 

• Prepare a coordination of all assets of the segment with total assets of the entity only if the entity is pre-
paring coordination to report to the operating manager, who is responsible for adopting decisions, as is 
applied to disclosures of liabilities of an operating segment.

The amendment had no significant effect on the reporting of the company.

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and IAS 38, Intangible Assets
The amendment that must be observed by entities for future periods clarifies that, in accodance with IAS 16 
and IAS 30, when revaluating an asset the asset's gross carrying amount should be adjusted on the basis of 
observed data, by revaluation of gross carrying amount of the asset to its market value or by defining market 
value of carrying amount of  an asset and by appropriate correction of its carrying amount so that the carrying 
amount of asset equals its market value. Further, the amendment confirms that a correction of the value of an 
asset is the difference between its gross and carrying amount. The amendment of the standard had no signifi-
cant effect on the entity's accounts, because the company does not asses the assets according to the revaluation 
method.

Amendments to IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures
The amendment that must be observed by entities in future periods sets forth that a management entity, i.e. 
an entity, which provides another entity with key management services, is a related party, which is subject to 
all requirements relating to disclosures of related parties. Further, an entity accepting services from the man-
agement entity shall disclose costs of management services. The amendment had no significant effect on the 
reporting of the company.

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations
The amendment that must be observed by entities in future periods clarifies that: 
• In addition to joint venture, joint arrangement also do not fit within the scope of requirements of IFRS 3.
• An exception applies only to the accounting of establishment of joint arrangement in financial statements 

of this joint arrangement.
The amendment had no significant effect on the reporting of the company.

Amendments to IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement
The amendment that must be observed by entities in future periods clarifies that exceptions to the require-
ments of the IFRS 13 standard apply to all contracts, which fit within the requirements of IAS 39 Financial 
instruments: Recognition and Measurement, irrespective of whether the requirements for the definition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities have been met or not. The amendment had no significant effect on the 
reporting of the company.

Amendments to IAS 40, Investment Property
When providing ancillary services, the international standard IAS 40 differentiates between investment prop-
erty and owner-occupied property, which are treated under tangible fixed assets. The amendment that must be 
observed by entities in future periods clarifies that when defining whether a certain business complies with the 
definition of asset or business combination, the entity shall apply provisions of the international standard IFRS 
3 and not IAS 40. The amendment had no significant effect on the reporting of the company.
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Bases for the Composition of Financial Statements 
Financial statements of the company Impol 2000 d.d. observe historical cost. In accordance with the legisla-
tion, an entity must enable independent audit of these financial statements. 

Functional and Presentation Currency
Financial statemens in this report are given in EUR, no cents, and EUR is also the functional currency of the 
company. For the purposes of rounding value data, there may be insignificant differences in sums found in 
tables.

Application of Estimates and Judgements 
Preparation of financial statement requires from the management to deliver judgements, estimates and as-
sumptions, which affect the use of policies and recognized values of assets and liabilities, revenues and expens-
es. Estimates and assumptions are based on previous experiences and many other factors, which are in given 
circumstances applied as well-grounded, and on the basis of which we can deliver judgements about book 
value of assets and liabilities, which are not immediately visible in other sources. Actual results may derogate 
from these estimates. Estimates and provided assumptions are checked annually. Corrections of accounting es-
timates are recognized only for the period in which an estimate is corrected, if it only influences that period, or 
for the period of correction and future years, if the correction influences the current year as well as future years. 

Estimates and assumptions are present in the following judgements, in particular:

Estimate of useful life of depreciated assets
When assessing useful life of assets, the company observes the expected physical tear and wear, technical 
obsolescence, economic condition and expected statutory and other restrictions of use. The company annually 
checks the useful life of more significant assets. The applied depreciation method and useful life are assessed 
at least at the end of every financial year and if the expected sample of use of future economic benefits, arising 
from the depreciated asset, significantly changes, the depreciation method shall be amended so as to fit the 
changed sample. Such change shall be treated as the change of accounting estimate.

Test of impairment of losses
Test of impairment of losses is carried out by the management with the purpose of ensuring that the book 
value of assets does not exceed their recoverable amount. On the reporting date it is assessed whether there is 
any sign that an asset might be impaired. Critical judgements have been applied in the valuation of:

• Investments into subsidiaries (Note 8).
• Investments into associated entities (Note 8).
• Financial receivables (Note 10).

Estimate of fair value of assets (Note 17)
All items in financial statements constitute acquisition values or amortised cost. All assets and liabilities, which 
are measured or disclosed at fair value in financial statements, are classified to the hierarchy of fair value on the 
basis of the lowest level of input data, which are significant for measuring total fair value: 

• The first level comprises quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for equal assets or liabilities.
• The second level comprises input data in addition to quoted prices, included in the first level, which 

are directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as derived from prices) identified as assets or liability.
• The third level comprises input data for assets or liabilities, which are not based on identified market 

data.
Impol 2000 d.d. has classified all financial instruments to the third level (Note 17).

Estimate of net realisable value of inventories of commercial goods
At least at the end of the financial year the company checks net realisable value and the need for the write-
off of inventories. The costs of inventories are not recoverable, if the inventories are damaged, if they are fully 
or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices reduce. Costs of inventories are also not recoverable in case of 
increase in estimated costs of completion or increase in estimated costs, which will appear in relation to sale. 
Partial write-off of inventories under their historical cost or costs to net realisable value is compliant with the 
viewpoint that assets cannot be recognized with higher amounts than expected upon their sale or use. Inven-
tories are usually partially written-off to net realisable value by individual items. In 2015, there have not been 
such write-offs.

Estimate of collectible value of receivables
At least once a year, typically before composing the annual statements of accounts, the suitability of recognized 
amounts of individual receivable is checked. If the Management determines, on the basis of accounting data, 
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that the receivables not settled within the agreed period turn out to be questionable and disputable, the cor-
rection of their value shall be charged to revaluation operating expenses in the share set forth in the decision.
Receivables older than 365 days are recognized as doubtful debts and, unless provided otherwise by the Man-
agement, judicial proceedings (lawsuit or execution) shall be instigated against them. The receivables which 
are already subject to ongoing judicial proceedings shall be recognised as disputable receivabless. For doubtful 
and disputable receivables a correction of their value shall be charged to the revaluation operating expenses.

Estimate of possibility to use deferred tax receivables
The company has formed deferred tax receivables relating to the formulation of provisions and impairment of 
operating receivables. 
At the end of the financial year the company checks the amount of recognized deferred tax receivables. De-
ferred tax liability shall be recognized in the case of probable future net profit to which a deferred receivable 
may be charged in the future. 

Estimate of formed provisions
The current value of severance pays upon retirement and long-service bonuses is recorded among committ-
ments for certain post-employment and other benefits. They are recognized on the basis of actuarial calcu-
lation. The actuarial calculation is based on the assumptions and estimates valid in the period of occurrence 
of calculation, which, as a result of future changes, may differ from actual assumptions, which will apply then 
(discount rates, employee fluctuation assessment, mortality rates and wage growth assessment). The company 
has not formed any provisions for lawsuits, since there is no pending lawsuit or claims instigated against the 
company.

Important Accounting Guidelines of the Company 
Accounting guidelines applied in the preparation of financial statements are the same as in the preparation of 
financial statements for the financial year, which ended on 31 December 2014.
  
Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions expressed in a foreign currency are converted to an appropriate functional currency in accordance 
with the exchange rate on the transaction date. Cash and liabilities expressed in a foreign currenca at the end 
of the reporting period are converted into a functional currency at the then valid ECB exchange rate published 
by the Bank of Slovenia. Foreign exchange gains or losses are differences between the amortised cost in a func-
tional currency at the beginnning of the period corrected by the amount of effective interest and the payments 
during the period and amortised cost in a foreign currency converted at the exchange rate at the end of the 
period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities expressed in a foreign currency and measured at fair value shall be 
converted into a functional currency at the exchange rate on the day the amount of fair value is determined. 
Non-monetary items expressed in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost shall be converted into a 
functional currency at the exchange rate on the transaction day. Foreign currency gains or losses are recognized 
in the income statement. 

Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are entites controlled by Impol 2000 d.d. Control exists, when the company has the ability to 
decide about financial and business policies of the company in order to obtain benefits from the subsidiary’s 
operations. 

Investments of the company to subsidiaries are measured at acquisition value. If the loss of the company Impol 
2000 d.d. is higher than its interest, the book value of the interests of the company shall be reduced to zero and 
the interest in subsequent losses is no longer recognized. The costs the company may connect to the acquisition 
of a subsidiary increase the acquisition price of equity investment. Participation in profit of a subsidiary is rec-
ognised in the income statement of the company Impol 2000 d.d. when it obtains the right to profit sharing. 

Investments in Associates 
Associates are entities in which Impol 2000 d.d. has an important influence, but it does not control their finan-
cial and business policies. There is still a significant influence, if the company is the owner of 20 to 50 percent 
of voting rights in the other company. 

Investments in associated are recognised in the company Impol 2000 d.d. at acquisition value. The costs the 
company may connect to the acquisition increase the acquisition value of investment.

Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets of Impol 2000 d.d. comprise other non-current deferred items (IT programs, software solu-
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Table 118: Applied depreciation rates for intangible fixed assets 

Table 119: Applied depreciation rates for intangible and tangible fixed assets

Depreciation rates applied in the 
company Depreciation rates in %

The lowest The highest

Intangible assets

Computer software 10.00% 50.00%

Every impairment is immediately recognized in the income statement and is not reversed subsequently.

Tangible Assets
All tangible assets of the company are disclosed according to the historical cost model. Upon initial recogni-
tion they are measured at acquisition value, reduced by accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. The acquisition value includes costs, which may be directly attributed to acquisition of an individual 
asset. 

Important parts of tangible fixed assets, which have different useful lives, shall be calculated as individual 
tangible fixed assets.

Borrowing costs, which are directly related to purchase, construction or making of assets in acquisition, are 
recognized as a part of acquisition value of such asset. 

Positive or negative difference between net sales value and book value of disposed asset shall be recognized 
in an income statement. Costs of replacement of a certain part of a tangible fixed asset shall be recognized in 
book value of this asset, if it is probable that the future economic interests related to the part of this asset will 
flow to the company and if the acquisition value can be reliably measured.

All other costs (repairs, maintenance), which are intended for preserving or renewing future economic benefits, 
are recognized in the income statement as expenditures as soon as they occur. Depreciation is calculated in 
accordance with the straight-line depreciation method, taking into account the useful life of every individual 
tangible asset and the residual values, whereby the residual value is defined only for important assets. Lands are 
not depreciated. Depreciation becomes subject to calculation, when the asset is available for use.
Depreciation rates, which are based on the estimated useful life for individual types of tangible fixed assets:

Depreciation rates, applied in the 
company Depreciation rate in %

The lowest The highest

Tangible fixed assets

Equipment

Production equipment 20.00% 20.00%

Furniture 20.00% 25.00%

Computer hardware 50.00% 50.00%

Motor vehicles

Personal vehicles 20.00% 20.00%

tions). Upon initial recognition they are valued at acquisition value. The book value of intangible assets with 
final useful life is reduced by depreciation. Subsequent expenditures relating to intangible assets are capitalised 
only in cases, when they increase future economic benefits. All other costs are recognised in the income state-
ment as expenditures as soon as they arise.

Depreciation is calculated on the basis of the straight-line depreciation method, taking into account the useful 
life of intangible asset. Depreciation becomes subject to calculation, when the assets is available for use. Depre-
ciation rates, which are based on the estimated useful life for individual types of intangible assets:
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Financial instruments
The accounts of the company Impol 2000 d.d. in the section financial instruments, disclose the following items:
• Non-derived financial assets.
• Non-derived financial liabilities. 
The company does not recognize derived financial instruments in their accounts. 

Non-derived financial instruments are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is the amount at which 
an asset can be sold or a liability can be changed between well-informed and willing parties in a thoughtful 
transaction. After initial recognizion, non-derived financial instruments are measured in a manner, which is 
defined below.

In determining the fair value of financial instruments the following hierarchy of levels of defining fair value 
shall be observed:
• The first level comprises quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for equal assets or liabilities.
• The second level comprises input data in addition to quoted prices, included in the first level, which are 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as derived from prices) identified as assets or liability.
• The third level comprises input data for assets or liabilities, which are not based on identified market data.

Quoted prices are applied as the basis of determining the fair value of financial instruments. If a financial in-
strument is not traded in an organized market or the market is assessed as non-active, input data of the second 
and third level are applied for the assessment of the fair value of financial instrument. 

Non-derived Financial Assets
Non-derived financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, receivables and loans, and 
investments. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial asset held for trading is classified as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial 
recognition it is valued at fair value, which equals the paid amount. The change of fair value of the asset is 
directly recognized in the profit or loss. The company Impol 2000 d.d. possesses no such assets.

Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets
If the company has the purpose and the ability to have debt securities, they are classified as held-to-maturity 
financial assets. These are measured at amortised cost by using the effective interest method, reduced by im-
pairment losses. The company Impol 2000 d.d. possesses no such assets.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derived financial assets with stable or definable payments, which are not listed 
on active markets. They are classified among current assets, other than for maturities longer than 12 months 
after the date of the statement of financial position. In this case they are classified among non-current assets.
In the balance sheet, loans and receivables are disclosed among operating, financial and other receivables at 
amortised cost subject to the valid interest rates.

Financial Assets Held for Sale
Financial assets held for sale are those non-derived financial assets, which are designated as held for sale or 
are not classified as loans and receivables or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. They are valued 
at fair value, if fair value can be determined and profits or losses in valuation are recognized directly in capital, 
other than impairments losses and exchange difference gain or loss, until recognition for a financial asset is 
reversed. When reversing recognition of investment, the accumulated profits and losses disclosed in capital are 
brought to profit or loss.

If the fair value cannot be reliably measured, because the range of assessments of the established fair value is 
important and the probability of various assessments is difficult to estimate, the financial asset is measured at 
acquisition value. 

The company Impol 2000 d.d. discloses only capital investments in subsidiaries and associates among financial 
assets held for sale and measures them at acquisition value. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, bank deposits up to three months and other current, highly liquid 
investments with original maturity of three months or less. They are disclosed at acquisition value. Bank over-
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Impairment of 
Assets

drafts are included among current financial liabilities.

Non-derived Financial Liabilities
Non-derived financial liabilities comprise operating, financial and other liabilities. Financial liabilities are ini-
tially recognized at fair value increased by costs, which are directly attributed to a transaction. After initial 
recognition financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial 
liabilities are classified among non-current liabilities, other than liabilities or part of liability with a maturity 
of less than 12 months after the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. Such liabilities are 
recognised among current liabilities.

Inventories
Inventories of goods of the company Impol 2000 d.d. are valued at acquisition value or net realisable value, 
whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the estimated sales price achieved in the ordinary course of business, 
reduced by estimated costs of completion and estimated costs relating to sale.

The cost price of inventories of goods is composed of purchase price, import and other non-refundable charges 
and direct costs of procurement. The FIFO method is applied in the valuation of inventories of goods and 
accounting of utilization. The company does not have any other inventories. The inventory impairment policy 
is noted in 11.b.

Equity
The share equity of Impol 2000 d.d. as at 31 December 2015 equals EUR 4,451,540 and is divided into 
1,066,767 oridnary no-par value shares. The capital reserves of Impol 2000 d.d. totalling EUR 10,751,254 
comprise a paid-in share premium of EUR 97,090 and EUR 9,489,713, and a general capital revaluation 
adjustment of EUR 1,164,451. 

In accordance with the Articles of Association, statutory reserves of EUR 478,774 were formed from the 
net profit of the financial year 2015, which represents 15% of the net profit in 2015. In accordance with the 
resolution of the General Meeting held on 17 July 2015, dividends in the amount of EUR 1,002,761 or EUR 
0.94 per share were paid in 2015. The book value of share as at 31 December 2015 amounts to EUR 51.66 per 
share, and the net profit per share equals EUR 2.99 per share.

Provisions
Provisions are formed for a current committment, which is the result of past event and it is likely that the 
settlement of the committment will be subject to an outflow of factors, which enable economic benefits and 
the amount of committment may be reliably assessed.

Provisions relating to Severance Pays and Long-service bonuses
In accordance with the legal provisions, on the basis of the collective agreement and the internal rules, the 
company is obliged to pay long-service bonuses to employees and severance pays upon their retirement, which 
is subject to the formation of provisions for liabilities and charges. There are no other pension liabilities. The 
provisions are formed in the amount of estimated future payments for severance pays and long-service bo-
nuses, discounted on the day of the statement of financial position. The actuarial calculation is made for every 
employeed by observing the costs of severance pays upon retirement and costs of all expected long-service bo-
nuses until retirement. The actuarial calculation is based on the assumptions and estimates valid in the period 
of occurrence of calculation, which, as a result of future changes, may differ from actual assumptions, which 
will apply then. This mainly refers to discount rates, employee fluctuation assessment, mortality rates and wage 
growth assessment. 

Financial Assets
A financial asset is considered impaired, if there are objective proofs indicating that one or more events caused 
reduction of expected future cash flows relating to that asset. Financial asset is impaired, if its book value is 
higher than the estimated replacement value or if there is objective evidence about impairment. Replacement 
value represents the current value of expected cash flows subject to the valid interest rate of that instrument. 
The impairment is recognized in the income statement.

On the reporting date, the accounting department must verify the suitability of the amount of an individual 
financial investment. If any financial investment loses value (for example, as a result of poor business, in which 
the company owns share, or poor financial solvency of the entity, etc.), the accounting department shall de-
cide what correction of the company's initially recognised value needs to be charged to revaluation financial 
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Non-Financial 
Assets

expenses. Likewise, the responsible person must define a partial or total write-off of financial investment, as 
soon as relevant reasons appear. 

Impairment of Receivables and Loans Given
Impairment of receivables is formed on the basis of assessment of enforceability of every individual receivable 
and age analysis. If assessed that the book value of receivable exceeds its fair value, i.e. collectible value, the 
receivable is impaired. The receivables, which are expected not to be settled within a regular period or in a 
total amount, are considered doubtful, but if a judicial proceeding has been instigated, they shall be considered 
disputable receivables. Impairment of the loans given is assessed for every individual loan. The impairment 
loss relating to a financial asset disclosed at amortised cost, is calculated as the difference between the carrying 
amount of asset and expected future cash flows, discounted at the original valid interest rate. The loss is rec-
ognised in the profit or loss for the period (more about this under Chapter 4 Assessment of Collectible Value 
of Receivables).

Impairment of Financial Assets Held for Sale 
Impairment costs of financial assets held for sale due to impairment are recognized in a manner that the pos-
sible accumulated loss, which is previously recognized in comprehensive income for the period and disclosed 
in the revaluation surplus, is transferred to profit or loss. A subsequent growth in fair value of impaired equity 
share which is held for sale is recognized in comprehensive income for the period or in the revaluation surplus. 
Impairment loss can be reversed, if the reversal of loss due to impairment may be objectively connected to the 
event, which occurred after the recognition of impairment. 

Tangible and Intangible Assets
The residual book value of non-financial assets, other than deferred tax receivables, is checked upon every 
reporting data, with the purpose of determining whether signs of impairment are present. If such signs exist, 
the recoverable value of asset is assessed.

Impairment of an asset or a cash-generating unit is recognized in the case, when its book value exceeds its 
recoverable value. The cash-generating unit is the youngest group of assets, which generate financial inflows, 
largely independent of financial inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Impairment is shown in the in-
come statement. Recoverable value of an asset or a cash-generating unit is its value in use or fair value, reduced 
by the costs of sale, whichever is higher. In asset valuation in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted 
to their current value using the pre-tax discount rate, which reflects continuous market assessment of time val-
ue of money and risks, which are typical for an asset. Reversal of an impairment loss for goodwill is prohibited.
As regards other assets, impairment loss in previous periods at the end of the reporting period is evaluated 
and determined whether there has been reduction in loss or it doesn't even exist any more. Impairment loss is 
reversed, if there was a change in estimates, on the basis of which the recoverable value of assets is determined. 
Asset impairment loss is reversed to the amount to which the increased book value of asset exceeds the book 
value, which would have been determined after deducting depreciation write-down, if impairment loss would 
not have been recognized with this asset in previous years.

Inventories
Inventories are impaired, if the book value exceeds their net realisable value. Also individual types of in-
ventories by ageing structure are additionally analysed. Depending on the group of inventories, the value of 
impairment is defined as a percentage of their value with regard to its ageing. Also expert assessment on the 
possibility of use or sale of such inventories is also observed in impairment. At least at the end of the financial 
year, the entity checks the net realizable value of inventories and the need for write-off of inventories. Costs of 
inventories are not recoverable, if inventories are damaged, if they are fully or partially obsolete or if their sales 
prices reduce. Costs of inventories are also not recoverable, if estimated costs of completion or estimated costs 
relating to sale increase. Partial write-off of inventories under their historical cost or costs to net realizable val-
ue in accordance with the aspect that assets cannot be recognized with higher amounts than expected at their 
sale or use. Inventories are usually partialy written-off to net realizable value by individual items.

Recognition of Revenue
Revenues are recognized, if the increase in economic benefit in the accounting period is related to the increase 
in assets or reduction in debt, and the increase can be reliably measured. 

Operating revenues of Impol 2000 d.d. comprise:
• Revenues from the sale of merchandise, measured on the basis of sales prices given in invoices or other 

documents, reduced by discounts, approved at sale or later, also for earlier payment. The revenues are 
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recognized in the income statement, when the company transferred to the buyer significant risks and 
benefits related to the ownership of goods.

• Revenues from the sale of services, other than the rendered services, which lead to financial revenues, are 
measured at sales prices of completed services. They are recognized in the period, when the service has 
been rendered.

• Other operating revenue appear upon disposal of property, machinery and equipment, and intangible 
assets, upon the reversal of provisions, payment of written-off receivables and others.

Financial revenues comprise interest income, investment income, dividend income and exchange difference 
gains. Interest income is recognized upon their occurrence using the agreed interest rate. Dividend income is 
recognized on the day the shareholder's right to payment enters into force. 
Financial expenses comprise borrowing costs (part of borrowing costs may be capitalized within property, 
machinery and equipment) and exchange difference losses. 

Taxes
Taxes include current tax and deferred tax liabilities.
Current tax is demonstrated in profit or loss, other than in the part referring to items, which are disclosed 
directly in the statement of comprehensive income. Current tax liabilities are based on taxable profit for the 
financial year. The taxable profit differs from net profit reported in the profit or loss, because it excludes revenue 
or expense items, which are taxable or deductible in other years, and also items, which are never taxable or 
deductible. Current tax liability is calculated by using the tax rate valid on the reporting date.

Deferred tax is fully disclosed by using the liability according to the statement of financial position, observing 
temporary differences, which occur among tax values of assets and liabilities and their book values in financial 
statements. Deferred tax is determined by using the tax rates, which are valid on the day of the statement of 
financial position and which are expected to be used, when the deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax 
liability is settled. Deferred tax liability is recognized to the extent of probability that in the future taxable profit 
might be available, and a deferred asset may be charged to such profit in the future.

Cash Flow Statement
For the section referring to business operation, the cash flow statement is compiled using the indirect method 
on the basis of the data of the statement of financial income as at 31 December of the accounting year, and 
the statement of financial position as at 31 December of the previous year, and additional data required for the 
adjustment of inflows and outflows and for the appropriate itemisation of significant items. The part referring 
to investments and financing is compiled using the direct method. Paid and received penalty interest relating 
to operating receivables are distributed among operating cash flows. Interests from loans and from paid and 
received dividends are distributed among financing cash flows.

Segment Reporting
Because the nature of the groups of products, their production procedure and the method of distribution are 
very similar, the group defined only one segment reporting. In disclosing data by segments it is observed that 
aluminium activity is the main segment in the group. Other activites have an insignificant influence on pre-
senting the accounting data.

The group reports on the sale by geographical territories. Defined geographical territories are Slovenia, Euro-
pean Union, other European countries and the rest of the world.

Comparable Data and Effects of the Transition to IFRS
The company Impol 2000 d.d. is a first-time adopter of IFRS for compiling financial statements for 2015. 
In accordance with the IFRS 1 provisions, 1 January 2014 is defined as transition date, so in order to ensure 
comparability as one of the fundamental principles of IFRS, financial statements had to be converted or re-
classified and compiled in accordance with IFRS. The effects of conversion or transition from SAS to IFRS 
are given below.

The transition to International Financial Reporting Standards had no influence on the financial statements of 
Impol 2000 d.d. The below given balance sheet of the company shows comparable fata from the balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 according to SAS (2006), and as at 1 January 2014 and 31 
December 2014 according to IFRS as adopted by the European Union, which indicate that the differences 
result solely from the reclassification of items to intangible assets and in the income statement from the reclas-
sification of other revenues and other expenses. Value differences have not been identified, however, individual 
asset and liability items, and revenue and expense items are presented in accordance with IFRS and thus differ 
from the SAS presentation. Reclassifications are as follows:
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Item
Effect of 

transition 31 
Jan 2014

Effect of 
transition  31 

Dec 2013

31 Dec 2014 
– IFRS

1 Jan 2014 – 
IFRS

31 Dec 2014 
– SAS

31 Dec 2013 
– SAS

A.   Non-current assets 0 0 68,183,549 68,221,169 68,183,549 68,221,169

I.   Intangible fixed assets and non-current deferred costs and 
accrued revenue 0 0 3,219 3,879 3,219 3,879

 1. Non-current property rights 3,219 3,879 3,219 3,879  0

 2. Non-current deferred development costs -3,219 -3,879 0 0 3,219 3,879

 3. Other non-current deferred costs and accrued revenue 0 0  0  0

II.   Tangible fixed assets 0 0 183,595 223,466 183,595 223,466

 1. Production equipment and machinery 0 0 145,324 175,110 145,324 175,110

 2. Other machinery and equipment 0 0 38,271 48,356 38,271 48,356

III.   Investment property 0 0  0  0

IV.   Non-current investments 0 0 67,970,271 67,970,271 67,970,271 67,970,271

 1. Non-current investments, excluding loans 0 0 67,970,271 67,970,271 67,970,271 67,970,271

  a) Shares and participating interests in the Group 0 0 67,935,624 67,935,624 67,935,624 67,935,624

  b) Shares and participating interests in associate companies 0 0 34,647 34,647 34,647 34,647

V.   Non-current operating receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0

VI.   Deferred tax receivables 0 0 26,464 23,553 26,464 23,553

B.   Current assets 0 0 6,435,040 2,929,505 6,435,040 2,929,505

I.   Assets (groups for disposal) for sale 0 0  0  0

II.   Inventories 0 0 49,506 19,640 49,506 19,640

 1. Products and merchandise 0 0 49,506 19,640 49,506 19,640

III.   Current financial investments 0 0 2,300,000 13,795 2,300,000 13,795

 1. Current loans 0 0 2,300,000 13,795 2,300,000 13,795

  a) Current loans to Group companies 0 0 2,300,000 0 2,300,000 0

  b) Current loans to others 0 0  13,795  13,795

IV.   Current operating receivables 0 0 2,477,276 2,622,710 2,477,276 2,622,710

 1. Current operating receivables due from Group companies 0 0 530,230 687,125 530,230 687,125

 2. Current operating receivables due from customers 0 0 1,841,953 1,788,880 1,841,953 1,788,880

 3. Current operating receivables due from others 0 0 105,093 146,705 105,093 146,705

V.   Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 1,608,258 273,360 1,608,258 273,360

C.   Current deferred costs and accrued revenue 0 0 9,323 21,373 9,323 21,373

   TOTAL ASSETS 0 0 74,627,912 71,172,047 74,627,912 71,172,047

A.   Equity 0 0 52,918,919 51,130,851 52,918,919 51,130,851

I.  Called-up capital 0 0 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540

 1. Share capital 0 0 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540 4,451,540

II.  Capital reserves 0 0 10,751,254 10,751,254 10,751,254 10,751,254

III.  Reserves from profit 0 0 6,427,553 6,109,738 6,427,553 6,109,738

 1. Statutory reserves 0 0 694,972 377,157 694,972 377,157

 2. Other reserves from profit 0 0 5,732,581 5,732,581 5,732,581 5,732,581

IV.  Revaluation surplus 0 0  0  0

V.  Net profit brought forward 0 0 29,487,622 27,681,093 29,487,622 27,681,093

VI.  Net profit/loss for the financial year 0 0 1,800,950 2,137,226 1,800,950 2,137,226

Table 120: Balance sheet upon transition to IFRS as at 1 January 2014 and as at 31 December 2014 in EUR
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Item
Effect of 

transition 31 
Jan 2014

Effect of 
transition  31 

Dec 2013

31 Dec 2014 
– IFRS

1 Jan 2014 – 
IFRS

31 Dec 2014 
– SAS

31 Dec 2013 
– SAS

B.  Provisions and non-current accrued costs and deferred 
revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0

C.  Non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0

 I,  Non-current financial liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0

 II.  Non-current operating liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0

 III.  Deferred tax liabilities 0 0  0  0

D.  Current liabilities 0 0 21,664,259 20,027,700 21,664,259 20,027,700

 I.  Liabilities included in groups for disposal 0 0  0  0

 II.  Current financial liabilities 0 0 21,010,931 18,440,942 21,010,931 18,440,942

  1. Current financial liabilities to Group companies 0 0 500,000 9,096,579 500,000 9,096,579

  2. Current financial liabilities to banks 0 0 1,101,000 9,344,363 1,101,000 9,344,363

  3. Other current financial liabilities 0 0 19,409,931 0 19,409,931 0

 III.  Current operating liabilities 0 0 653,328 1,586,758 653,328 1,586,758

  1. Current operating liabilities to Group companies 0 0 108,116 1,187,613 108,116 1,187,613

  2. Current trade payables 0 0 106,089 124,467 106,089 124,467

  3. Current operating liabilities from advance payments 0 0 110,634 32,656 110,634 32,656

  4. Other current operating liabilities 0 0 328,489 242,022 328,489 242,022

E.  Current accrued costs and deferred revenue 0 0 44,734 13,496 44,734 13,496

   TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 0 74,627,912 71,172,047 74,627,912 71,172,047

Clarification regarding changes in the balance sheet as at 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 upon 
transition to IFRS:

a) As at 1 January 2014, upon transition to IFRS, Impol 2000 d.d. reclassified non-current deferred devel-
opment costs items, which match the nature of property rights, from the non-current deferred development 
costs items to non-current property rights. The book vale of reclassified non-current deferred development 
costs as at 1 January 2014 amounted to EUR 3,879, and to EUR 3,219 as at 31 December 2014. The tran-
sition had no effect on equity position, because the book value of non-current property rights increased in 
the total amount of EUR 3,879 and EUR 3,219, on 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014, respectively.
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Clarification regarding changes in the income statement upon transition to IFRS:
 
a) Upon transition to IFRS, Impol 2000 d.d. reclassified the disclosed other revenue and other expenses 
items according to SAS (2006) to other operating revenue or other operating expenses items.

Item Effect of transition 2014 – IFRS 2014 – SAS

1.  Net revenue from sales 0 14,150,351 14,150,351

 a) Net revenue from sales in the domestic market 0 12,946,142 12,946,142

 b) Net revenue from sales in the foreign market 0 1,204,209 1,204,209

2.  Change in the value of product inventories and unfinished production 0 0 0

3.  Capitalised own products and services 0 0 0

4.  Other operating revenue (including operating revenue from revaluation) 311 2,317 2,006

5.  Costs of goods, materials and services 0 8,935,348 8,935,348

 a) Cost of sold goods and materials and costs of materials used 0 8,220,203 8,220,203

 b) Costs of services 0 715,145 715,145

6.  Labour costs 0 2,031,702 2,031,702

 a) Costs of salaries 0 1,478,337 1,478,337

 b) Social security costs (pension insurance costs are shown separately) 0 235,054 235,054

 c) Other labour costs 0 318,311 318,311

7.  Write-downs 0 68,901 68,901

 a) Depreciation 0 46,882 46,882

 b) Operating expenses from revaluation associated with current operating 
assets 0 22,019 22,019

8.  Other operating expenses 85,789 177,955 92,166

9.  Financial revenue from participating interests 0 0 0

10. Financial revenue from loans granted 0 3,423 3,423

 a) Financial revenue from loans granted to Group companies 0 1,676 1,676

 b) Financial revenue from loans to others 0 1,747 1,747

11. Financial revenue from operating receivables 0 982 982

 a) Financial revenue from operating receivables due from others 0 982 982

12. Financial expenses from the impairment and write-offs of financial 
investments 0 0 0

13. Financial expenses from financial liabilities 0 369,634 369,634

 a) Financial expenses from loans received from Group companies 0 190,210 190,210

 b) Financial expenses from loans from banks 0 102,399 102,399

 c) Financial expenses incurred in connection with other financial liabilities 0 77,025 77,025

14. Financial expenses from operating liabilities 0 4,039 4,039

 a) Financial expenses from operating liabilities to Group companies 0 10 10

 b) Financial expenses from trade payables and bills of exchange payable 0 48 48

 c) Financial expenses from other operating liabilities 0 3,981 3,981

15. Other revenue -311 0 311

16. Other expenses -85,789 0 85,789

17. Income tax  0 453,640 453,640

18. Deferred taxes 0 -2,911 -2,911

19. Net profit/loss for the financial year 0 2,118,765 2,118,765

Table 121: Income statement upon transition to IFRS for 2014 in EUR
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Disclosure for Individual Items in Group Financial 
Statements

Table 122: Operating revenue in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Table 123: Other operating revenue in EUR 

Table 124: Net sales revenue according to the type of goods or service in EUR

A. Operating revenue
Operating revenue generated by

2015 2014
Group companies Associates Others

Net sales revenue 5,329,403 560 10,614,427 15,944,390 14,150,351

Change in the value of product 
inventories and unfinished 
production

   0 0

Capitalised own products and 
services    0 0

Other operating revenue   5,176 5,176 2,317

TOTAL 5,329,403 560 10,619,603 15,949,566 14,152,668

 B. Other operating revenue 2015 2014

Other revenue associated with products and services (subsidies, grants, reimbursements) 3.054 311

Revaluation operating revenue (from operating receivables) 2,122 2,006

TOTAL 5,176 2,317

 2015 2014

From the sale of products

From the sale of services 5,356,276 5,452,290

From the sale of merchandise 10,588,114 8,698,061

TOTAL 15.944.390 14.150.351

1. Operating Revenue 



Financial report of Impol 2000 d.d. for 2015

157ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

2. Operating Expenses

Table 125: Net sales revenue by operating segments in EUR                                                    

 2015 2014

Revenue from sales in Slovenia 13,532,200 12,946,142

• Group companies 5,329,403 5,441,993

• Associates 560 627

• Other companies 8,202,237 7,503,522

Revenue from sales in EU 561,530 276,968

• Associated 561,530 276,968

Revenue from sales in other European countries 1,850,660 927,241

• Other companies 1,850,660 927,241

TOTAL 15,944,390 14,150,351

Table 126: Analysis of costs and expenses in EUR

Distribution costs General and 
administr. TOTAL 2015

TOTAL purchase in 2015 from:
TOTAL 2014

Group companies Associates Other companies

Cost of merchandise and 
materials sold 9,967,297  9,967,297 9,973,247  -5,950 8,131,929

Cost of materials  84,546 84,546 19,552  64,994 88,274

Cost of services 290,480 846,200 1,136,680 144,218 141,785 850,677 715,145

Labour costs  3,161,773 3,161,773   3,161,773 2,031,702

Depreciation  49,107 49,107   49,107 46,882

Revaluation operating  37.534 37.534  34.647 2.887 22.019

Expenses  37,534 37,534  34,647 2,887 22,019

Provisions   0   0 0

Other operating expenses  123,823 123,823 7,832  115,991 177,955

TOTAL 10,257,777 4,302,983 14,560,760 10,144,849 176,432 4,239,479 11,213,906
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Table 127: Revaluation operating expenses in EUR

Table 128: Cost of materials in EUR 

Table 129: Cost of services in EUR

Table 130: The amount (cost), spent for the auditor (pursuant to the Companies Act ZGD-1, Point 20, Paragraph 1, Article 69) 
in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                              

2015 2014

From the disposal of tangible assets 17 0

From operating receivables 37,517 22,019

TOTAL 37,534 22,019

2015 2014

Costs of energy 22,486 22,937

Cost of office supplies and professional literature 54,472 60,595

Other cost of materials 7,588 4,742

TOTAL 84,546 88,274

2015 2014

Cost of transport services 14,349 12,395

Costs of rent 86,584 80,389

Reimbursements of costs of employees 48,470 43,403

Other costs of services 987,277 578,958

TOTAL 1,136,680 715,145

2015 2014

Auditing of the annual report 22,502 20,835

Other auditing services 1,840  0

Other non-auditing services 18,000 0

TOTAL 42,342 20,835
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Table 131: Labour Costs in EUR

Table 132: Remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board, Management Board in EUR

Table 133: Education structure

Itemisation of labour costs 2015 2014

Wages and salaries 2,052,133 1,478,337

Pension insurance costs 170,661 125,980

Other social security insurance costs 218,593 109,074

Other labour costs 720,386 318,311

TOTAL 3,161,773 2,031,702

Remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board, 
Management Board in EUR  2015 2014

Management Board members* 808,103 734,942

Supervisory Board members 73,417

Employees on individual contracts 1,216,402 269,751

TOTAL 2,024,504 1,078,110

*Remuneration under this item in 2015 refer to the members of the Board of Directors and Executive Directors, while in 2014 they only refer to the members of the Board 
of Directors.

Education level of Employees as at 31 Dec 2015 Number

Doctorate degree 2

University degree 12

Higher education degree 8

College degree 10

Secondary school 8

Skilled worker 1

Total 41



Financial report of Impol 2000 d.d. for 2015

160 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE IMPOL GROUP AND OF IMPOL 2000 D.D.

Table 134: Depreciation in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Table 135: Other costs and expenses in EUR                                                                                                      

Table 136: Financial revenue from financial investments in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                 

2015 2014

Depreciation of intangible fixed assets 618 660

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 48,489 46,222

Total depreciation 49,107 46,882

2015 2014

Charges independent of business 51,541 92,166

Grants 71,648 85,786

Other costs 634 3

TOTAL 123,823 177,955

Total Of which from Total

2015 Group companies Associated Other companies 2014

Financial revenue from articipating inter-
ests – participation in profits, dividends 2,926,163 2,926,163   0

Financial revenue from loans – Interest 40,544 38,871  1,673 3,423

Financial revenue from operating receiv-
ables – Interest 33,845   33,845 982

TOTAL 3,000,552 2,965,034 0 35,518 4,405

3. Financial Revenues and Expenses  

In accordance with the resolution of the General Meeting of the subsidiary Impol d.o.o. as of 24 November 
2015, Impol 2000 d.d. is entitled to a proportionate (97.5387-percent) share of available profit, intended for 
distribution in the total amount of EUR 3,000,000, i.e. in the amount of EUR 2,926,163.  
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Table 137: Financial expenses from financial investments in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                

Table 138: Financial expenses from operating liabilities in EUR

Total Of which from Total

2015 Group companies Associated Other companies 2014

Financial expenses from loans (excluding 
bank loans) – interest 6,542 6,542   190,210

Financial expenses from loans from banks 
– interest 36,605   36,605 102,399

Financial expenses from bonds – interest 385,205   385,205 0

Financial expenses from other financial 
liabilities – interest 599,295   599,295 77,025

Financial expenses from operating liabili-
ties – interest 2,243 0 0 2,243 125

Financial expenses from operating liabili-
ties – exchange rate differences 2 0 0 2 3,914

Financial expenses from impairment 36,371 1,724 34,647  0

TOTAL 1,066,263 8,266 34,647 1,023,350 373,673

Total Of which from Total

2015 Group companies Associates Other companies 2014

Financial expenses from liabilities to 
suppliers – interests 2,243   2,243 58

Financial expenses from other operating 
liabilities – interests 0    67

Financial expenses from other operating 
liabilities – exchange rate differences 2   2 3,914

TOTAL 2,245 0 0 2,245 4,039

Financial expenses from impairments in the amount of EUR 34,647 relate to the equity investment into 
the associated entity Impol Brazil Aluminium Ltda and EUR 1,724 relate to the equity investment into the 
associated entity Impol Hungary (more on this in the note 8. Non-Current Financial Investments).
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Table  139: Income tax in EUR

4. Income Tax

The valid income tax rate for Slovenia in 2015 equals 17 percent (in 2014: 17 percent).

5. Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets in 2015 were formed for additionally written-off receivables due from customers and 
for formed provisions for severance pays and long-service bonuses.  

INCOME TAX 2015 2014

Revenues determined under accounting regulations 18,950,118 14,157,073

Taxable revenues 16,022,640 14,122,755

Expenses determined under accounting regulations (+) 15,627,023 11,587,579

Expenses recognised for tax purposes 15,303,708 11,387,882

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN EXPENSES AND REVENUES RECOGNIZED FOR TAX PURPOSES 718,932 2,734,873

Increase in tax base by the previously established tax relief (+) 146,308 0

TAX BASE 865,240 2,734,873

TAX LOSS 0 0

Decrease in tax base and tax relief (not exceeding the tax base) (-) -84,689 -66,401

TAXABLE BASE 780,551 2,668,472

TAX (17%) 132,694 453,640

Effective tax rate 3.99% 17.65%

Table 140: Deferred tax assets in EUR

Receivables and liabilities changed by deferred tax recognized in: 2015 2014

 Profit or loss (+/-) 1,423 2,911

TOTAL 1,423 2,911
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Net Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit, which belongs to shareholders, with weight-
ed average number of ordinary shares traded during the year, where the average number of own shares in 
excluded.

Because the company does not have preference shares, nor bonds, which might be converted into shares, 
the adjusted profit per share equals the basis earnings per share.

Table 141: Trend in deferred tax in EUR

Table 142: Basic earnings per share in EUR

Impairment of asset (revaluation 
operating expenses) Formation od provisions TOTAL

Deferred tax asset 31 Dec 2014 26,464 0 26,464

Deferred tax asset 1 Jan 2015 26,464 0 26,464

Deductible temporary differences (+) 2,717 5,705 8,422

Utilisation of deductible temporary differences (-) -6,999 0 -6,999

Deferred tax asset 31 Dec 2015 22,182 5,705 27,887

 2015 2014

Profit or loss relating to the owners of the controlling entity 3,191,824 2,118,765

Weighted average of the number of ordinary shares 1,066,767 1,066,767

Basic earnings per share (in EUR) 2.99 1.99

 2015 2014

Issued ordinary share as at 1 Jan 1,066,767 1,066,767

Effect of own shares 0 0

Weighted average of the number of ordinary shares as at 31 Dec 1,066,767 1,066,767
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Table  143: Trend in intangible assets in 2015 in EUR

Table  144: Trend in intangible assets in 2014 in EUR

6. Intangible Assets and Non-current Deferred Costs and Accrued Revenue

Description Non-current property rights TOTAL

Cost as at 31 Dec 2014 23,793 23,793

Adjustments after the opening balance  0

Cost as at 1 Jan 2015 23,793 23,793

Cost as at 31 Dec 2015 23,793 23,793

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2014 20,574 20,574

Adjustments after the opening balance  0

Value adjustment as at 1 Jan 2015 20,574 20,574

Depreciation in year 618 618

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2015 21,192 21,192

Book value as at 31 Dec 2015 2,601 2,601

Book value as at 31 Dec 2014 3,219 3,219

Description Non-current property rights TOTAL

Cost as at 1 Jan 2014 23,793 23,793

Cost as at 31 Dec 2014 23,793 23,793

Value adjustment as at 1 Jan 2014 19,914 19,914

Depreciation in year 660 660

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2014 20,574 20,574

Book value as at 31 Dec 2014 3,219 3,219

Book value as at 1 Jan 2014 3,879 3,879

Disclosed intangible assets are the property of Impol 2000 d.d. and are free from all encumbrances. The cost 
of intangible fixed assets the present value of which equals zero and are still used, amounts to EUR 18,123.
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7. Tangible Fixed Assets

Table 145: Trend in tangible fixed assets in 2015 in EUR

Table  146: Trend in tangible fixed assets in 2014 in EUR                                                                                                                                                                                                 

Description Manufacturing facilities 
and equipment

Other facilities and 
equipment

Equipment and other TFA 
in acquisition Total equipment

Cost as at 31 Dec 2014 1,099,476 175,258  1,274,734

Opening-balance adjustment    0

Cost as at 1 Jan 2015 1,099,476 175,258 0 1,274,734

Direct increases – acquisitions   24,315 24,315

Transfer from investments in progress  25,371 -25,371 0

Transfer between Group companies – acquisition   1,056 1,056

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -31,163  -31,163

Cost as at 31 Dec 2015 1,099,476 169,466 0 1,268,942

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2014 954,152 136,987  1,091,139

Opening-balance adjustment    0

Value adjustment as at 1 Jan 2015 954,152 136,987 0 1,091,139

Depreciation 29,787 18,703  48,490

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -31,146  -31,146

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2015 983,939 124,544 0 1,108,483

Book value as at 31 Dec 2015 115,537 44,922 0 160,459

Book value as at 31 Dec 2014 145,324 38,271 0 183,595

Description Manufacturing facilities 
and equipment

Other facilities and 
equipment

Equipment and other TFA 
in acquisition Total

Cost as at 1 Jan 2014 1,099,476 169,154 0 1,268,630

Direct increases – acquisitions   6,350 6,350

Transfer from investments in progress  6,350 -6,350 0

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -246  -246

Cost as at 31 Dec 2014 1,099,476 175,258 0 1,274,734

Value adjustment as at 1 Jan 2014 924,366 120,798 0 1,045,164

Depreciation 29,786 16,435  46,221

Decreases – exclusions, other decreases  -246  -246

Value adjustment as at 31 Dec 2014 954,152 136,987 0 1,091,139

Book value as at 31 Dec 2014 145,324 38,271 0 183,595

Book value as at 1 Jan 2014 175,110 48,356 0 223,466

The disclosed tangible assets are the property of Impol 2000 d.d. and are free from all encumbrances. The 
cost of tangible fixed assets the present value of which equals zero and are still used, amounts to EUR 
986,332. The entity has no assets held under financial leasing. 
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Table 147: Non-current financial investments in EUR 

Table 148: Revaluation of non-current financial investments in EUR

8. Non-current Financial Investments

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL 
INVESTMENTS

Cost of non-current 
financial investments 

as at 31 Dec

Of which non-current financial investments in: Value adjustment 
as at 31 Dec

Book value 

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014Group companies Associates Other companies

 = + + + - =  

Investment in shares and 
participating interest 67,972,017 67,937,369 34,648  -36,372 67,935,645 67,970,271

TOTAL non-current financial 
investments excluding loan 67,972,017 67,937,369 34,648 0 -36,372 67,935,645 67,970,271

TOTAL long-term loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 67,972,017 67,937,369 34,648 0 -36,372 67,935,645 67,970,271

Revaluation of non-current financial 
investments due to impairments 
charged to financial expenses

2015
Of which revaluation of non-current financial invest. to:

2014
Group companies Associates Other companies

= + + +

36,371 1,724 34,647  0

A financial investment in the amount of EUR 100,000, which relates to the participating interest of Im-
pol 2000 d.d. in the subsidiary Rondal d.o.o. is pledged as securitiy for liability relating to the long-term 
received loan, which amounts to EUR 981,000 as at 31 December 2015. The financial investment into the 
capital of Impol d.o.o. (97.5387-percent ownership share) in the amount of EUR 67,588,863 is also pledged 
in the form of a given guarantee, and is intended for liabilities of Impol d.o.o. to banks.

In 2015, the Board of Directors of Impol 2000 d.d. adopted a resolution of impairment of financial invest-
ment to the associate Impol Brazil Aluminium Ltda and the subsidiary Impol Hungary, on the basis of the 
estimate that the carrying amount of investment exceeds their recoverable value (i. e. current value of future 
cash flows). According to the resolution of the Board of Directors, both investments were revalued due to 
impairment, to the value of 0.

All long-term financial investments are distributed to the group »financial assets available for sale« and 
are measured acquisition cost. The company Impol 2000 d.d. as the controlling company, prepares the con-
solidated financial statements for the above-presented companies.

Table 149: Trend in investments to subsidiaries and associates in EUR

2015 2014

Investments as at 1 Jan 2015 67,970,271 67,970,271

New acqusition 1,745 0

Impairment -36,372 0

Balance as at 31 Dec 2015 67,935,645 67,970,271
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9. Inventories of Goods

On 31 December 2015, the company inspected the value of inventories and determined that the net re-
alisable value of inventories is higher than the carrying amount, so there were no impairments in 2015. 
Inventories are not held under lien as security for liabilities.

10. Current Financial Investments

Table 150: Inventories of goods in EUR                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Table 151: Current financial investments in EUR

31 Dec 2015 Of which inventories as at 31 Dec:

31 Dec 2014
Acquisition value (+)

Revaluation of value 
due to impairment of 

inventories (-)
Carrying amount Inter-group Held under lien as 

security for liabilities

Merchandise 74,396  74,396   49,506

TOTAL 74,396 0 74,396 0 0 49,506

Cost of current 
financial 

investments as at 
31 Dec

Of which current financial investments in: Value
adjustment

due to
impairment

Carrying amount

Group companies Associates Other companies 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

 = + + + - =  

TOTAL current financial investments, 
excluding loans 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Current granted loans (including 
bonds) 3.974.518 3.974.518    3.974.518 2.300.000

TOTAL current granted loans 3,974,518 3,974,518 0 0 0 3,974,518 2,300,000

Current unpaid called-up capital 0     0 0

TOTAL CURRENT FINANCIAL 
INVESTMENTS 3,974,518 3,974,518 0 0 0 3,974,518 2,300,000

Table 152: Trend in loans granted in EUR

Group companies

Loans as at 1 Jan 2015 2,300,000

New loans (+) 3,994,518

Refunds (-) 2,320,000

Loans granted as at 31 Dec 2015 3,974,518

The current loan in the amount of EUR 1,824,518 granted to Impol d.o.o. falls due in May 2016 and shall 
bear interest at an annual interest rate of 1.70%.
The current loan in the amount of EUR 1,950,000 granted to Impol d.o.o. falls due in December 2016 and 
shall bear interest at an annual interest rate of 1.045%.
The current loan in the amount of EUR 50,000 granted to Imaginacija Aluminium falls due in September 
2016 and shall bear interest at an annual interest rate of 1.161%.
The current loan in the amount of EUR 150,000 granted to Imaginacija Aluminium falls due in October 
2016 and shall bear interest at an annual interest rate of 1.14%.
All loans granted to associates shall bear interest at an established interest rate, increased by one percentage 
point. All loans are secured with a bill of exchange.
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11. Current Operating Receivables

Receivables are secured throug SID – Prva kreditna zavarovalnica d.d. in Slovenia in the amount of EUR 
1,282,551 as at balance of 31 December 2015 (balance as at 31 December 2014: EUR 1,239,763).
Trade receivables from customers in the rest of the world are translated into the local currency at the 
exchange rate of the ECB published by the Bank of Slovenia. Exchange rate differences arising up to 
the settlement date of the receivables or up to the balance sheet date are classified as financial income or 
expenses item.

Table 153: Current operating receivables in EUR

Table 154: Current operating receivables in the domestic and foreign market in EUR

Table 155: Analysis of due trade receivables in EUR

Table 156: Trend in adjustment of current operating receivables due to impairment in EUR

Current  
operating 

receivables

Current operating receivables from: Value
adjustment due 

to impairment
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014Group  

companies Associates Other  
companies

 = + + + - = +

Current trade receivables 2,236,858 457,667  1,779,191 -147,681 2,089,177 2,365,507

• Of which overdue as at 31 Dec 453,472   453,472  453,472 873,503

Given current advances and collaterals 1,281   1,281  1,281 0

Current receivables associated with financial 
revenues 68,748 7,110  61,638 -15,336 53,412 65,392

Current receivables due from central govern-
ment 297,175   297,175  297,175 6,759

Other current operating receivables 20,529   20,529  20,529 39,618

TOTAL current operating receivables 2,624,591 464,777 0 2,159,814 -163,017 2,461,574 2,477,276

2015 2014

Current operating receivables in the domestic market 2,328,731 2,386,357

Current operating receivables in the foreign market 132,843 90,919

TOTAL 2,461,574 2,477,276

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Due in 2015 260,878  

Due in 2014 4,474 640,886

Due in 2013 41,745 77,674

Due in 2012 0 0

Due in 2011 and earlier 146,375 154,943

TOTAL due trade receivables 453,472 873,503

2015
Of which value adjustment of current operating receivables due from:

2014
Group companies Associates Other companies

Balance as at 1 Jan (+) 156,131   156,131 190,449

Decrease in value adjustment due to the settlement of receivables (-) -1,315   -1,315 -1,392

Decrease in value adjustment due to the write-off of receivables (-) -22,655   -22,655 -32,926

Created value adjustment for the period due to impairment (+) 30,856   30,856 0

Balance as at 31 Dec 163,017 0 0 163,017 156,131
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On 31 December 2015, the entity has no disclosed receivables due from members of the Management 
Board, the Supervisory Board and owners.

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The entity has no short-term deposits up to three months, but as at 31 December 2015 the so-called over-
night deposit of EUR 2,855,175 has been formed.

Current deferred costs or expenses mainly refer to the costs of professional literature paid in advance.

13. Equity 

In 2015, the company Impol 2000 d.d. paid out dividends in the amount of EUR 0.94 gross per share or a 
total of EUR 1,002,761.

Table 157: Cash and cash equivalents in EUR

Table 158: Current deferred costs and accrued revenues in EUR

Table 159: Equity in EUR

 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Cash in hand 296 186

Cash in banks and other financial institutions 32,985,010 1,608,072

TOTAL 32,985,306 1,608,258

 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current deferred costs or expenses 12,562 2,184

VAT from received advances 1,599 7,139

TOTAL 14,161 9,323

 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Equity 55,107,982 52,918,919

Called-up capital 4,451,540 4,451,540

Share capital 4,451,540 4,451,540

Capital reserves 10,751,254 10,751,254

Paid-in surplus 9,586,803 9,586,803

General equity revaluation adjustment  1,164,451  1,164,451

Profit reserves 6,906,327 6,427,553

Statutory reserves 1,173,746 694,972

Other profit reserves 5,732,581 5,732,581

Net profit brought forward (distributable profit)                              30,285,811 29,487,622

Net profit/loss for the financial year                            2,713,050 1,800,950
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At the regural annual General Meeting in 2016, the Management Board will propose to the General 
Meeting to adopt the following resolution on the appropriation of distributable profit: the portion of undis-
tributed profit of EUR 32,998,861 shall be appropriated for dividends to shareholders in the gross amount 
of EUR 1.41 per share:

The remaining portion of distributable profit of EUR 31,494,719.53 shall remain undistributed.

14. Provisions

Provisions for pensions, long-service bonuses and severance pays upon retirement to others were initially 
formed in 2015 in the amount of EUR 67,117 chargeable to profit or loss. Provisions for severance pays 
upon retirement ad long-service bonuses are formed in the amount of etimated future payments for sever-
ance pays and long-service bonuses, discounted to the end of the reporting period. Labour costs and interest 
expenses are recognised in profit or loss, while the conversion of such provisions and/or unrealised actuarial 
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income as equity.

Calculation of provisions for post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits of employees is based 
on actuarial model, which observes the following assumptions: 
• Annual discount rate arising from the data on the profitability of government bonds of the Republic 

of Slovenia.
• Currently valid amounts of severance pays and long-service bonuses, defined in internal documents; 
• Employee fluctuation, which depends particularly on their age.
• Mortality on the basis of the latest available life tables of local population. 
It is estimated that no provisions, other than the ones above, need to be formed.

Table 160: Distributable profit in EUR 

Table 162: Provisions in EUR

Table 161: Increase in other revenue reserves 

Item 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Net profit or loss for the period 3,191,824 2,118,765

Net profit or loss brought forward 30,285,811 29,487,622

Reduction (release) of capital reserves 0 0

Decrease (release) in profit reserves; itemised separately by type 0 0

Increase (additional formation) of profit reserves; itemised separately by type -478,774 -317,815

Distributable profit /distributable loss 32,998,861 31,288,572

 Provisions for pensions, long-service bonuses and sever-
ance pays upon retirement TOTAL

Balance as at 31 Dec 2014 0 0

Opening-balance adjustment  0

Balance as at 1 Jan 2015 0 0

Formation (+) 67,117 67,117

Balance as at 31 Dec 2015 67,117 67,117

 In EUR

Dividends to shareholders in the amount 1.41 EUR/share 1,504,141.47

The participation of the Management Board in the profits based on the contracts

Undistributed distributable profit for the 2015 financial year (to the profit brought forward) 31,494,719.53
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15. Non-Current Financial and Operating Liabilities 

As at 31 December 2015, the company Impol 2000 d.d. has a long-term loan open at NKBM d.d. in the 
amount of EUR 981,000. The loan falls due on 25 March 2017. It is secured with bills of exchange and 
pledge of business share in the company Rondal d.o.o. The interest rate is the 6-month EURIBOR + 3.0 
percent annually. 

Issued Bonds
In 2015, Impol 2000 d.d. for the first time issued five-year bonds of EUR 50 million with the purpose of 
financing a cycle of investments for the subsequent long-term growth and development. The interest rate is 
3.8-percent annually. Coupons are paid annually. The final date of maturity is 19 October 2020.

Liabilities for issued bonds relate to the bonds listed as IM01. The controlling company issued the bonds 
in the total nominal value of EUR 50,000,000. The total issue of bonds comprises 50,000 denominations 
of EUR 1,000.

Table 163: Non-current financial and operating liabilities in EUR

Table 164: Maturity of non-current financial and operating liabilities in EUR

Table 165: Trend in financial liabilities in EUR

Total debt
as at 31 Dec 2015

The portion
falling due in 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

 + - =  

Non-current financial liabilities relating to bonds 50,000,000 -10,000,000 40,000,000 0

Non-current financial liabilities to banks 981,000 -120,000 861,000 0

TOTAL non-current financial and operating liabilities 50,981,000 -10,120,000 40,861,000 0

Non-current financial liabilities 50,981,000 -10,120,000 40,861,000 0

Non-current operating liabilities 0 0 0 0

TOTAL non-current financial and operating liabilities 50,981,000 -10,120,000 40,861,000 0

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Due in 2016 x 0

Due in 2017 10,861,000 0

Due in 2018 10,000,000 0

Due in 2019 10,000,000 0

Due in 2020 10,000,000 0

Due in 2021 and later  x

TOTAL non-current financial and operating liabilities 40,861,000 0

Type of non-current 
financial liabilities

Interest rate 
(in %)

Maturity 
date

Debt as at 
1 Jan 2015 New loans

Repayments
in the current

year

Debt balance Of which the portion that falls due:
Loan security

31 Dec 2015 in 2016 after 1 Jan 2017

Bonds 3.8 19 Oct 0 50.000.000  50,000,000 -10,000,000 40,000,000 Unsecured

Bank loan at 
NKBM d.d. 6M EUR + 3.0 25 March 0 1.081.000 -100,000 981,000 -120,000 861,000 Pledge of business share 

in Rondal d. o. o., 

TOTAL   0 51,081,000 -100,000 50,981,000 -10,120,000 40,861,000
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The interest rate for the issued bonds is stable and amounts to 3.80 percent annually. Bonds have been 
traded on the Ljubljana Stock Exchange from December 2015. 

The company Impol 2000 d.d. has no assets held under financial leasing. In 2015 the company did not 
capitalize borrowing costs (nor in 2014).

16. Current financial liabilities

Table 166: Depreciation plan of issued bonds in EUR

Table 167: Current financial liabilities in EUR

No. Date of maturity of liability Payment of coupon in EUR (interest) Payment of principal value in EUR Total payment in EUR

1 19 October 2016 1,900,000.00 10,000,000.00 11,900,000.00

2 19 October 2017 1,520,000.00 10,000,000.00 11,520,000.00

3 19 October 2018 1,140,000.00 10,000,000.00 11,140,000.00

4 19 October 2019 760,000.00 10,000,000.00 10,760,000.00

5 19 October 2020 380,000.00 10,000,000.00 10,380,000.00

 Total 5,700,000.00 50,000,000.00 55,700,000.00

Type of current 
financial 
liabilities

Annual interest 
rate in % Maturity date

Debt balance 
as at  

1 Jan 2015

New loans
in the current

year

Transfer of cur-
rent portion of

non-current 
liability

Attribution of  
interest to the 

principal

Repayments
in the current 

year

Debt balance 
as at 31 Dec 

2015
Loan security  

Bonds 3.8 19 October 2016   10,000,000 0 10,000,000 Unsecured

Loan – Rondal 
d.o.o. POM+1 17 February 

2016 500,000 500,000   -500,000 500,000 Bills of 
exchange

Commercial 
papers 3.3816 16 November 

2015 19,400,705   599,295 -20,000,000 0 Unsecured

Bank loan – 
NKBM d.d.* 6M EUR+3.0 25 December 

2016 1,101,000 - 1,081,000 120,000  -20,000 120,000

Pledge of 
business share 

in the company 
Rondal d.o.o. 

bills of  
exchange

TOTAL  21,001,705 -581,000 10,120,000 599,295 -20,520,000 10,620,000

*Change of bank loan in the amount EUR -1,081,000 relates to the remaining loan reprogrammed in 2015, which was transferred to non-current financial liabilities.
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Table 168: Current financial and operating liabilities in EUR

Current financial and operating liabilities 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current operating liabilities to group companies 13,015 93,129

Current trade payables – associated companies 12,993 12,444

Current trade payables – other companies 135,769 93,645

Current operating liabilities based on advances – other companies 125,338 110,634

Other current operating liabilities – group companies 1,062 14,987

Other current operating liabilities – other companies 267,710 328,489

TOTAL current operating liabilities 555,887 653,328

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities – banks 120,000 1,101,000

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities – bonds 10,000,000 0

Current financial liabilities – Rondal d.o.o. 500,000 500,000

Current financial liabilities – commercial papers 0 19,400,705

Current financial liabilities regarding to the distribution of profit/loss 7,052 9,226

TOTAL current financial liabilities 10,627,052 21,010,931

Current financial and operating liabilities 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current financial liabilities 507,052 19,909,931

Current portion of non-current financial liabilities 10,120,000 1,101,000

TOTAL current financial liabilities 10,627,052 21,010,931

Current operating liabilities 555,887 653,328

TOTAL current operating liabilities 555,887 653,328

TOTAL current financial and operating liabilities 11,182,939 21,664,259

Current operating liabilities 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Current financial liabilities to group companies as suppliers 13,015 93,129

Current liabilities to associates as suppliers 12,993 12,444

Current liabilities to other companies as suppliers 135,769 93,645

Total current trade payables 161,777 199,218

• Of which overdue liabilities as at 31 Dec 40,658 86,115

Current liabilities for advances 125,338 110,634

Total current liabilities for advances 125,338 110,634

Current liabilities to employees 194,669 133,585

Current liabilities to government 48,436 175,706

Current debt liabilities – group companies 1,062 14,987

Current debt liabilities – other companies 2,604 4,195

Other current operating liabilities 22,001 15,003

TOTAL other current operating liabilities 268,772 343,476

TOTAL current operating liabilities 555,887 653,328
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Table 169: Analysis of trade payables already due in EUR

Table 170: Itemisation of current debt liabilities in EUR

Table 171: Current accrued expenses and deferred income in EUR

Analysis of overdue trade payables 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Due in 2015 40,658 x

Due in 2014  46,327

Due in 2013  39,788

Due in 2012  0

Due in 2011 and earlier  0

TOTAL trade payables already due 40,658 86,115

Itemisation of current debt liabilities in EUR                 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Interest associated with financial expenses from operating 
liabilities 17 20

Interest associated with financial expenses from financial 
liabilities 3,649 19,162

Total current debt liabilities 3,666 19,182

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

Accrued costs and expenses 385,205 0

Current deferred income 32,278 38,856

VAT from given advances 26 5,878

TOTAL 417,509 44,734

Current financial liabilities comprise the liabilities from loans whose repayment deadline is less than one 
year. This includes liabilities for issued bonds in the amount of EUR 10,000,000, which represents the cur-
rent portion of liabilities, which falls due in 2016, and EUR 120,000 of current portion of non-current bank 
loan, and EUR 500,000 of liabilities from current loan of the company Rondal d.o.o. The interests for the 
given loan are calculated at the established interest rate, which applies to loans among associated entities, 
increased by 1 percentage point. The loan is secured by a bill of exchange and falls due on 18 February 2016. 

Other current financial liabilities refer to that portion of received non-current loans, which fall due in 2016.
Impol 2000 d.d. borrowed on the short-term money market in 2014 by issuing commercial paper. In 2015, 
the company also settled the total debt of EUR 20 million upon maturity.

All current financial liabilities, other than current portion of bonds, are secured.
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Accrued costs and expenses refer to the calculated interest from issued bonds, which occurred from the 
day of the issue of bonds until and including 31 December 2015. Current deferred income is formed from 
charged (yet unpaid) operating interest. At payment they are recorded as income.

Liquidity Risk
When it comes to liquidity risk management, the Company examines whether it is able to settle its current 
operating liabilities and whether it is generating a sufficiently large cash flow to settle its financial liabilities.
Floating weekly and monthly planning of cash flows allows the Company to establish liquid asset require-
ments. Potential cash shortages are covered by bank credit lines, whereas any short-term surpluses are 
invested in liquid current financial assets.

Interest Rate Risk
At the end of the year, Impol 2000 d.d. had a long-term loan remunerated at the 6-month EURIBOR 
reference interest rate. Having established that all offers for a change of the interest rate were unfavourable 
in terms of costs and given the presumption that the interest rate would not be rising, the Company did not 
enter into any new interest rate hedges. 

In case the interbank reference rate EURIBOR is negative (less than 0 percent), banks charge contractual 
interests at the EURIBOR reference interest rate of 0 percent, increased by premium.

On 31 December 2015, the interbank reference interest rate EURIBOR was negative, so its increase by 1 
or ½ percentage point would not effect profit or loss.  

Credit Risk
The credit control process encompasses customer credit rating which is carried out regularly in cooperation 
with Prva kreditna zavarovalnica and foreign insurance firms as well as our customer solvency monitoring 
system. By regularly monitoring open and past due trade receivables, the ageing structure of receivables 
and average payment deadlines, the Company maintains its credit exposure within acceptable limits given 
the strained conditions on the market. In 2015, the Company managed to maintain trade receivables on 
approximately the same level as in 2014.

17. Financial Instruments and Financial Risks

Impol 2000 faces the following risks in its business process, in particular:

Table 172: Risks

Risk area Risk description Management method employed Exposure

Liquidity risk The lack of liquid assets for settling operating or
financial liabilities.

Credit lines agreed in advance and preparation
of inflow and outflow plans. Low

Interest rate risk The lack of liquid assets for settling operating or
financial liabilities.

Monitoring of the ECB's and FED's policies, hedging using 
appropriate derivatives – interest rate swaps, shifting from 
a fixed to a floating interest rate.

Moderate

Credit risk Risk of customer failure to settle their liabilities.

Trade receivables insurance (primarily receivables from 
foreign debtors) through Prva kreditna zavarovalnica and 
foreign insurance firms, monitoring of customer credit rat-
ings, limiting maximum exposure to individual customers.
Transactions with customers located in high-risk markets 
are only performed on the basis of advance payments or 
prime bank guarantees.

Moderate to high
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Table 173: Book and fair value of financial instruments in EUR

Table 174: Transactions with related parties in EUR                      

Book value Fair value  Fair value level

Non-current investments to associated companies  0 0 3

Non-current investments to subsidiaries  67,935,645 67,935,645 3

Current loans given to Group companies 3,974,518 3,974,518 3

Current operating receivables 2,461,574 2,461,574 3

Cash and cash equivalents 32,985,306 32,985,306 3

Non-current financial liabilities 40,861,000 40,861,000 3

Current financial liabilities 10,627,052 10,627,052 3

Current operating liabilities 555,887 555,887 3

Receivables of Impol 2000 d.d. as 
at 31 Dec 2015 from:

Group companies – receivables
TOTALNon-current financial

investments in the equity
Current operating

receivables
Short-term loans

granted

Impol d.o.o. 67,588,863 249,439 3,774,518 71,612,820

Impol LLT d.o.o.  10,616  10,616

Impol FT d.o.o.  81,961  81,961

Impol PCP d.o.o.  94,120  94,120

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o.  1,715  1,715

Impol R in R d.o.o.  10,846  10,846

Rondal d.o.o. 100,000 6,766  106,766

Impol-Montal d.o.o.  852  852

Impol Servis d.o.o. 245,037 942  245,979

Impol Stanovanja d.o.o.  717  717

Kadring d.o.o.  985  985

Stampal SB d.o.o.  3,194  3,194

Unidel d.o.o.  2,153  2,153

Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o. 1,745 471 200,000 202,216

TOTAL 67,935,645 464,777 3,974,518 72,374,940

Book and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Classification of financial instruments according to the definition of their fair value as at 31 December 2015:

18. Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, Impol 2000 d.d. has guarantees in the amount of EUR 45,741,360 granted to the 
subsidiary Impol d.o.o. in respect of received non-current loans at banks. The given guarantee in the amount 
of EUR 33,250,000 is secured by the pledge of a 97.5-percent ownership share in the company Impol d.o.o. 

Transaction with Related Parties
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Table 175: Liabilities to Group companies in EUR                                                                                

Table 176: Liabilities to associates in EUR

Liabilities of Impol 2000 d.d. as at 31 Dec 
2015 to Group companies:

Group companies – liabilities
TOTAL

Current financial liabilities Current operating liabilities

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o.  1,652 1,652

Rondal d.o.o. 500,000 1,062 501,062

Impol Servis  d.o.o.   9,010  9,010

Kadring d.o.o.  1,877 1,877

Unidel d.o.o.   476  476

TOTAL 500,000 14,077 514,077

Liabilities of Impol 2000 d.d. as at 31 Dec 2015 to:
Associates – liabilities

TOTAL
Current operating liabilities

Simfin d.o.o. 12,009 12,009

Alcad d.o.o. 984 984

TOTAL 12,993 12,993

Table 177: Revenues generated by Group companies in EUR

Revenues of Impol 2000 d.d.  
generated in 2015 with company:

Net revenues from the 
sale of services

Net revenues from the 
sale of material

Financial revenues from 
investment

Financial revenues from 
current receivables TOTAL revenues

Impol d.o.o. 3,352,897 -4,461 2,926,163 38,401 6,313,000

Impol LLT d.o.o. 104,424 7,073   111,497

Impol FT d.o.o. 806,291    806,291

Impol PCP d.o.o. 792,055    792,055

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o. 14,237    14,237

Impol R in R d.o.o. 104,935    104,935

Rondal d.o.o. 64,026    64,026

Impol-Montal d.o.o. 8,376    8,376

Impol Servis d.o.o. 9,264    9,264

Impol Stanovanja d.o.o. 7,056    7,056

Kadring d.o.o. 10,634    10,634

Stampal SB d.o.o. 31,416    31,416

Unidel d.o.o. 21,180    21,180

Imaginacija Aluminium d.o.o.    470 470

TOTAL 5,326,791 2,612 2,926,163 38,871 8,294,437
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Table 178: Expenses generated by group companies in EUR

Expenses of Impol 2000 d.d. 
generated in 2015 with the 
company:

Cost of goods and 
materials sold Costs of services Costs of material Other operating 

expenses

Financial  
expenses for 

write-off

Financial interest 
expenses and 

other liabilities
TOTAL expenses

Impol d.o.o. 9,972,547 89,652 13,233 7,832   10,083,264

Impol LLT d.o.o. 350      350

Impol PCP d.o.o.   238    238

Impol Infrastruktura d.o.o.  16,566     16,566

Impol R in R d.o.o.  659     659

Rondal d.o.o.      6,542 6,542

Impol Servis d.o.o. 350 10,020     10,370

Kadring d.o.o.  19,453 3,934    23,387

Unidel d.o.o.  6,497 2,147    8,644

Impol Seval  
President d.o.o.  1,371     1,371

Impol Hungary Kft.     1,724  1,724

TOTAL 9,973,247 144,218 19,552 7,832 1,724 6,542 10,153,115

Table 179: Revenue generated by associates in EUR

Table 180: Expenses with associates in EUR

Revenues of Impol 2000 d.d. generated in 2015 with the company: Net revenues from the sale of services TOTAL revenues

Simfin d.o.o. 560 560

TOTAL 560 560

Expenses of Impol 2000 d.d. generated in 2015 with 
the company: Costs of services Financial expenses for write-off TOTAL expenses

Simfin d.o.o. 167,634  167,634

Alcad d.o.o. 8,798  8,798

Impol Brazil Ltda.  34,647 34,647

TOTAL 176,432 34,647 211,079
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Table 181: Remuneration of management and supervisory body members in EUR

Name and
surname of
member of a
management or
supervisory body

Position
Fixed portion 

of remuner-
ation

Variable
Participa-

tion 
in profit

Reim-
burse-

ment
of ex-

penses

Options and 
other awards

Insurance 
premiums Fees  

Other
additional
payments

TOTAL 
remunera-

tion

Jernej Čokl President of the MB 36,000 48,205      18,000 102,205

Vlado Leskovar MB member 30,000 44,664      18,000 92,664

Janko Žerjav MB member 30,000 38,664      18,000 86,664

Milan Cerar MB member 30,000 40,738       70,738

Bojan Gril MB member 28,523 42,541       71,064

Edvard Slaček Executive Director 136,759 73,436  2,195  494  893 213,778

Irena Šela Executive Director 103,925 63,599  2,102  494  869 170,990

Total  395,207 351,847 0 4,297 0 989 0 55,763 808,103

The table shows remuneration for the calendar year 2015. The company has no receivables due from mem-
bers of management bodies and employees on individual contracts.

Events after the Reporting Date

After the reporting date, there have been no events, which would have a significant influence on the pre-
sented financial statements of Impol 2000 d.d. for 2015.

The President and the members of the Management Board, and Executive Directors of the company Impol 
2000 d.d. are informed of the content of component parts of the annual report of the company Impol 2000 
d.d. and also with the total annual report of the Impol Group for 2015. We hereby agree with the report and 
hereby duly confirm with our signature. 

 
Signature of the Annual Report for 2015 

and its Component Parts

	   	  

Jernej Čokl
(President of MB)

Janko Žerjav
(Member of the MB)

Vladimir Leskovar
(Vice President of the 

MB)

Milan Cerar
(Member of the MB)

Bojan Gril
(Member of the MB)

	    
 

	  

Irena Šela
(Executive Director of Finance)

Edvard Slaček
(Chief Executive Officer)
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management board and executive directors

Jernej Čokl
(President of the Management 

Board)

Irena Šela
(Chief Financial Officer)

Janko Žerjav
(Member of the Management 

Board)

Vladimir Leskovar
(Vice President of the 
Management Board)

Milan Cerar
(Member of the Management 

Board)

Edvard Slaček
(Chief Executive Officer)

Bojan Gril
(Member of the Management 

Board)
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